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DRAFT NOTICE OF NINETEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Nineteenth Annual General Meeting of the members of One97 Communications
Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Monday, September 30, 2019 at 09.00A.M. (IST) at its registered office
at First Floor, Devika Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019,India to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive, consider and adopt:

(a) the audited financial statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019, the report of the Board
of Director’s and Auditors’ thereon; and

(b) the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019 and the
Auditors’ report thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma (DIN: 00466521) who retires by rotation, being
eligible offers himself for reappointment.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Jing Xiandong (DIN: 07155397) who retires by rotation and, being
eligible offers himself for reappointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. To consider, discuss and approve the appointment of Mr. Todd Anthony Combs as Director of the
Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 and other applicable provisions (including
any modification or re-enactment thereof), if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr. Todd Anthony Combs (DIN: 08343520) who was appointed as an Additional Director by
the Board of Directors with effect from May 16, 2019 whose term expires at this Annual General Meeting of
the Company and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing proposing his candidature
for the office of the Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company and whose period of
office will be liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Managing Director, Mr. Madhur Deora
President — Business, Mr. Vikas Garg, Deputy Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the
Company, be and are hereby severally authorized to give effect to above appointment and make necessary
filing with Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and Haryana and to do all acts, things and deeds incidental
thereto.”

5. To consider, discuss and approve the appointment of Mr. Michael Yuen Jen Yao as Director of the
Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:



"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 and other applicable provisions (including
any modification or re-enactment thereof), if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr. Michael Yuen Jen Yao (DIN: 08451050) who was appointed as an Additional Director
by the Board of Directors with effect from May 16, 2019 whose term expires at this Annual General Meeting
of the Company and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing proposing his
candidature for the office of the Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company and whose
period of office will be liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Managing Director, Mr. Madhur Deora
President — Business, Mr. Vikas Garg, Deputy Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the
Company, be and are hereby severally authorized to give effect to above appointment and make necessary
filing with Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and Haryana and to do all acts, things and deeds incidental
thereto.”

. To approve increase ESOP Pool grant options and amendment in One97 Employees Stock Option
Scheme, 2008

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the earlier resolution passed, pursuant to the applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the corresponding rules framed thereunder, as amended, Memorandum &
Articles of Association of the Company and subject to such other approval(s), permission(s) and sanction(s) of
the appropriate authorities as may be applicable and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be
prescribed or imposed while granting such approval(s), permission(s) and sanction(s), the consent of the
members, be and are hereby accorded to alter One97 Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2008 (hereinafter
referred to as “One97 ESOP Scheme” or “ESOP Scheme”) by increasing existing ESOP pool from
1,923,620 equity options to 2,166,524 equity options of Rs. 10/- each and to approve and adopt the amended
One97 ESOP Scheme 2008 (“ESOP Scheme”), the draft of which is initialed by the Chairperson for the
purposes of identification (“Restated ESOP”).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the new equity shares to be issued and allotted by the Company in the
manner aforesaid shall rank pari passu, in all respects with the then existing Equity Shares of the Company and
that the Company shall conform to the accounting policies as laid out in the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the
relevant provisions of the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Managing Director, Mr. Madhur Deora
President — Business, Mr. Vikas Garg, Deputy Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the
Company, be and are hereby severally authorized to give effect to the aforesaid resolution and make necessary
filing with Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and Haryana and to do all acts, things and deeds incidental
thereto.”

. To approve creation and adoption of new One97 Employees Stock Option Scheme 2019

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 62 (1) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
read with Rule 12(5) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof and the
Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the approval of members of the Company, the consent
of the Board be and is hereby accorded to approve and adopt the proposed new One97 Employees Stock
Option Scheme 2019 (“ESOP Scheme 2019”) of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all ESOPs committed to be granted by the Board but the grant whereof is
pending shall be granted by the Board under the terms of the ESOP Scheme 2019.



RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Managing Director, Mr. Madhur Deora
President — Business, Mr. Vikas Garg, Deputy Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the
Company, be and is hereby severally authorized to sign and execute the necessary agreements, letters and
documents as may be required and send notices to the employees in relation to the approval of the ESOP
Scheme 2019 and to do all such other deeds, things, matters as may be ancillary or incidental to the
implementation of the ESOP Scheme 2019.”

To approve the remuneration of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Managing Director for FY 2019-20

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the earlier resolutions passed, pursuant to the provisions of Section
196 & 197 read with Rule 7 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 and such other applicable rules and subject to Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended or re-enacted from time to time) (hereinafter referred to as Act), the
consent of the members of the Company, be and is hereby accorded to approve the remuneration to be paid to
Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Managing Director of the Company for the financial year 2019-20, as
recommended by the Board and Nomination and Remuneration Committee at their meetings held on
September 04, 2019, on the terms and conditions mentioned herein below:

1. Remuneration: INR 3,00,00,000/- p.a. (including lease rent accommodation) for FY 2019-20

2. Perquisites : Following perquisites to be provided

(a) Two Vehicles.

(b) Fuel Expenses & Toll charges.

(¢) Accommodation on Lease.

(d) Expenses related to electricity, water, maintenance etc. of the accommodation provided by the
Company.

(e) Driver’s Salary and Overtime & Night Charges of Drivers to be paid extra, if any.

(f) Vehicle’s Insurance.

(g) Expenses related to Vehicle’s maintenance.

(h) Communication Expenses which includes reimbursements of mobile bill, data card bill, internet bills,
etc.

(i) Reimbursements related to meal expenditure.

(j) Travel Expenses.

(k) Medical Insurance of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma and his family.

(1) Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per the rules of the
Company. These will not be included in the computation of the ceiling on perquisites or remuneration
to the extent these either singly or put together are not taxable under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Gratuity shall be payable as per the rules of the Company. Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure
will not be included in the computation of the ceiling on perquisites.

(m) Leave Travel Assistance, as per the rules of the Company; value not exceeding one month’s salary.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding to the above, in the event of any loss or inadequacy of
profits in any financial year of the Company during the tenure of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma as Managing
Director of the Company, the remuneration payable to him shall be in accordance with the limits prescribed in
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors/Nomination and Remuneration Committee be and is
hereby authorized to fix the remuneration and/or perquisite of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma and revise such
remuneration and/or perquisite from time to time within the maximum limits specified above and to the extent
as permissible under the relevant provisions of law. The Board of Directors/Nomination and Remuneration
Committee be and is hereby further authorized to vary / modify / amend any of the aforesaid terms and
conditions provided such variation / modification / amendment is in conformity with the applicable provisions



of the Act, as amended from time to time and to do all acts, deeds and thing as deems necessary to give effect
to this resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For One97 Communications Limited
Place: Tokyo, Japan
Date: September 04, 2019 Sd/-
Vijay Shekhar Sharma
Managing Director
DIN: 00466521
Regd Off: 1* Floor, Devika Tower
Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019
CIN- U72200DL2000PLC108985
Website- www.one97.com



Notes:

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY, OR WHERE THAT IS ALLOWED, ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER
OF THE COMPANY. PROXY FORM IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE DULY
STAMPED, SIGNED AND COMPLETED IN ALL RESPECTS MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY ATLEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE THE
COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights
may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other member.

No person shall be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting as a duly authorized representative of anybody
corporate which is a shareholder of the Company, unless a copy of the resolution appointing him/her a duly
authorized representative, certified to be true copy by the Chairman/Managing Director/Company Secretary,
shall have been deposited at the registered office of the Company before the time fixed for the
commencement of the meeting.

Members are requested to notify the changes of address if any, to the Company quoting their respective folio
nos.

We request and encourage our members to register their email-id for e-communication in the records of their
Depository Participant (in case of electronic holding). The Members who are holding shares in physical
form, they may register their e-mail id by sending an email to compliance@paytm.com with a subject
“Registration of email id.”

An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the Special
Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting is annexed hereto.

Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained u/s. 170 of the
Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the AGM

The Register of Contracts or arrangements in which the Directors are interested, maintained u/s.189 of the
Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the Members at the AGM.

All documents referred to in the notice and explanatory statement shall be open for inspection at the
corporate office of the company at B-121, Sector 5 Noida, Uttar Pradesh — 201301 on all working days,
between 11.00 a.m. and 5.00 p.m. upto the date of the Meeting. The company has intimated from the
Registrar of Companies to keep books of account at a place other than the registered office of the company.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Item No. 4

The Board of Directors on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee vide their Board
Meeting dated May 16, 2019, have accorded their approval to appoint Mr. Todd Anthony Combs as an
Additional Director of the Company, as a founder nominee, with effect from May 16, 2019, in accordance with
the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Articles of Association of the
Company.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 160 of the Act, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 4, 2019 has proposed the candidature of Mr. Combs
for his appointment as Director of the Company.

It is proposed to appoint Mr. Combs as Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

Except, Mr. Todd Anthony Combs, to whom the resolution relates, none of the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the
resolution.

Item No. 5

Mr. Joseph Chung Tsai, Director appointed as nominee of Alibaba has resigned from the Directorship of the
Company w.e.f. May 16, 2019. In respect to the same Alibaba has proposed to appoint Mr. Michael Yuen Jen
Yao as an Additional Director of the Company, to hold office till the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company. The Board of Directors vide their Board Meeting dated May 16,
2019, have accorded their approval to appoint Mr. Michael Yuen Jen Yao as Additional Director of the
Company w.e.f. May 16, 2019 in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Articles of Association of the Company.

The Board and the Company places on record deep sum of gratitude and appreciation for the valuable services
rendered by Mr. Joseph Chung Tsai during his tenure as a Director of the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 160 of the Act, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 4, 2019 has proposed the candidature of Mr. Michael
Yao for his appointment as Director of the Company.

It is proposed to appoint Mr. Michael Yao as Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

Except, Mr. Michael Yao, to whom the resolution relates, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution.

Item No. 6

The Company proposes to the increase in ESOP pool by 242,904 options thereby increasing current ESOP
pool from 1,923,620 equity options to 2,166,524 equity options and to amend its the Share Transfer Policy
(“STP”) to provide for an additional restrictions on the transfer shares issued/ to be issued pursuant to One97
Employees Stock Option Scheme 2008 (“ESOP Scheme”), by way of: (a) Right of First Offer (“ROFO”) in
favour of the Investors (as defined in the STP) and One97 Employee Welfare Trust (“Trust™) in the event of
sale of shares to a third party; and (b) call option in favour of the Trust to purchase the ESOPs at a specified
price (“Call Option”) in the event of termination of an employees’ term with the Company (either voluntarily
or involuntarily).



In terms of the provisions of Section 62 (1) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 12 of
the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, any alteration in the terms of the ESOP Scheme
shall be approved by the Shareholders by passing of Special Resolution in the General Meeting. The Board of
Directors on the recommendation made by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in its meeting held
on September 04, 2019 had accorded its approval in relation to the amendment of the Restated ESOP and
increase in ESOP Pool of the Company, subject to the approval of the members of the Company. Accordingly,
the consent of the members of the Company is sought. The draft copy of the Restated ESOP is available for the
inspection during the office hours till the date of general meeting.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution set out at item no. 6 of the Notice, except to the extent of
the securities that may be offered to them under ESOP scheme.

In view of the above, the Board recommends the passing of the resolutions set out at Item No. 6 as a special
resolution.

Item No. 7

The Board of the Company at its meeting held on September 04, 2019 has accorded its approval in relation to a
new employee stock option scheme of the Company (“ESOP Scheme 2019”), for the benefit of the present
and future employees of the Company, subject to the approval of the members by a special resolution.

The broad features of ESOP Scheme 2019 as per Rule 12 of the Companies Share Capital and Debentures)
Rules, 2014 amendments thereof are set out below:

Total number of stock options to be granted Total ESOP Pool is 2,166,524* (subject to terms and
conditions as mentioned in ESOP scheme, 2019.

Identification of classes of employees entitled | As determined by the Nomination and Remuneration
to participate in the ESOP Scheme 2019 Committee.

Appraisal process for determining the | As determined by the Nomination and Remuneration
eligibility of employees to the ESOP Scheme | Committee.
2019

Requirements of vesting and period of | Options granted under ESOP Scheme 2019 will vest from
vesting the end of the 1% year from the grant date and will vest until
the end of the 5" year, in accordance with the vesting
schedule specified in ESOP Scheme 2019.

Maximum period within which the options | 5 years.
shall be vested

Exercise price or the formula for arriving at | In accordance with ESOP Scheme 2019.
the exercise price

Exercise period and the process of exercise Exercise period will be a period not exceeding 5 years from
the date of vesting of the respective employee stock option
and the process of exercise of options shall be in
accordance with ESOP Scheme 2019.




Lock-in period

The shares issued upon exercise of vested options will not
be subject to any lock-in period after such exercise but will
be subject to transfer restrictions as provided in the share
transfer policy of the Company.

Maximum number of options to be granted
per employee and in aggregate

Per employee: no employee will be granted, in any 1 year
of the Company, options to purchase more than or equaling
to 1% of the outstanding issued share capital as on the date
of grant (excluding outstanding options and conversions).

Method which the company shall use to value
its options

Black-Scholes options pricing model is considered to
estimate value of ESOPs.

Conditions under which options vested in
employee(s) may lapse (eg. in case of
termination of employment for misconduct)

In accordance with ESOP Scheme 2019.

Specified time period within which the
employee shall exercise the vested options in

Immediately upon termination and as set out in the ESOP
Scheme 2019.

the event of a proposed termination of
employment or resignation of employee

* This ESOP pool includes total options to be granted under ESOP Scheme and ESOP Scheme 2019.

The draft copy of the ESOP Scheme, 2019 is available for the inspection during the office hours till the date of
general meeting.

The Company shall conform to the accounting policies/standards as applicable to the Company, from time to
time.

None of the Directors and key managerial personnel of the Company and their relatives are, directly or
indirectly, interested in the proposed resolution, except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company.

In view of the above, the Board recommends the passing of the resolutions set out at Item No. 7 as a special
resolution.

Item No. 8

The Members of the Company, at 17" Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on August 31, 2017, had
appointed Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma as Managing Director w.e.f. December 19, 2017 for a period of five (5)
years.

It is recommended by the Board to approve remuneration payable to Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma as Managing
Director of the Company for a further period of one year i.e. for FY 2019-20. His remuneration has been
recommended by Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board respectively, at their meetings held
on September 4, 2019.

Pursuant to Section 196, 197 & 203 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 7 of
Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014 framed and
all other applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration payable to Mr. Vijay Shekhar
Sharma is placed before the shareholders for their approval vide special resolution.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives of the Company are, in any way,
concerned or interested in the said resolution, except Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma.




DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT AND FIXATION OF
REMUNERATION OF MANAGING DIRECTOR AT FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

Mpr. Jing Xiandong

Mr. Jing joined Alibaba Group in 2007, and acted as Senior Finance Director and Vice President at Alibaba
between 2007 and 2009. Mr. Jing then became Chief Financial Officer of Alipay in September 2009 and Ant
Financial’s Chief Operating Officer in October 2014. He became President of Ant Financial in June 2015.
Starting October 16, 2016, Mr. Jing serves as CEO of Ant Financial. Before joining Alibaba, Mr. Jing was the
CFO of Guangzhou Pepsi Cola Beverage Co. He also held management positions in finance in several Swire
Coca-Cola bottling plants or business departments. Mr. Jing received a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering from
the College of Economics & Management, Shanghai Jiao Tong University in 1994. He obtained a master
degree in business administration after finishing the EMBA program at the Carlson School of Management,
University of Minnesota in 2005.

Mpr. Todd Anthony Combs

Mr. Todd A. Combs is an Independent Director at JPMorgan Chase & Co. and an Investment Officer at
Berkshire Hathaway, Inc.

Prior to joining Berkshire Hathaway in 2010, Mr. Combs was Chief Executive Officer and Managing Member
of Castle Point Capital Management, an investment partnership he founded in 2005 to manage capital for
endowments, family foundations and institutions. Before forming Castle Point, he held various positions at
Copper Arch Capital, Progressive Insurance and the State of Florida Banking, Securities and Finance Division.

He has served as a director of Berkshire Hathaway subsidiaries Precision Castparts Corp. since 2016, Charter
Brokerage LLC since 2014 and Duracell Inc. since 2016.

Mr. Michael Yuen Jen Yao

Mr. Michael Yuen Jen Yao is a senior corporate finance professional with over 23 years’ experience in
international capital markets, mergers and acquisitions, debt advisory and corporate finance. Mr. Michael Yao
maintain senior client relationships across corporate and Financial Sponsor and Private Equity. He is an
experienced campaigner in building businesses and motivating a team.

Specialties: Mergers and Acquisitions, Equity Capital Markets, Debt Advisory, Business Development,
Private Equity, Private Placements.

Mpr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma

Profile of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma are disclosed in later part of this explanatory statement.

In pursuance to Secretarial Standard-2 issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

Name of the | Mr. Jing Xiandong Mr. Todd Anthony | Mr. Michael Yuen | Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma
Director Combs Jen Yao
DIN 07155397 08343520 08451050 00466521
Age (in years) 47 48 51 41
Qualification Mr. Jing received a | Mr. Combs had | Mr. Michael Yao is | B.E,, Electronics &
Bachelor’s degree in | graduated from | BS Economics, | Communication from Delhi
Engineering and has also | Florida State | Cum Laude, | College of Engineering
obtained a master degree | University and | Finance and
in business | received an M.B.A. | Marketing from
administration after | from Columbia | Wharton  School,
finishing the EMBA | Business School. University of
program at the Carlson Pennsylvania.




School of Management,
University of Minnesota

in 2005.
Remuneration Nil Nil Nil Rs. 3 Crore p.a. plus
sought to be paid perquisites & allowances
Terms and | Mr. Jing Xiadong is | Mr. Todd Combs is | Mr. Michael Yao is NA
Conditions of | eligible to be re- | appointed as | appointed as
appointment(s) appointed as Director, | Director, liable to | Director, liable to
liable to retire by | retire by rotation, as | retire by rotation, as
rotation, as per the | per the provisions of | per the provisions
provisions of the | the Companies Act, | of the Companies
Companies Act, 2013 | 2013 and Articles of | Act, 2013 and
and Articles of | Association of the | Articles of
Association ~ of  the | Company, subject to | Association of the
Company, subject to the | the approval of the | Company, subject
approval of the members | members of the | to the approval of
of the Company in this | Company in this | the members of the
AGM. AGM. Company in this
AGM.
Justification  for NA NA NA NA
choosing the
appointees as
Independent
Director
Remuneration last Nil Nil Nil INR 3 Crore p.a. plus
drawn from the perquisites & allowances
Company
Date of first April 30, 2015 May 16, 2019 May 16, 2019 December 22, 2000
appointment  on
the Board of
Directors of the
Company
Shareholding in Nil Nil Nil 90,51,624  Equity  Shares
the Company (as (15.71%)
on the date of
AGM Notice)
Relationship with None None None None
other Directors,
Managers and
other Key
Managerial
Personnel(s) of the
Company
Number of Board 4 N.A. N.A. 5
meetings attended | (one Board Meeting was
during the | attended by the alternate
financial year director of Mr. Jing
2018-19 Xiadong)
List of Paytm E-Commerce Nil Paytm E-|e One97 Communications
Directorships held Private Limited Commerce Private India Limited
in other Limited e Paytm Payments Bank
companies, as on Limited
March 31, 2019 e Paytm E-Commerce

Private Limited
Paytm Money Limited




Paytm Entertainment
Limited
Paytm Wholesale
Commerce Private Limited
Paytm General Insurance
Limited
Paytm Life Insurance
Limited
Paytm Financial Services
Limited
Applied  Life  Private
Limited
Aryan Ayurveda Private
Limited

Membership/ Nil
Chairmanship of
Committees of
Board of Directors
of other
companies, as on
March 31, 2019

Nil

Nil

Paytm Money Limited
(NRC)- Member

One 97 Communications
India Limited (Audit
Committee and NRC)-
Member

Paytm Entertainment
Private Limited (Audit
Committee and NRC)-
Member

Paytm Payments Bank
Limited (NRC, IT
Strategy, Risk
Management,
Management/Supervisory,
Special Committee of the
Board for Monitoring and
follow-up cases of Fraud
(SCBF) and Outsourcing)
— Member

(CSR — Chairman)

Place: Tokyo, Japan
Date: September 04, 2019

Regd Off: 1% Floor, Devika Tower
Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019
CIN- U72200DL2000PLC108985
Website- www.one97.com

By Order of the Board of Directors
For One97 Communications Limited

Sd/-
Vijay Shekhar Sharma
Managing Director
DIN: 00466521



Disclosure as required under Section II of Part II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 and the
corresponding Rules, is given hereunder:

I. General Information:
1. Nature of Industry: The Company carries on the business inter alia to provide telecom based value added

services to various telecom operators across the territory, payment gateway aggregator services, ticket
services, utility bills payments, insurance, hotel booking services etc.

2. Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production: Not Applicable, since the Company has
already commenced the business activity. The Company was incorporated on 22" December, 2000.

3. In _case of new Companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by
financial institutions appearing in the prospectus: Not Applicable.

4. Financial Performance based on given indicators:

Particulars 2018-19 (INR in Cr)
Total Income 3,391.61
Depreciation 75.81
Tax expense 0.12
Total Expenses 7,254.80
Net Profit/(Loss) (3,959.64)
Paid-up Capital 5.75
Reserves & Surplus 5,980.75

5. Foreign Investment or Collaboration, if any:

The Company has received Foreign Direct Investment under FDI guidelines. As on the date of this notice,
out of total paid-up capital, 83.04% (approx.) is held by Foreign Investor under Foreign Direct Investment
scheme of RBI. Further, the Company has following wholly owned subsidiaries and joint ventures overseas:

Name of the Entity Status Country
One97 Communications Singapore | Wholly owned Subsidiary Singapore
Private Limited

One97 Communications Nigeria | Wholly owned Subsidiary Nigeria
Limited

One97 USA Inc. Wholly owned Subsidiary USA
One97 Communications FZ-LLC Wholly owned Subsidiary Dubai
Ciqual Limited Joint Venture United Kingdom

II. Information about the appointee:

1. Background Details: Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma is the Managing Director, Founder and Promoter of One97
Communications Limited. As a Managing Director, he is responsible for strategies and directions for
sustainable growth of the Company. As he is the promoter of the Company, he is associated with One97
Communications Limited since its incorporation i.e. year 2000. Under his dynamic leadership, the Company
has attained the respectable position and grown as a pioneer in the mobile VAS across leading telecom
operator, become a leader in mobile wallet space, consolidate payment gateway aggregator services etc.

Mpr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma has a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering from Delhi College of Engineering.



I1I.

2. Past Remuneration: Remuneration drawn by Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma for the period April 01, 2018 to
March 31, 2019 is Rs. 3 crores and other perquisites & allowances approved in the terms of appointment.

3. Recognition or Awards: In 2015, Vijay was recognized as Entrepreneur of year by Earns & Young and in
same year as Future Leaders at the NASSCOM Future Leaders event. In addition, he is recognized among
the most Innovative CEOs of 2014 by Inc India. In 2011, Vijay Shekhar Sharma was featured in Inc 500
survey about India’s Fastest Growing Mid-sized Companies. In Addition, he won Mobile Entrepreneur of
the Year at WAT Awards. In 2010, he was selected as the VAS Person of the Year at the IAMAIL’s India
Digital Awards.

4. Job Profile and his suitability: Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Managing Director, is responsible for day-to-day
management & strategic decisions of the Company, subject to overall superintendence, control and direction
of the Board of Directors. Being a founder of the Company, he has brought the Company to great
achievements. Taking into consideration his qualifications and expertise in the business segment and, he is
best suited for the responsibilities of current assigned role.

5. Remuneration Proposed for the FY 2019-20: There is no increase in remuneration paid in FY 2019-20.
Hence the remuneration proposed is INR 3,00,00,000 and other perquisites & allowances as detailed in the
resolution.

6. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profile of the position and
person (in case of expatriates the relevant details would be with respect to the country of his origin): With
increased size and turnover, it is also imperative for any ITES company to have highly experienced
professionals having specialized knowledge and skills to understand and project the market trend, consumer
behavior, consumption pattern and many relevant indicators for better product mix. It also requires
expertise for appropriate fund allocation, optimum utilization of various resources in the business. Mr. Vijay
Shekhar Sharma has successfully proved his expertise in very effective manner and drove the Company
towards the growth over the period of time. Hence, the Board of Directors considers that the remuneration
proposed to them is justified commensurate with other organizations of the similar type, size and nature in
the industry.

7. Pecuniary Relationship directly or indirectly with the company or relationship with managerial personnel, if
any: Apart from receiving the remuneration proposed, Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma holds 90,51,624 equity
shares in the Company. Additionally, his brother, Mr. Ajay Shekhar Sharma holds office and place of profit
under Section 188(f) of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma or any of his relative does not
have any other pecuniary relationship with the Company.

Other Information:

1. Reason of loss or inadequate profits: The Company has incurred huge capital expenditure in creating a
brand and establishing its business activity. We have incurred a considerable amount in various capital &
operational expenditures which resulted into losses during the financial year.

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement:

The Company is focusing on strengthening its position in various business segments like Payments Bank,
Insurance and Insurance Broking, travel ticketing, hotel, mobile wallet services etc. and that would result
into better turnover in coming fiscal years.

We have created “Paytm” as a popular brand and platform which provides ease of online marketplace,
mobile wallets, recharges and Payment Gateways Aggregator services, Payments Banking Services etc. We
are committed to grow this business further and turn it into a profitable business in the years ahead.

3. Expected Increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms:

The business and consumer confidence is expected to improve in the coming years, geared with a
streamlined organizational design, the company intends to grow its businesses. The improvement in



consumer sentiment and increased consumer spending through online platforms will enable the growth
momentum to pick up. The management continuous to be cautiously optimistic towards the external
economic environment and expects consumer demand to become more consistent and robust in the ensuing
financial years. Further, various policy decisions taken would act as growth channel for the Company which
would contribute in increased revenues and higher margins. Further, a number of initiatives for productivity
and profitability, increased investments in technology, customer engagements, loyalty programs and
improving the customer experience, have shown encouraging results.

IV. Disclosures:

The detailed elements of remuneration including other perquisites are given in the respective resolution &
explanatory statement. The disclosures as required under this section shall be disclosed in the Board of Director’s
report for the FY 2019-20.
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a. the audited financial statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019, the report of the Board of
Director’s and Auditor’s thereon; and
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Auditor’s report thereon,
2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma who retires by rotation and, being eligible offers himself
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3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Jing Xiandong who retires by rotation and, being eligible offers himself for
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4. To approve the appointment of Mr. Todd Anthony Combs as Director.
5. To approve the appointment of Mr. Michael Yuen Jen Yao as Director.
6. To approve increase ESOP Pool grant options and amendment in One97 Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2008.
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8. To approve remuneration of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Managing Director for FY 2019-20.
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ONE97 COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Registered Office: First Floor, Devika Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019
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Full name of the Shareholder in Block Letters:
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I hereby record my presence at the 19" Annual General Meeting of the Company, held at First Floor, Devika
Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 on Monday, September 30, 2019 at 09:00 A.M.
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Dear Members,

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Payim

The Directors take pleasure in presenting the Nineteenth Directors’ Report of the Company together with the Audited
Financial Statements and Accounts for the year ended 3 1st March, 2019.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Consolidated (INR in Crores)

Standalone (INR in Crores)

2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18
Revenue from Operations 3,232.01 3,052.90 3,049.87 2,982.22
Other Income 347.66 256.71 341.74 247.16
TOTAL REVENUE 3,579.67 3,309.61 3,391.61 3,229.38
Less: Expenses
Employee Benefit Expense 856.22 613.98 627.78 528.66
Finance Cost 16.87 18.88 16.50 18.39
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 99.51 78.88 75.81 68.92
Other Expenses 6,757.54 4,152.79 6,534.71 4,082.11
TOTAL EXPENSES 7,730.14 4,864.53 7,254.80 4,698.08
Profit/Loss before share of result of (4,150.47) (1,554.92) (3,863.19) (1,468.70)
associates and taxation from continuing
operations
Share of result of associates / joint venture 14.61 (30.81) - -
entities
Profit/Loss before exceptional items and tax (4,135.86) (1,585.73) (3,863.19) (1,468.70)
from continuing operations
Exceptional items (82.52) 3.40 (91.02) (2.30)
Profit/Loss before Tax from Continuing (4,218.38) (1,582.33) (3,954.21) (1,471.00)
Operations
Tax Expense (6.49) 1.53 0.12 (1.01)
Profit/Loss from Continuing Operations (4,211.89) (1,583.86) (3,954.33) (1,469.99)
Profit/Loss for the period from (5.31) (20.48) (5.31) (20.48)
discontinued operations
Profit/Loss for the year (4,217.20) (1,604.34) (3,959.64) (1,490.47)
Total Comprehensive Income/Loss (4,221.81) (1,606.05) (3,959.78) (1,491.23)
Loss attributable to Equity holders of the (4,167.98) (1,589.46) - -
parent
Loss attributable to Non-controlling interests (49.22) (14.88) - -
Total Comprehensive Income/Loss (4,172.93) (1,591.17) - -

attributable to Equity holders of the parent




Total Comprehensive Income/Loss (48.88) (14.88) - -
attributable to Non-controlling interests

Basic & Diluted EPS for continuing (742.17) (311.42) (705.02) (291.77)
operations
Basic & Diluted EPS for discontinued (0.95) (4.06) (0.95) (4.00)
operations
Basic & Diluted EPS for continuing and (743.12) (315.48) (705.97) (295.83)

discontinued operations

COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE

Our total revenue on standalone basis increased to INR 3,391.61 crores in FY 2018-19 from INR 3,229.38 crores in FY
2017-18. Our total income on consolidated basis increased to INR 3,579.67 crores in FY 2018-19 from INR 3,309.61 crores
in FY 2017-18.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors have not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2018-19.

CHANGES IN THE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Authorized Share Capital:

During the financial year under review, the authorized share capital of the Company has been reclassified on June 2, 2018
and as on date of the report, the authorized share capital of the Company is INR 1041,066,000 comprising of 10,41,06,600
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each.

Issued, Subscribed, Paid-up Share Capital:

During the year under review, the Company has issued and allotted following equity shares:

(a) OnMay 18,2018 27,619 equity shares of INR 10/- each were allotted to various employees under the Employees Stock
option Scheme (ESOP 2008);

(b) On May 26, 2018 10,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each were allotted by way of preferential cum private placement
basis. The Company had received collectively INR 8,00,00,000 in relation to the above equity shares issued;

(c) On June 09, 2018 1,16,001 equity shares of INR 10/- each were allotted by way of preferential cum private placement
basis for consideration other than cash, i.e. in exchange of the equity shares of Orbgen Technologies Private Limited
(“OTPL”), at a ratio of 1: 0.12, i.e. in exchange for every 1 equity share of OTPL held, 0.12 equity shares of the
Company has been issued (at an implied issue price of INR 10,560 per equity share of the Company);

(d) On August 17, 2018 1,983 equity shares of INR 10/- each were allotted to various employees under the Employees
Stock option Scheme (ESOP 2008);

(e) On September 27, 2018 17,02,713 equity shares of INR 10/- each were allotted by way of preferential cum private
placement basis. The Company had received collectively INR 21,79,04,10,000 in relation to the above equity shares
issued;

(f) On December 14, 2018 41,549 equity shares of INR 10/- each were allotted to various employees under the Employees
Stock option Scheme (ESOP 2008);



(g) On February 21, 2019 2,17,034 equity shares of INR 10/- each were allotted by way of preferential cum private
placement basis for consideration other than cash, i.e. in exchange of the equity shares of Little Internet Private Limited
(“Little Internet”), at a ratio of 1: 0.020, i.e. in exchange for every 1 equity share of Little Internet held, 0.020 equity
shares of the Company has been issued (at an implied issue price of INR 7,952.02 per equity share of the Company);

(h) On February 21, 2019 75,066 equity shares of INR 10/- each were allotted to various employees under the Employees
Stock option Scheme (ESOP 2008); and

(i) On March 1, 2019 16,630 equity shares of INR 10/- each to various employees under the Employees Stock option
Scheme (ESOP 2008)

Post issuance of above mentioned shares, the issued and paid up equity share capital of the Company as on date of this
report stands at INR 57,53,38,660.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board met 5 times in financial year 2018-19 viz., on 06.04.2018, 18.05.2018, 17.08.2018, 14.12.2018 and 01.03.2019.
The maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
During the period under review, following Directors had resigned/ ceased to be director:

(a) Mr. Amitabh Kumar Singhal with effect from 01.03.2019.
(b) Mr. Kabir Misra with effect from 01.03.2019.
(c) Mr. Saurabh Jalan with effect from 01.03.2019.

Further, the following Directors were appointed during the period under review:

(a) Mr. Saurabh Jalan as an Alternate Director to Mr. Kabir Misra with effect from 06.04.2018.

(b) Mr. Mukul Arora as an Alternate Director to Mr. Ravi Chandra Adusumalli with effect from 18.05.2018.

(c¢) Mr. Munish Ravinder Varma as an Additional Director with effect from 01.03.2018- Investor Director by SVF India
Holdings (Cayman) Limited. Further, he was appointed as a Director of the Company in the Extra-ordinary general
meeting of the Company held on March 22, 2019.

(d) Mr. Kabir Misra and Ms. Pallavi Shardul Shroff who were appointed as additional director, regularized and were
appointed as Director of the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on September 28, 2018.

The Company has received declaration from the Independent Directors declaring that they meet the criteria of Independence
in terms of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that there is no change in their status of Independence.

During the period under review, Mr. Madhur Deora and Mr. Vimal Chawla continue to hold the position of Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary, respectively, of the Company.

Further, Mr. Vimal Chawla, Company Secretary of the Company has resigned from the Company with effect from May 8,
2019. The Company is in the process of identifying the replacement and shall make the appointment at the earliest.

In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma and Mr. Jing Xiandong,
Directors of the Company, are liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company and being

eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

As on date of the report the composition of Board of Directors is as below:



SI. No. | Name Designation

1. Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma Managing Director
2. Mr. Ravi Chandra Adusumalli Director

3. Mr. Jing Xiandong Director

4, Mr. Joesph Chung Tsai Director

5. Mr. Munish Ravinder Varma Director

6. Mr. Mark Schwartz Director

7. Ms. Pallavi Shardul Shroff Director

8. Mr. Chen Yan Alternate Director
9. Mr. Ting Hong Kenny Ho Alternate Director
10 Mr. Mukul Arora Alternate Director

COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Company has following statutory committees of Board as required under the Companies Act, 2013 as at 31°' March,
2019:

1) Audit Committee

2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

As on the date of this report, the composition of the committees as per applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013
and rules are as under:

Name of the Committee Composition of Committee

Audit Committee 1. Mr. Mark Schwartz, Member

Mr. Ravi Chandra Adusumalli, Member
Ms. Pallavi Shardul Shroff, Member
Mr. Ravi Chandra Adusumalli, Member
Mr. Jing Xiandong, Member

. Mark Schwartz, Member

Ms. Pallavi Shardul Shroff, Member
Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Member
Mr. Ravi Chandra Adusumalli, Member
Mr. Mark Schwartz, Member

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

Corporate  Social Responsibility
Committee

S e el
=

POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND POLICY ON REMUNERATION

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(e) and Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the policy on appointment of Board Members
including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director and the policy on
remuneration of Directors, KMP and other employees is attached as Annexure-1 to this report.

BOARD EVALUATION
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has undergone peer evaluation of all Board members,

annual performance evaluation of its own performance, as well as the evaluation of the working of the Board Committees.
This evaluation is led by the Chairman of the Board or Nomination and Compensation Committee with specific focus on



the performance and effective functioning of the Board. The evaluation process also considers the time spent by each of the
Board members, core competencies, personal characteristics, accomplishment of specific responsibilities and expertise.

The performance evaluation has been done by the entire Board of Directors, except the Director concerned being evaluated.
The criteria for performance evaluation are as follows:

e That the composition of the Board is appropriate with the right mix of knowledge and skills sufficient to maximize
Company performance in regard to future strategies;

e That the Board operates in a congenial environment which facilitates open and meaningful communication, equal
participation and opportunity and timely resolution of issues;

e That the Board sets out the targets to be achieved every year with a clear vision and works toward its
accomplishment;

e That the Board stays abreast of issues and trends affecting the business of the Company, anticipates problems and
react to the situations in a timely manner;

e That the Board meetings are called at suitable intervals and proper notice and agenda is provided to all the Directors
in a timely manner;

e That the Board meetings deliberates issues on length, takes decisions in a timely manner while maintaining a balance
between presentations and discussions;

e That the Board receives accurate and useful information, based upon which decisions to be taken in a timely
manner;

e That the Board speaks in “one voice” when directing or delegating to management and bring discussions to a
conclusion with clear direction to management;

e That the number of meetings during the year is adequate for the Board to fulfill its responsibilities;

e That the Board is effective in implementing best corporate governance practices for creating transparency across
the Company;

e That the Board follows a systematic approach for following-up the decisions taken during the meetings;

e That the Board provides ample time to all the members to provide their comments on the minutes of the meetings.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company is committed to provide a healthy environment to all its employees and thus has zero tolerance on any
discrimination and/or harassment in any form. The Company has in place a Prevention of Sexual Harassment (POSH) policy
in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013. An internal complaints committee has been formed where complaint can be made by the aggrieved employees.
The policy of “Prevention of Sexual Harassment” at workplace is available on intranet for employees. Penal consequences
of Sexual Harassment (”SH”) and the constitution of the Committee is displayed at conspicuous places. The posters are also
displayed in regional languages at all offices. During the year, 1 (One) case was reported and dealt by Internal Complaints
Committee under the policy.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board inter alia, administer and monitor the Employees’ Stock
Option Scheme (ESOP Scheme) of the Company in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rule framed
thereunder. The Company maintains a Register of Employees Stock Option wherein the particulars are being entered
forthwith for option granted in terms of Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In terms of the Rule 12 of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 disclosure under ESOP scheme are made
as under:



Option Granted

371,915

Options Vested

362,016 Vested options outstanding at the end
of the year March 31, 2019

Option Exercised

157,960

Exercise Price

e INR 10 for 4,647
INR 49 for 945
INR 180 for 10,269

INR 90 for 142,099

Option Lapsed

241,733
(Forfeit — 146,172; Cancelled — 95,561)

Variation of terms of options

During the year under review, the Company
has cancelled 95,561 outstanding unvested
employee stock options, with prior consent of
the employees.

Money realized by exercise of option

INR 14,730,105

options during any one year equal to or
exceeding of issued capital (excluding
outstanding warrants and conversions)
of the Company at the time of grant.

The total number of shares arising as a result | 162,847

of exercise of options

Total no. of Options in force 960,743

Employee wise details of option granted to:

a. Key Managerial Personnel Vimal Chawla, Company Secretary-476

options*

b. Any other employee who receives a |e N Ramkumar— 29,751
grant of options in any one year of | e Jose Baby Manikathuparambil — 20,405
options amounting to 5% or more of
options granted during that year

c. Identified employees who were granted | Nil

* ESOP letter was issued during the financial year 2017-18.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATES:

As on 31% March 2019, your Company had the following subsidiaries, joint venture and associates:

Sr. No. | Name of Subsidiary Company Percentage Holding
1. One97 Communications India Limited 100%
2. Paytm Entertainment Limited 100%
3. Paytm Money Limited 100%
4. Paytm Financial Services Ltd. 100%
5. Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 100%
6. Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 100%
7. Balance Technology Private Limited 100%
8. Cube26 Software Private Limited 100%




9. QorQl Private Limited 100%
10. Little Internet Private Limited 63%
11. Nearbuy India Private Limited” 63%
12. Urja Money Private Limited 62%
13. Xceed IT Solution Private Limited® 55%
14, Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited"” 55%
15. Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 55%
16. Paytm Payments Bank Limited 49%
17. Paytm Life Insurance Limited 49%
18. Paytm General Insurance Limited 49%
19. Loginext Solutions Private Limited 31%
20. Socomo Technologies Private Limited 11%
21. One97 Communications FZ-LLC 100%
22. One97 Communications Nigeria Limited 100%
23. One97 Communications Singapore Private Limited 100%
24, One97 (U.S.A.) Inc. 100%
25. One97 Communications Tanzania Private Limited” 100%
26. One97 Communications Rwanda Private Limited” 100%
One97 Communications Bangladesh Private 70%

27. T

Limited
28. One97 Communications Uganda Limited" 100%
29. One 97 Malaysia Sdn. Bdn.” 100%
30. One 97 Benin SA” 100%
31. One 97 Ivory Coast SA” 100%
32. Paytm Labs Inc.” 100%
33 One Nirle Seven Communication Nepal Private 100%

' Limited

* Subsidiary of One97 Communications Singapore Private Limited
** Joint venture of Paytm Entertainment Limited

# Subsidiary of Little Internet Private Limited

$ Subsidiary of Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited

Your Company had complied with all applicable provisions under the Companies Act, 2013 and Foreign Exchange
Management Act (“FEMA”) 1999 in relation to investment and the certificate from statutory auditor in respect to

downstream investment compliance under FEMA will be procured.

A report on the performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries and associates as per the Companies Act, 2013 is

provided in Annexure-2.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, an extract of the annual return in the prescribed format

is appended as Annexure-3 to the Board Report.




PARTICULAR OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the year under review, the Company has not provided any guarantees covered under section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013. The Investments and the Loans made by the Company are provided in the standalone financial statements. (Refer
Note no. 5, 6, 7(a), 7(b) and 7(c)).

PARTICULAR OF CONTRACT AND ARRANGEMENT MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

With reference to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, all contracts and arrangements with related parties under
Section 188(1) of the Act, entered by the Company during the financial year, were in the ordinary course of business and
on arm’s length basis. During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract or arrangement with related parties
which could be considered as ‘material’ (i.e. transactions which were required to be placed before the members of the
Company) according to the policy of the Company on materiality of Related Party Transactions.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

In terms of the provisions of Sections 73 of the Act read with the relevant Rules of the Act, the Company had no opening
or closing balances and also has not accepted any deposits during the year under review and as such, no amount of principal
or interest was outstanding as on March 31, 2019.

DISCLOSURES OF AMOUNTS, IF ANY, TRANSFERRED TO ANY RESERVES

Due to the losses incurred by the Company during the period under review it is not proposed to carry any amount to any
reserves. Hence, disclosure under Section 134(3)(j) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not required.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Your Company has established a robust system of internal controls to ensure that assets are safeguarded and transactions
are appropriately authorized, recorded and reported. The Company’s internal control system comprises internal audit carried
out by KPMG, Chartered Accountants and periodical review by management. The Audit Committee of the Board addresses
significant issues raised by both, the Internal Auditors and the Statutory Auditors. The Company has also implemented
compliance tool to centrally monitor the compliances of all applicable laws to the Company. The Company had engaged
independent agency to conduct independent check on the effectiveness and robustness on the Internal Financial Control
System. The Company believes that the overall internal control system is dynamic and reflects the current requirements at
all times, hence ensuring that appropriate procedures and controls, in operating and monitoring practices are in place.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The Company is not required to maintain any cost records as specified by the Central Government under Sub-section (1) of
Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

One97 recognizes human resource to be the most valuable asset of the Company. People development continues to be a key
focus area at One97. The Company continues to pay a focused attention on the development of human relations within the
organization. One97 believes in building a culture of innovation and creativity where our employees are inspired to achieve
excellence in their area of functioning.

A statement containing the names of employees employed during the financial year ended 31 March, 2019 as under Rule
5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 may be availed by the
members by making a written request to the Company Secretary of the Company at the e-mail id: compliance@paytm.com.




RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has a robust Risk Management Framework to identify, evaluate business risks and opportunities. This
framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the business objectives and enhance the Company’s
competitive advantage. The business risk framework defines the risk management approach across the enterprise at various
levels including documentation and reporting. The framework has different risk models which help in identifying risks
trend, exposure and potential impact analysis at a Company level as also separately for business segments. The Company
has identified various risks and also has mitigation plans for each risk identified. The Board of Director periodically review
the Risk Management Framework & approves the necessary changes required therein.

Risk mitigation continues to be a key area of concern for the Company, which has regularly invested in insuring itself
against unforeseen risks. The Company’s insurable assets like server, computer equipment, office equipment, furniture &
fixtures etc. have been adequately insured against major risks. The Company has also taken appropriate Directors’ &
Officers’ Liability Insurance Policy to cover the risk on account of claims, if any, filed against the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In terms of the Section 135(5) of Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not fulfilling the criteria of having average net
profit for immediate three preceding financials years. Accordingly, the Company is not required to spend amount in the
CSR activities during the financial year.

VIGIL MECHANISM/ ANTI BRIBERY & WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism/ Anti Bribery & Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instance of fraud and
mismanagement, if any. The policy aims that its directors, officers and employees strictly comply with all applicable laws
and regulations and observe the highest standards of business ethics in India and foreign countries.

In addition, the Company has also set up a whistle-blower helpline, to enable employees to report any violations of this
Policy. The identity of the complainants are kept confidential during investigations and may be disclosed only on a ‘need-
to-know’ basis to others. The Company also accepts anonymous complaints.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Total foreign exchange earned (accrual basis) by the Company during the year under review was INR 53,54,11,220 as
compared to INR 35,46,51,903 during the previous financial year 2017-18.

Total foreign exchange expenditure incurred (accrual basis) by the Company during the year under review was INR
1,809,376,662 as compared to INR 34,71,23,525 during the previous financial year 2017-18.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Being in service sector, the particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption as required to be disclosed
under the Act are not applicable to the Company.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no material litigations outstanding as on March 31, 2019.



OTHER DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the report, there have been no material changes and commitments, which can affect the
financial position of the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of report.

The Board of Directors informs the member that during the financial year there has been no material changes, except as
disclosed elsewhere in the report:

o In the nature of Company’s business.
o Generally in the classes of business in which the Company has interest.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm
that:
a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

b. the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of
the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

c. the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

d. the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e. the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively.

f. the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

STATUTORY AUDITORS & AUDITOR’S REPORT
Statutory Auditors

At the 18th Annual General Meeting held on September 28, 2018, M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (FRN
No. 012754N/N500016), were appointed as statutory auditors of the Company to hold office till the conclusion of the 23rd
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The points raised in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments. The Auditors’
Report is enclosed with the Financials Statements of the Company. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any adverse
remarks or qualifications.

Secretarial Auditors and Secretarial Standards
M/s PI & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries were appointed to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for

the FY 2018-19, as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules framed thereunder.
The Secretarial Audit Report for fiscal 2018-19 forms part of the Annual Report as Annexure-4 to this Report. The



Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation and adverse remark. The Company has adhered to
the applicable Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2)
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India during the Financial Year 2018-19.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company strives to attain high standards of corporate governance while interacting with all the stakeholders. The
increasing diversity of the investing community and the integrated nature of global capital markets render corporate
governance a vital issue for investors. The Company believes that timely disclosures, transparent accounting policies and a
strong independent Board go a long way in maintaining good corporate governance, preserving shareholders trust and
maximizing long term corporate value. In pursuit of corporate goals, the Company accords high importance to transparency,
accountability and integrity in its dealings. Our philosophy on Corporate Governance is driven towards welfare of all the
Stakeholders and the Board of Directors remains committed towards this end.

The Board of Directors supports the broad principles of Corporate Governance and lays strong emphasis on its role to align
and direct the actions of the Company in achieving its objectives.
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

1) Objective and purpose

2)

3)

4)

a)

To lay down criteria and terms and conditions with regard to identifying persons who are qualified to become
Directors (Executive and Non-Executive) and persons who may be appointed in Senior Management and
Key Managerial positions and to determine remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial personnel and Other
employees.

To determine remuneration based on the Company’s size, financial position, trends and practices on
remuneration prevailing in peer companies in the similar industry.

To provide them reward, linked directly to their efforts, performance, dedication and achievement relating to
the Company’s operations.

To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial persons
and create competitive advantage.

Scope of the Policy

The policy shall be applicable to the following in the Company:

a)
b)
c)

d)

Directors
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Senior Management

Other employees of the Company

Constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Board shall determine the membership of the Committee.

The Committee will comprise at least three members of non- executive directors, a majority of whom shall
be independent directors.

One of the independent non-executive directors shall be designated by the Board to serve as the
Committee’s Chairman.

Appointment criteria and qualifications

a)

Letter of appointment shall be issued based on the recommendations of the Committee on the basis of the
guidelines for the same under the Companies Act, 2013 or the Company Internal policy.

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience for
appointment to the position of Directors, KMPs & Senior Management.



5)

c)

h)

A potential candidate should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position
he/she is considered for appointment. The Committee shall review qualifications, expertise and experience,
as well as the ethical and moral qualities possessed by such person, commensurate to the requirement for
the position.

The Committee shall determine the suitability of appointment of a person to the Board of Directors of the
Company by ascertaining the fit and proper criteria’ of the candidate. The candidate shall, at the time of
appointment, as well as at the time of renewal of directorship, fill in such form as approved by the
Committee to enable the Committee to determine the ‘Fit and Proper Criteria’. The indicative form to be
filled out is placed as Annexure 1 to this policy.

The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as whole time director who has
attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be
extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution
based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for
extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

The Committee shall ensure that there is an appropriate induction & training programme in place for new
directors, members of senior management, and KMP.

The Committee shall make recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the
continuation in office of any director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an
executive director as an employee of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their service
contract.

The Committee shall recommend any necessary changes to the Board.

Term / Tenure

a)

Managing Director/Whole-time Director

i) The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Chairman & Managing Director, Executive
Chairman, Managing Director or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time.

ii) No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term of the Director
appointed.

Independent Director

i) An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five years on the Board of the Company and
will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of
such appointment in the Board's report.

ii) No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent
Director shall be eligible for re- appointment in the Company as Independent Director after the expiry of
three years from the date of cessation as such in the Company. The Committee shall take into



consideration all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules, as
existing or as may be amended from time to time.

6) Remuneration

a)

In discharging its responsibilities, the Committee shall have regard to the following policy objectives:

i) To ensure the Company’s remuneration structures are equitable and aligned with the long-term
interests of the Company and its shareholders;

ii) To attract and retain competent executives;
iii) To plan short and long-term incentives to retain talent;
iv) To ensure that any severance benefits are justified.

The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the whole-time director, KMP, senior management &
other employees will be determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for approval.

The remuneration to be paid to the MD and/or whole-time director shall be in accordance with the
percentage/ slabs/ conditions laid down in the Articles of Association of the Company and as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under.

Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure of the Senior Management excluding the
Board of Directors comprising of members of Management one level below the Executive Director, including
the Functional Heads will be jointly decided by the Chairman & Managing Director and Head- Human
resources.

Remuneration to Whole-time/ Managing Director, KMP, senior management:

i) Fixed pay — The MD and/or whole-time director / KMP and senior management shall be eligible for a
monthly remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and
the shareholders wherever applicable. The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites
including, employer’s contribution towards provident fund, pension scheme, medical expenses, club
fees and other perquisites shall be decided and approved by the Board on the recommendation of the
Committee.

i) Minimum Remuneration — If in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are
inadequate, it shall pay remuneration to its MD and/or Whole-time Director in accordance with the
provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and if the Company is not able to comply with
such provisions, previous approval of the Central Government shall be required to be obtained.

Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Director:

i)  Remuneration — The remuneration / commission shall be fixed as per the slabs and conditions
mentioned in the Articles of Association of the Company and with the provisions of Companies Act,
2013 along with the rules made there under.



7)

8)

9)

ii) Sitting Fees — The Non- Executive/ Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for
attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not
exceed the limits prescribed under Companies Act, 2013.

Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or
under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee may recommend to the Board with reasons
recorded in writing, removal of a director, KMP or senior management personnel or functional heads, subject to
the provisions and compliance of the Act, rules and regulations.

Retirement

The director, KMP, senior management & functional heads shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 along with the rules made there under and the prevailing policy of the Company. The
Board will have the discretion to retain the Directors, KMPs & Senior Management even after attaining the
retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

Diversity

a) The Company aims to enhance the effectiveness of the Board by diversifying it and obtain the benefit out of
it by better and improved decision making. In order to ensure that the Company’s boardroom has
appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are imperative for the execution
of its business strategy, the Company shall consider a number of factors, including but not limited to skills,
industry experience, background, race and gender.

b) The policy shall confirm with the following two principles for achieving diversity on its Board:

i)  Decisions pertaining to recruitment, promotion and remuneration of the directors will be based on their
performance and competence; and

ii) For embracing diversity and being inclusive, best practices to ensure fairmess and equality shall be
adopted and there shall be zero tolerance for unlawful discrimination and harassment of any sort
whatsoever.

c) In order to ensure a balanced composition of executive, non-executive and independent directors on the
Board, the Company shall consider candidates from a wide variety of backgrounds, without discrimination
based on the following factors:

i) Gender - The Company shall not discriminate on the basis of gender in the matter of appointment of
director on the Board. The Company encourages the appointment of women at senior executive levels
to achieve a balanced representation on the Board.

ii) Age - Subject to the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013, age shall be no bar for appointment
of an individual as director on the Board of the Company.



i) Nationality and ethnicity - The Company shall promote having a boardroom comprising of people
from different ethnic backgrounds so that the directors may efficiently contribute their thorough
knowledge, sources and understanding for the benefit of Company’s business;

iv) Physical disability - The Company shall not discriminate on the basis of any immaterial physical
disability of a candidate for appointment on Company’s Board, if he/she is able to efficiently discharge
the assigned duties.

v) Educational qualification - The proposed candidate shall possess desired team building traits that
effectively contribute to his/ her position in the Company. The Directors of the Company shall have a
mix of finance, legal and management background, that taken together, provide the Company with
considerable experience in a range of activities including varied industries, education, government,
banking, and investment.

10) Minutes of Committee Meeting

Proceedings of all meetings must be recorded as minutes and signed by the Chairman of the Committee at the
subsequent meeting. Minutes of the Committee meetings will be tabled at the subsequent Board and Committee
meeting.

11) Disclosure of this policy

The policy shall be disclosed in the Annual report of the Company, as required under Companies Act, 2013,
Rules made there under and the Listing Agreement, as amended from time to time and as may be required
under any other law for the time being in force.

12) Review

The Committee as and when required shall assess the adequacy of this policy and make any necessary or
desirable amendments to ensure it remains consistent with the Board’s objectives, current law and best practice.



AOC-1

SALIENT FEATURES OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SUBSIDIARY / ASSOCIATES / JOINT VENTURES AS PER COMPANIES ACT, 2013

(Information in respect of each subsidiary are presented with amounts in Rs.)

Part A: Subsidiaries

Annexure-2

Reporting
Currency &
exchange
rate, if in
Name of Subsidiary Reporting foreign Reserve & Profit before Provisions for Profit After Proposed %
S. No. Company Period bsidiary Share capital Surplus Total Assets Total Liabilities Investments Turnover Taxation Taxation Taxation Dividend shareholding
One97 Communications
1 India Limited April to March INR 831,500,000 (8,548,355) 827,950,256 4,998,611 724,335,000 2,382,548 (3,533,167) - (3,533,167) 100%
Paytm Entertainment
2 Limited April to March INR 610,100,000 (7,147,906) 604,349,995 1,392,900 596,783,000 - (6,387,810) - (6,387,810) 100%
Paytm Financial Services
3 Limited April to March INR 20,000,000 1,232,542 21,513,670 281,130 - 1,167,372 834,280 303,517 530,760 100%
4 Paytm Money Limited April to March INR 788,700,000 (405,359,928) 468,228,871 84,888,800 201,587,000 7,626,216 (368,596,584) - (368,596,584) 100%
Mobiquest Mobile
Technologies Private
5 Limited April to March INR 2,745,830 (12,892,759) 118,012,640 128,159,570 - 152,130,880 (28,086,330) - (28,086,330) 55%
Wasteland
Entertainment Private
6 Limited April to March INR 443,410 534,487,804 652,455,343 117,524,130 - 173,150,000 (206,978,532) - (206,978,532) 100%
Urja Money Private
7 Limited April to March INR 26,504,120 15,215,000 72,450,703 30,732,174 8,320,000 18,900,946 (60,045,647) - (60,045,647) 62%
Little Internet Private
8 Limited April to March INR 223,833,960 2,585,887,000 | 2,858,187,000 48,466,000 | 2,746,536,000 141,323,000 (858,865,000) 19,000 (858,884,000) 63%
Orbgen Technoloiges
9 private Limited April to March INR 9,748,800 247,456,103 320,226,904 63,022,000 - 201,184,000 (72,576,000) - (72,576,000) 100%
10 Qorgl Private limited April to March INR 25,709,380 (29,769,424) 2,139,027 6,199,071 - 4,354 (16,513,114) - (16,513,114) 100%
11 Cube 26 Private limtied April to March INR 586,300 4,463,798 5,050,098 - - 48,010 (49,835,085) 3,374,134 (53,209,219) 100%
12 Balance Tech limited April to March INR 150,000 520,280 808,615 138,335 - 976 (13,210,618) 22,519 (13,233,137) 100%
Xceed IT Solutions
13 Private Limited April to March INR 500,000 112,110 767,696 155,586 6,094 (35,106) - (35,106) 55%
Nearbuy India Private
14 Limited April to March INR 4,590,000 (65,611,383) 156,862,000 217,883,000 120,89,000 447,052,000 (509,318,428) (234,815) (509,083,613) 63%
0One97 Communications April to March
Nigeria Limited NGN 29,59,872 (8,59,51,550) 10,74,50,816 19,04,42,493 5,56,91,407 (1,60,70,056) 35,75,244 (1,96,45,301) 100%
15 0.19160
One97 Communications April to March
FZ-LLC AED, 2,08,47,000 (2,06,54,389) 98,580,188 98,387,577 9,42,39,502 4,82,26,014 4,82,26,014 100%
16 18.8698
One97 Communications April to March
Rwanda Private Limited RWF 1,11,38,965 (72,70,278) 51,39,083 12,70,396 21,086 (11,15,610) (11,15,610) 100%
17 0.0769
0One97 Communications April to March -
Tanzania Private Limited TZ5 4,97,57,607 (67,40,429) 7,11,19,160 2,81,01,982 2,73,34,275 56,05,096 56,05,096 100%
18 0.0299




One97 Communications July to
Bangladesh Private June* BDT 45,15,205 3,07,56,962 5,88,09,715 2,35,37,547 1,40,71,887 (6,97,48,436) (6,97,48,436) 70%
19 Limited 0.8154
One 97 Ivory Coast SA Jan to
Dec* XOF 11,85,300 (29,28,918) 19,09,048 36,52,666 (3,32,553) (3,32,553) 100%
20 0.1185
One 97 Benin SA Janto -
Dec* XOF 11,85,300 (2,15,57,423) 1,64,02,159 3,67,74,282 7,33,561 (1,54,56,166) (1,54,56,166) 100%
21 0.1185
One97 Communications April to March -
Uganda Limited UGX 2,47,08,600 (1,79,09,404) 1,33,97,272 65,98,076 9,35,963 (96,48,906) (96,48,906) 100%
22 0.0186
One97 Communications April to March
Singapore Private SGD 50,38,86,213 5,74,22,495 13,19,98,526 1,51,91,255 44,45,01,437 7,72,07,607 5,99,17,233 5,99,17,233 100%
23 Limited 51.1243
Paytm Labs Inc April to March
CAD 31,57,24,545 (1,10,05,42,679) 31,37,63,168 1,09,85,81,302 86,38,90,413 (82,59,04,627) (2,25,48,978) (80,33,55,649) 100%
24 51.9106
One97 (U.S.A.) Inc. January to
December* usD 3,47,57,660 (2,59,28,793) 96,75,511 8,46,644 (2,61,16,258) (2,74,45,828) (4,69,504) (2,69,76,323) 100%
25 69.3220
One 97 Malaysia Sdn April to March
Bdn MYR 16,97,200 20,97,316 9,18,24,934 8,80,30,417 9,01,63,771 31,62,981 5,37,713 26,25,268 100%
26 16.9720
One Nine Seven
Communication Nepal 17 July to NPR 31,02,900 (12,17,897) 31,02,900 12,17,897 (12,17,897) (12,17,897) 100%
27 Private Limited 16 July* 0.6206

* The value provided in the table above are for the period from April to March.




Name of the Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year

No subsidiary have been liquidated or sold during the year 2018-19

Part B: Associates and Joint Venture

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Venture

S. Name of Subsidiary Company Paytm Payment Bank Loginext Solutions Socomo Technologies Paytm General Insurance | Paytm Life Insurance Gamepind Entertainment Private
No. Limited Private Limited Private Limited Limited Limited Limited (formerly known as
Acumen Game Entertainment
Private Limited)
Latest audited / unaudited Balance Sheet 31—0372019 31—03—;019 31—03—;019 31—03—;019 31—03—;019 31—0372019
1 Date Audited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Audited
Date on which the Associate/ Joint Venture
2 was acquired 22-08-2016 10-09-2015 07-11-2015 21-02-2018 21-02-2018 13-11-2017
Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by
3 the company on the year end
19,59,04,900 2,79,443 28,800
No. 49,000 49,000 59,678,300
INR 1,959.049Mn INR 450.50 Mn INR 427.89 Mn INR 0.49 Mn INR 0.49 Mn INR 596.78 Mn
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint
Venture
49% 31% 11% 49% 49% 55%
Extend of Holding% ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’
The Company is holding The Company is Representation on the The Company is holding The Company is holding Joint Venture
significant stake in the holding significant board of directors or significant stake in the significant stake in the
Description of how there is significant Company. stake in the Company. equivalent governing Company. Company.
4 influence body of the investee.
Reason why the Joint Venture is not Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable
5 consolidated
INR 2091.49 Mn INR 55.33 Mn - INR 0.47 Mn INR 0.47 Mn INR 577.83 Mn
Networth attributable to Shareholding as
6 per latest audited Balance Sheet
7 Profit/Loss for the year (Share of Group)
INR 320.52 Mn INR (8.22) Mn - INR (0.02) Mn INR (0.02) Mn INR (164.57) Mn

(i). Considered in Consolidation

(ii). Not Considered in Consolidation

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable




For One97 Communications Limited

Sd/-

Vijay Shekhar Sharma
Chairman

DIN: 00466521

Sd/- Sd/-

Place: Noida, India Vikas Garg Madhur Deora
Date: May 16, 2019 Senior Vice President-Finance Chief Financial Officer



Annexure-3
Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2017
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,

2014]
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
CIN U72200DL2000PLC108985
Registration Date 22.12.2000
Name of the Company One 97 Communications Limited
Category/sub category Company limited by shares/India-non Government Company
Address of registered office of the Company 1% Floor, Devika Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019, India, In
Whether Listed Company - Yes/No No

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:

S. No. | Name and description of the main NIC Codes of the % to total turnover of the Company
product/services Product/Services

1. Payments 63999 56.86
Commerce 63999 34.90

III. PARTICULAR OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE OF THE COMPANIES

Sr. | Name of Subsidiary | Address CIN Holding/ Percentage Applicable
No. | Company Subsidiary/ | of Holding | Section under
Associate the
Companies
Act, 2013
1. | One97 Ist floor Devika | U67100DL2010P Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Communications India | Towers Nehru place, | LC211612
Limited New  Delhi-110019,
India. India
2. | Paytm Entertainment | 136, Ist Floor, | U74999DL2017P Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Limited Devika Tower, Nehru | LC321165

Place, New Delhi-
110019, India, India
3. | Paytm Money Limited | 136, Ist Floor, | U72900DL2017P Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Devika Tower, Nehru | LC323936
Place, New Delhi-
110019, India

4. | Paytm Financial | 136, Ist Floor, Devika | U65999DL2017P Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Services Ltd. Tower, Nehru Place, | LC315115
New Delhi — 110019,
India
5. | Wasteland 242, Floor-G, New | U74120MH2015P | Subsidiary 100% 2(87)

Entertainment Private | Mahalaxmi Silk Mill, | TC271160




Limited

HLN Marg,
Mathurdas Mill
Compound, Delisle

Road. Lower Parel,
Mumbai. Mumbai
City.  Mabharashtra-
400013

6. | Orbgen Technologies | Sree Teja Tower New | U72200TN2007P Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Private Limited No.81, Old No. 130, | TC065476
Ist Floor, Nelson
Manickam Road,
Chennai, Tamil Nadu
600029
7. | Balance  Technology | Ground Floor, Essae | U72900KA2016P Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Private Limited Viashnavi  Sammit, | TC094535
6/B 7th Main, 80 Feet
Road, 3rd Block,
Industrial Layout
Koramangala
Bangalore, Karnataka
-560034
8. | Cube26 Software | 136, Ist Floor, Devika | U72200DL2014P Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Private Limited Tower, Nehru Place, | TC265019
New Delhi — 110019,
India
9. | QorQl Private Limited | 136, Ist Floor, Devika | U72200DL2015P Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Tower, Nehru Place, | TC285987
New Delhi — 110019,
India
10. | Little Internet Private Nova Miller, | U72200KA2015P Subsidiary 63% 2(87)
Limited Thimmaiah Road, | TC080287
Vasanth Nagar,
Bangalore,
Karnataka-560052
11. | Nearbuy India Private | Building No. 22, | U74900DL2010P Subsidiary 63% 2(87)
Limited* Mezzanine Floor, | TC259391
Pushp Vihar
Commercial
Complex, LSC
Madangir, New
Delhi-110062
12. | Ugja Money Private | Ground Floor, Khatau | U93000MH2012P | Subsidiary 62% 2(87)
Limited Building, 8, Alkesh | TC237284
Dinesh Mody Marg,
Fort Mumbai,
Maharashtra-400001
13. | Xceed IT Solution | F-1/171, Lajpat | U72200DL2005P Subsidiary 55% 2(87)
Private Limited® Nagar-1, Delhi- | TC139611
110024
14. | Gamepind 136, Ist Floor, | U74999DL2017P Joint 55% 2(6)
Entertainment Private | Devika Tower, Nehru | TC325912 Venture
Limited"™” Place, New Delhi-

(Formerly known as
Acumen Game
Entertainment Private
Limited

110019, India




15. | Mobiquest Mobile | F-1/171, Lajpat | U22130DL2007P Subsidiary 55% 2(87)
Technologies Private | Nagar-1, Delhi- | TC158782
Limited 110024
16. | Paytm Payments Bank | 136, Ist Floor, Devika | U65999DL2016P Associate 49% 2(6)
Limited Tower, Nehru Place, | LC304713
New Delhi — 110019,
India
17. | Paytm Life Insurance | 136, Ist Floor, Devika | U67200DL2018P Associate 49% 2(6)
Limited Tower, Nehru Place, | LC329711
New Delhi — 110019,
India
18. | Paytm General | 136, Ist Floor, Devika | U67200DL2018P Associate 49% 2(6)
Insurance Limited Tower, Nehru Place, | LC329710
New Delhi — 110019,
India
19. | Loginext Solutions | Flat No. 1901 | U63090MH2014P Associate 31% 2(6)
Private Limited Happiness Co-Op. | TC253522
Housing Society Ltd.,
J.S. Dosa Marg, Nr.
Mulund Railway
Station (W) Mumbeai,
Mumbai City,
Mabharashtra, 400080
20. | Socomo Technologies | Plot No. 57, Industrial | U72900CH2012P Associate 11% 2(6)
Private Limited Area Phase 1, | TC034269
Chandigarh, 160002
India
21. | One97 106, First Floor, | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Communications FZ- | Building No. 11,
LLC Dubai Internet City
Dubai, UAE.
22. | One97 Adol  House 15, | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Communications CIPM Avenue,
Nigeria Limited Alausa, Tkeja — Lagos
23. | One97 137 Telok Ayer Street | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Communications #08-01, Singapore
Singapore Private | 068602
Limited
24. | One97 (U.S.A.) Inc. 251 Little Falls Drive, | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Wilmington, DE
19808
25. | One97 5th Floor, Tanzanite | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Communications Park, Plot No. 38
Tanzania Private | South Ursino, New
Limited * Bagamoyo Road, Dar
Es Salaam, Tanzania
PO BOX 105646
26. | One97 Kigali City Tower, | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Communications Plot No. 6418, 14th
Rwanda Private | Floor, Avenue Du
Limited * Commerce, Kigali,
Rwanda
27. | One97 Apt-B/S, Level-5 | Foreign Company | Subsidiary 70% 2(87)
Communications (East -North Side),
Bangladesh Private | Bashati Dream,

Limited*

House # 3, Road # 20,




Gulshan -1, Dhaka
1212
28. | One97 Plot 1B Kira Road, | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Communications P.O Box 24544
Uganda Limited* Kampala, Uganda
29. | One 97 Malaysia Sdn. | 230A, Jalan Bandar | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Bdn.* 13, Taman Malawati,
Kuala Lumpur
30. | One 97 Benin SA* Square 918, Quartier | Foreign Company | Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
St Jean'Rue House
Civil Society, 01 BP
2466, Cotonou, Benin
31. | One 97 Ivory Coast | Abidjan Cocody | Foreign Company | Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
SA* Riviera II, Cabinet
NBA,04 BP 1502,
Abidjan 04, Ivory
Coast
32. | Paytm Labs Inc. * 1 Richmond Street | Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
West, Suite 200,
Toronto, Ontario
Canada M5H 3W4
33. | One Nine  Seven | Kathmandu Foreign Company | Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Communication Nepal | Metropolitan City-06,
Private Limited* Kathmandu, 3

* Subsidiary of One97 Communications Singapore Private Limited
** Joint Venture of Paytm Entertainment Limited
# Subsidiary of Little Internet Private Limited

$ Subsidiary of Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited




IV. Shareholding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as % to Total Equity)

(i) Category wise shareholding

Category No. of shares held at the beginning of the year No. of shares held at the end of the year %
Change
during
the year

Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of
total total
shares shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian

a.

. 9,051,624 - 9,051,624 16.36% 9,051,624 - 9,051,624 15.73% (0.63%)
Individual/HUF

b. Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -

c. State Govt. - - - - - - - - -

d. Bodies - - - - - - - - -
Corporate

e. Bank/FI - - - - - - - R -

f. Any other - - - - - - - - -

Sub Total (A)(1) 9,051,624 - 9,051,624 16.36% 9,051,624 - 9,051,624 15.73% | (0.63%)

(2) Foreign

a. NRIs - - - - - - - - -

b. Other - - - - - - - - -

c. Bodies - - - - - - - - -
Corporate

d. Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -

e. Any other - - - - - - - - -

Sub Total (A)(2) - - - - - - - - -

Total 9,051,624 - 9,051,624 16.36% 9,051,624 - 9,051,624 15.73% | (0.63%)
shareholding of
Promoter (A) =

(A)D)HA)2)

(B) Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a. Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -

b. Banks/F1 - - - - - - - - -

c. Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -

d. State Govt. - - - - - - - - -

e. Venture Capital - - - - - - - - -
Fund

f. Insurance - - - - - - - - -
Companies

g. Flls - - - - - - - - -

h. Foreign - - - - - - - - -
Venture Capital
Fund

i. other (specity) - - - - - - - - -

Sub Total (B)(1) - - - - - - - - -




2. Non
Institution

a. Body
Corporate

i. Indian

3,34,944

7,500

3,42,444

0.62%

3,20,483

7,500

3,27,983

0.57%

(0.05%)

ii. Overseas

4,46,61,596

8,85,417

4,5547,013

82.33

4,56,64,547

19,96,094

4,76,60,641

82.84

0.51%

b. Individuals

i. Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh

81,719

1,236

82,955

0.15%

1,07,533

11,236

1,18,769

0.21%

0.06%

ii. Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1
lakh

1,91,371

1,09,864

3,01,235

0.54%

2,66,652

1,08,197

3,74,849

0.65%

0.11%

Other (specity)

Sub Total (B)(2)

4,52,69,630

10,04,017

4,62,73,647

83.64%

4,63,59,215

21,23,027

4,84,82,242

84.27%

0.63%

Total Public
Shareholding
B)=B)1)+
B)(2)

4,52,69,630

10,04,017

4,62,73,647

83.64%

4,63,59,215

21,23,027

4,84,82,242

84.27%

0.63%

C. Shares held
by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

5,43,21,254

10,04,017

5,53,25,271

100%

5,54,10,839

21,23,027

5,75,33,866

100% -

(ii) Shareholding of Promoter

S. Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning of the Shareholding at the end of the year % change in
No. | Name year share holding
during the
year
No. of % of total | % of share No. of % of total | % of share
Shares shares pledged Shares shares pledged/
/encumbered encumbered
to total shares to total shares
1. Mr. Vijay 90,51,624 16.36% NIL 90,51,624 15.73% NIL (0.63%)
Shekhar
Sharma
Total 90,51,624 16.36% NIL 90,51,624 15.73% NIL (0.63%)




(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Please specify, if there is no change)

S.No.

Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding at the beginning of

Cumulative Shareholding at

the year the end of the year
1. Vijay Shekhar Sharma No. of Shares % of total No. of Shares % of total
shares shares
At the beginning of the year 90,51,624 16.36% 90,51,624 15.73%
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters No Change No Change
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year 90,51,624 16.36% 90,51,624 15.73%

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and

ADRs):
S. For each of the top 10 Reason of Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative Shareholding
No. | Shareholders increase/decrease the year during the Year
No. of Shares % of total | No. of Shares | % of total
shares shares
1. Alipay Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited
At the beginning of the year 1,75,44,525 31.71% - -
Date wise No Change during the year
increase/decrease
At the end of the year - - 1,75,44,525 30.49%*
2. SVF India Holding (Cayman) Limited
At the beginning of the year 1,13,26,223 20.47% - -
Date wise No Change during the year
increase/decrease
At the end of the year 1,13,26,223 19.69%%
3. SAIF III Mauritius Company Limited

At the beginning of the year

74,91,061

13.54%




Date wise
increase/decrease

Date wise increase/decrease

At the end of the year

74,91,061

13.02*%

Alibaba.com Singapore E-Commerce Private

Limited

At the beginning of the year

44,28,214

9.42%

Date wise
increase/decrease

No Change during the year

At the end of the year

44,28,214

7.70%%

SAIF Partners India I'V Limited

At the beginning of the year

30,54,370

5.52%

Date wise
increase/decrease

21.02.2019 Allotment

1,25,832

0.22%

31,80,202

5.54%

At the end of the year

31,80,202

5.53%

BH International Holdings

At the beginning of the year

Date wise
increase/decrease

27.09.2018 Allotment

17,02,713

2.98%

17,02,713

2.98%

At the end of the year

17,02,713

2.96%

Mountain Capital Fund L.P.

At the beginning of the year

6,06,668

1.10%

Date wise
increase/decrease

12.03.2019 Transfer

(68,456)

0.12%

5,38,212

0.94%

13.03.2019 Transfer

(68,456)

0.12%

4,69,756

0.82%

15.03.2019 Transfer

(35,207)

0.06%

4,34,549

0.76%

At the end of the year

4,34,549

0.76%

SAIF India V FII Holdings Limited




At the beginning of the year 4,23,300 0.77% - -

Date wise No Change during the year

increase/decrease

At the end of the year - - 4,23.300 0.74*%%
9. SAIF Partners India V Limited

At the beginning of the year 3,57,491 0.65% - -

Date wise No Change during the year

increase/decrease

At the end of the year - - 3,57,491 0.62*%
10. | One97 Employees Welfare Trust

At the beginning of the year 3,26,639 0.59% - -

Date wise

increase/decrease

02.05.2018 Transfer of Shares (6,593) 0.01% 3,20,046 0.58%

09.05.2018 Transfer of Shares (221) 0.00% 3,19,825 0.58%

06.07.2018 Transfer of Shares (901) 0.00% 3,18,924 0.57%

18.09.2019 Transfer of Shares (21,787) 0.04% 2,97,137 0.54%

14.01.2019 Transfer of Shares (475) 0.00% 2,96,662 0.52%

26.02.2019 Transfer of Shares (18,925) 0.03% 2,77,737 0.48%

At the end of the year - - 2,777,737 0.48%

Note- During the year, the Company raised funds by issuance of equity shares through Private Placement cum preferential basis
and under ESOP scheme. Hence, there is a change in the percentage of holding of the shareholders, though there is no actual
change in the no. of shares held by them.

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

S. For each of the Directors of the Company
No. and KMP

Shareholding at the beginning of
the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the Year

No. of Shares % of total No. of Shares % of total
shares shares
1. Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma
At the beginning of the year 90,51,624 16.36% - -




Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

No Change during the year

At the end of the year 90,51,624 15.73%
2. Mark Schwartz
At the beginning of the year 83,597 0.15% - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / ) ) ) )
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):
May 26, 2018 (allotment) 5,000 0.009% 88,597 0.16%
At the end of the year - - 83,597 0.15%
V. Indebtedness
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
(Amount in INR)
Secured Loans | Unsecured Loans | Deposit Total
excluding Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
i. Principal Amount 2,416,475,599 NIL NIL 2,416,475,599
ii. Interest due but not paid - -
iii. Interest accrued but not due - -
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
i. Addition 4,538,514,335 - - 4,538,514,335
ii. Reduction
Net Change 4,538,514,335 4,538,514,335
Indebtedness at the end of the financial
year
i. Principal Amount 6,954,989,934 NIL NIL 6,954,989,934
ii. Interest due but not paid - -
iii. Interest accrued but not due - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 6,954,989,934 NIL NIL 6,954,989,934




VI. Remuneration of Director and Key Managerial Personnel

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

(Amount in INR)
S. No. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount
Vijay Shekhar Sharma
Managing Director
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000
section 17(1) of the Income tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Options
3. Sweat Equity
4. Commission - as % of profit - others, specify...
Others, please specify
Total A 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000
Ceiling as per Act Pursuant to the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
“Act”) Managerial Personnel eligible to be paid exceeding
ceiling under Schedule V of the Act.

B. Remuneration to other directors

S. No. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
A: Independent Directors
l. Fee for attending board committee meetings NIL NIL NIL
2. Commission NIL NIL NIL
3. Others (specify) NIL NIL NIL
Total (A) NIL NIL NIL
B: Other non-executive Directors
4. Fee for attending board committee meetings NIL NIL NIL
5. Commission NIL NIL NIL
6. Others (specify) NIL NIL NIL
Total (B) NIL NIL NIL
Total (A+B) NIL NIL NIL
Overall ceiling as per Act - - -
C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / Manager /Whole time Director
(Amount in INR)
S. No. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of KMP
Vimal Chawla Madhur Deora | Total Amount
(Company Secretary) (CFO)
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 60,00,000 2,00,21,604 2,60,21,604

section 17(1) of the Income tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961




(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) - - -
Income tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Options 11,44,074 81,104,160 9,47,53,321
Sweat Equity - - -
4. Commission - as % of profit - others, specify - - -
Others, please specify - - -
Total A 71,44,074 11,36,30,851 12,07,74,925
Ceiling as per Act Not Applicable

w

VII.Penalties / Punishment/ Compounding of Offences

Type Section of | Brief Description Details of Authority Appeal made,
the Penalty / [RD/NCLT/ if any (give
Companies Punishment/ COURT] Details)
Act, 2013 Compounding

fees imposed

A. Companies
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding | Section Condonation of delay under | Payment of fee | Ministry of | N.A.
460(b) section 460 of the Companies | and additional | Corporate Affairs,
Act, 2013 in filing e-form | fees under the | Government of
MGT-14 with regard to | provisions of | India

resolution passed at the | Companies Act,
meeting of Board of | 2013 and rules
Directors dated 21.06.2017 to | made thereunder,
avail unsecured loan | in order to file the
amounting to Rs. 500 crores | e-form MGT-14.
from ICICI Bank and Rs.
1,145 crores from certain

other banks.
B. Directors
Penalty NIL
Punishment
Compounding
C. Other Officers in default
Penalty NIL
Punishment
Compounding
For and on behalf of the Board
One 97 Communications Limited
Sd/-
Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma
Date: May 16, 2019 Chairman

Place: Delhi India DIN: 00466521
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Annexure -4
FORM NO. MR -3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Board of Director,
One 97 Communications Limited

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by One 97 Communications Limited
(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided
us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company, books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on March 31, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent
based on the management representation letter/ confirmation, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2019, according to the
provisions of:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

ii.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder; (not applicable)

iii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; (not
applicable)

iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings (FEMA);

v.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (not applicable)

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; (not applicable)

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (not applicable)

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014; (not applicable)

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008; (not applicable)
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/. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client; (not applicable)

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; (not applicable) and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018; (not applicable)

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (not applicable)

It is further reported that with respect to the compliance of other applicable laws, we have relied
on the representation made by the Company and its officers for system and mechanism framed
by the Company for compliances under general laws (incl. Labour Laws, Tax Laws, etc) and as
informed to us, there are no laws which are specifically applicable to the Company.

We have also examined compliance of the following:

(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and notified
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs: The Company is generally regular in complying
with the standards.

(il)) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange(s) and
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. (not applicable)

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except that the Company had
granted a loan amounting to Rs. 250 crores to an unrelated party which was not previously
approved by the Board of Directors however, it was subsequently ratified by the board of
directors.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance except few Board Meetings and
Committee meetings which were held on shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any are captured
and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that as informed to us, there are adequate systems and processes in the
company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines, as per the management
representation letter.
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We further report that during the audit period the following events have occurred in the
Company:

1.

ii.

iii.

1v.

vi.

In its Extra — Ordinary General Meeting held on April 09, 2018, the Company has
entered into a Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) and Business Cooperation
Agreement (BCA) for transferring the online gaming/ contests business in India by the
Company to Acumen Game Entertainment Limited on slump sale basis, as a going
concern, for a consideration of USD 5 million and AGTech Holdings Limited to provide
services for the online gaming/ contests business.

In its Extra — Ordinary General Meeting held on June 02, 2018, the Company has
reclassified the Authorized Share Capital of the Company from Rs. 104,10,66,000/-
divided into 5,61,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each and 27,59,000 Preference Shares
of Rs. 174 each to Rs. 104,10,66,000/- divided into 10,41,06,600 equity shares of Rs.10/-
each, by reclassifying 27,59,000 preference shares of Rs. 174 each to 4,80,06,600 Equity
Shares of Rs. 10 each.

In its Extra — Ordinary General Meeting held on September 10, 2018, the Company has
approved the allotment of 1,702,713 fully paid up equity shares (“Subscription Shares”)
having a par value of INR 10 per share to BH International Holdings (“Investor”) at an
issue price of INR equivalent of US$ 300,000,000 at approximately US$ 176.189 per
share on a preferential cum private placement basis.

In its Extra — Ordinary General Meeting held on September 28, 2018, the Company has
approved the adoption of amended and restated Articles of Association of the Company.
In its Extra — Ordinary General Meeting held on December 21, 2018, the Company has
approved the issuance and allotment of equity shares to SAIF Partners India IV Limited
and GAMNAT Pte. Ltd. on share swap basis in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and
FEMA.

In its Extra — Ordinary General Meeting held on March 22, 2019, the Company has
approved the amendment in the existing ESOP Scheme namely One97 Employees Stock
Option Scheme 2008.

For PI & Associates,
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Nitesh Latwal
Partner
ACS No.: 32109

Date: May 16, 2019
Place: New Delhi

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” and
forms an integral part of this report.
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“Annexure A”

The Members,
One 97 Communications Limited

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our Responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulation and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards are the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For PI & Associates,
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Nitesh Latwal
Partner
ACS No.: 32109
C P No.: 16276

Date: May 16, 2019
Place: New Delhi
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of One97 Communications Limited

Report on audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

1.  We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Oneg7 Communications Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Standalone Statement of Changes in
Equity and Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and total comprehensive income
(comprising loss and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

4. We draw your attention to Note 37 to the Standalone Financial Statements regarding the non settlement of
foreign currency payables as at March 31, 2019 amounting to Rs 2.61 crores and Rs 0.10 crores, due for more
than six months and three years, respectively from the date of imports and non realisation of foreign currency
receivables as at March 31, 2019 amounting to Rs 21.39 crores and Rs 0.28 crores, due for more than nine
months and three years, respectively from the date of exports, being the time period permitted under the RBI
Master Direction on Import of Goods and Services vide FED Master Direction No. 17/2016-17 dated January
1, 2016 (as amended) and RBI Master Direction on Export of goods and Services vide FED Master Direction
No. 16/2015-16 dated January 1, 2016 (as amended), respectively, issued by the Reserve Bank of India. The
Company has applied to the Authorised Dealer seeking permission for extension of time period for settlement
of the payables and realisation of the receivables and for write-off of certain receivables outstanding for a
period exceeding three years. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Building No. 8, 7th & 8th Floor, Tower - B, : ] ity
Gurgaon - 122 002
T: +91 (124) 4620000, 3060000, F: +91 (124) 4620620

Registered office and Head office: Sucheta Bhawan, 11A Vishnu Digambar Marg, New Delhi 110 002

P_rice Waterhouse (a Partnership Firm) converted into Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (a Limnited Liability Parinership with LLP identity no: LLPIN AAC-5001)
with effect from July 25, 2014. Post its conversion to Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, its ICAI registration number is 012754N/N500016 (ICA! registration
number before conversion was 012754N)
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Other Information

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

7. In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone
Financial Statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

11. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

12. The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, were audited by
another firm of chartered accountants under the Act who, vide their report dated May 18, 2018, expressed an
unmodified opinion on those Standalone Financial Statements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

13. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

14. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

W /
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(©)

(d)

(e)

)

(8

The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and Standalone Statement of
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone
Financial Statements — Refer Note 28 (c) to the Standalone Financial Statements;

ii. The Company did not have any derivative contracts and in respect of long-term contracts there are no
material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2019;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2019.

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2019.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Amitesh Dutta

Place: Gurgaon Partner

Date:

June 15, 2019 Membership Number: 058507
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Oneg7
Communications Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

T

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Amitesh Dutta

Place: Gurgaon Partner
Date: June 15, 2019 Membership Number: 058507
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i.  (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

and situation, of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a

(©

ii.

iil.

iv.

V1.

vil. (a)

phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the property, plant and equipment has been physically
verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on
such verification.

The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 3 on property, plant and equipment
to the Standalone Financial Statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii}(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
loans and investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74,
75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the services provided by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, except for dues in respect of professional tax, the Company is
generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of provident fund, income tax
and goods and service tax though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including employees’ state insurance, sales tax, service tax,
duty of customs , duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Also refer note 28 (c)(iii) to the Standalone Financial
Statements regarding management's assessment on certain matters relating to provident fund. The
extent of the arrears of statutory dues outstanding as at March 31, 2019, for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable are as follows:
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Name of the | Nature of | Amount Period to which the Due Date Date of
Statute the Dues (Rs.) amount relates Payment

Kerala Professional 208 | Apr-18 31-Aug-18 | Not yet paid

Municipal Act, | tax

1994 208 May-18 Not yet paid

Tamil Nadu 5,182 Apr-18 30-Sep-18 | Not yet paid

Municipal

Laws Second 6,269 May-18 Not yet paid

ﬁzrtlesgd;?iggs 8,190 Jun-18 Not yet paid

7,523 Jul-18 Not yet paid
37,538 Aug-18 Not yet paid

The Andhra 1,103 Aug-18 10-Sep-18 | Not yet paid

Pradesh Tax

on

Professions,

Trades,

Callings and

Employments

Rules, 1957

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company

1X.

xi.

Xii.

xiii.

examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax or goods and services tax which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial
institution or bank or Government or dues to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Sections 1777 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed
in the Standalone Financial Statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)
24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act.
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Xiv. The Company has made private placement of shares during the year under review, in compliance

with the requirements of Section 42 of the Act. The amounts raised have been used for the purpose
for which funds were raised.

XV. The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

XVi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Amitesh Dutta
Place: Gurgaon Partner
Date: June 15, 2019 Membership Number: 058507
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One9? Communicatlons Limited

CIN: U72200D1.2000PLC108985

Standatone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019
{Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Notes As al As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment L] 268,72 15419
Capital work in progress 50.58 18 49
[ntangible asscts 4 17.42 19l
Intangible assets uader development 022 1.03
Investment in subsidiaries 5 693,44 40027
Tnvestment in associates ] 174.10 180.55
Financial assets
Investments T{b) 100.19 20673
Loans 7(c) 104.39 3216
Other financial assets (d) 136.81 243.64
Current tax assets 458,64 279.00
Other non-currenl assets 9 141.04 §3.70
Total Non-Current Assets 2,145.55 1,581.67
Current assets
Finencial assets
Investments T(a) 2,472.65 4,399.97
Trade receivables ] 24221 504.76
Cash and cash equivalents 10(a) 23522 261.99
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 10(b) 621 249
Loans e) 303.63 631
Other financial assets 7(d) 1,892.83 1,107,36
Other current assets 9 1,384.83 669.28
Tatal Current Assels 6,537.58 6,974.60
TOTAL ASSETS 8|683.IJ 8!555.17
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 11 (a) 57.53 55.32
Instruments entirely equity in nature 11 (a) - 173.63
Other equity 11 (b) 5.978.50 7,346 60
Total Equlty 6,036.03 7,578.58
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 13(a) 26.96 .
Provisions 12 8.65 8.30
Total Non-Current Liabillties 35.61 8.30
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 13(a) 695.50 241.65
Trade payables
(a) Total Quistanding dues of micro and small enterprises 13(b) 11.24 0.88
(b) Total Outstanding dues other than (z) above 13(b) 662.04 425.47
Others financial liabilities 13(c) 699.18 227.84
Contract Liabilities 35287 .
Other current |labilities 14 153.03 47.85
Provisions 2 37.63 2R 73
Total Current Liabilitles 2,611.49 972.42
Total Liabllitles 2,647.10 980,72
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 8,683,13 8,556.27
The above Standalone Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the panying notes
This is the Slandalone Balance Sheet referred (o in our report of even date
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Firm reglstralion number: 012754N/ N500016 Oned7 Communicatlons Limbied,
Amltesh Dulta Vijay Shehl
Partnel Chairnan o Director
Membership No: 058507 DIN No Mil-Héd "
Place:
) P
Date: "*'/L o
15]867 2019 /
\-‘IL\1h Aadin W
Senior Vice President - Finance Chief Financial Officer
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One9? Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019
{Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Continuing operations
Income
Revenue from operalions is 3,049.87 2,982.22
Other income 16 341,74 247,16
Total income* 3,391.61 3,229.38
*excluding total income from discontinued operations for the year ended March 31,
2019: INR 1.53 (March 31, 2018 : INR 35.58) (Refer note 32)
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 17 627,78 528.66
Finance costs 18 16.50 18.39
Depreciation and amortization expense 19 75.81 68.92
Other expenses 20 6,534.71 4,082.11
Total expenses* 7,254.80 4,698.08
*excluding expenses of discontinued operations for the year ended March 31, 2019: INR
6.84 (March 31, 2018 : INR 56.06) (Refer note 32)
Loss before exceptional items and tax from continuing operations (3,863.19) (1,468.70)
Exceptional items 21 (91,02) (2.30)
Loss before tax from continuing operations (3,954.21) (1,471.00)
Income Tax expense

Current tax 27 0.12 -

Tax expense related to earlier years 27 - (1.o1)
Total Tax expense 0.12 (L.01)
Loss for (he year from continuing operations (3,954.33) (1,469.99)
Laoss for the year from discontinued operations 32 (5.31) (20.48)
Loss for the year {3,959.64) (1,490,47)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years

Re-mesurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit pluns 26 (1.43) (0.76)
Changes in fair value of equity instruments at FVTOCI 1.29 -

Tolal Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (0.14) (0.76)
Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year (3,959.78) (1,491,23)
Basic & Diluted Eamings per share from continuing operations 22 (705.02) (291,77)
(INR per Share)
Basic & Diluted Eamings per share from discontinued operations 22 (0.95) (4,06)
(INR per Share)
Basic & Diluted Earnings per share from confinuing and 22 (705.97) (295.83)
discontinued operations (INR per Share)
The above Standalone Statement of Protit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,
This is the Standalone Statement of Peofit and Loss referred to in our rcport of cven date.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accounfants LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Finm registation number: 012754N/ N500016 One97 Communications Limited

Amitesh Duttn

Pariner

Membership No: 058507
Plice:

|
Date: ’5,06 201(} 9/ jL’L/ S
'(ﬁ//-
Vikin G MugburDeorn

Senlbr Vice Mesident - Finance Chicef Financial Officer

Plnce: [MN_
Date: |6/05/20lq
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One97 Conuninications Lindted

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Staudelone Statement of Cianges ln Equity for (e year ended March 31, 2019

Aoty b IR Croges, unless aibcmie vstof) y_ ——— ——

Noorshars | Awowd
16,626,540 4699
8,127,633 209
244,459 0.24
51998632 3532
2,094 650 205 |
162,347 016
AUMarch 31, 2019 256029 | 5183

“Viet ol treasairy shigres 277,737 (March 31 1018: 326,639 al nil cart Hirnigh employee wetfbro liui

Parliculars Share applicatlon Reserves and Surplus LRGN Total Other
mon i
et Seomly Retalted | poop Reserve | FYTOCI Equity
| Eranua.__j
E ]
- (1.490,47)
. . - 0,76
. 11,491.23)
0.22) . = - ©727)
Adjustiment oy forfeilure of ESOP - - 310 (3,10) .
hare based paymenl expenses (Refer note 24) . . . 1247 T147
Recerpt of sharc application moncy 005 . - . 005
Aotk re¢ebved on e of dharss 6,43546 - 643546
Astiotmt ulilised tor share issue expenses . (6.91) . - - {691)
Share based payment far employees af group companies (Refer Nole 24) . - 479 - 4,79
M Lﬂmlkmilo securily pramium on exercisc of aptions . 1240 . (1240) . .
v . . 3.55 . . 155
0.08 11,324.23 (4,101.84) 121.10 13.54)] '-'.Jlﬁ.ai-
. . (3.959.64)| . . (3.059,64)|
i » w4yl . 129 ;o.:qI
- . (3,961.0T) 129 (3,559.76)
Reevcise of share options (0,05) . . . (0.08)
Adjustment on forfeiture of ESOP . . 344 (344) .
Asfusiment on cnncellllim_ofunv&ed ESQP . - 19.07 . (19.07) -
Shrg based paymant expenses (Refer note 24) . . . 86,06 #6.06
Amotr reccived in Hame of Khares . 2,187.41 . - 118741
Shares lsmsed Par consideration other than cash . 294.75 N . 19475
Amounl ulilised for sherc issue expanses - (239) - - {239
Share based payment far employees of group companies (Refar Nole 24) . - . 2590 2590
Attt tranafirred to socnrily premium on axarcim of optiam - 1869 - (18.69) - -
As ot March 31, 2019 - 13,822.69 (8,040.403] 198.46 2.25) L9750

The above Standalane Stalement of Changes in Equlty should be read in conjunction with (e accompaiiying notes.
This is the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity reterred to in our repart of even dale

For Price Walerhouse Charlered Accounlants LLP For end on behalf of Board of Direclors of
Firm registralion number: 012754N/ N500016 One97 Communicalions Limlted

Amitesh Dutis

Parlner

Membership No: 058507
Plucs.

™15 Joé 12019

'] Madhur Deors
w Vice Preaden - Finance Chief Financial Offlcer

»

e DU
160512019




Standalone Financial Statements

One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000P1.C 108983

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31,2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Cash flow from operating activities:
Loss belore tax from
Continuing operations (3,954.21) (1,471.00)
Discontinued operations (3.31) (20.48)
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortization expense 19 75.81 68.92
Interest income 16 (66.90) (23.05)
Interest Income on unwinding of discount - measured at amortized cost 16 (45.47) (50.92)
Interest on borrowings at amortised cost 18 15.00 12.29
Trade receivables / advance written off 20 N 0.33
Provision for doubtful advances and unbilled receivables 20 12.27 2.87
Provision for impairment of trade receivables 20 12.69 30.36
Gain on sale of gaming b / wallet busi 21 (42.20) (62.99)
Liabilities / Provision no longer required written back 16 (5.91) -
Provision for impairment of investments in associates and subsidiaries 21 133.22 65.29
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles written off 20 0.06 0.11
Rent equalisation reserve 031 0.18
Non-cash employce share based payment expenses 24 86.06 72.47
Provision for employee incentive (9.85) 37.70
Fair value gain on financial instruments measured at FVTPL (net) 16 (101.32) (166.03)
Gain on sale of current investments measured at FVTPL (net) 16 (114.86) -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibles (net) 16 (0.82) (0.47)
Operating loss before working capital changes (4,011.43) (1,504.42)
Working capital adjustments:
Increase in trade payablies 259.61 204.82
Increase in provisions 9.14 21.80
Increase in other current liabilities and contract liabilities 458.05 9.82
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities X 440.03 (953.82)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 249.86 (445.62)
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets (690.05) 688.46
(Increase) in other current and non-current assets (803.43) (417.85)
(Increase) in loans (87.18) (20.33)
Cash used in operations (4,175.40) (2,417.14)
Income taxes paid (net off refunds) (179.64) (164.46)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (A) (4,355.04) (2,581.60)
Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including intangible assets, capital work in progress and (158.04) (41.98)
capital advances
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4.75 0.64
Proceeds from sale of gaming business 32 3391 -
Investment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 12 months) (138.19) (117.63)
[nvestment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months) (62.72) (75.54)
Maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 12 months) 174.81 74.49
Maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months) 81.43 73.08
Investments in subsidiaries and associates (272.55) (345.10)
Inter corporate loans given (272.43) (2.20)
Proceeds from sale of non current investments 750.37 78.26
Payment for purchase of current investments (3,296.34) (10,302.74)
Proceeds from sale of current investments 4,797.10 6,317.68
Interest received 66.74 74.30
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities (B) 1,708.84 (4,266.74)

(This space is intentionally left blank)




Standalone Financial Statements
One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PL.C108985

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of shares 2,189.29 6,443.81
Share issue expenses (2.39) (6.89)
Share application money received during the year - 0.05
Share application money utilised during the year - 0.22)
Interest paid (14.09) (12.29)
Repayment of secured loans - (23.65)
Payment of deferred payment liabilitics (7.24) .
Net cash inflow from financing aclivities (C) 2.165.57 6.400.81
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (480.62) (447.53)
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 20.34 467.87
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year (460.28) 20.34

Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprises of following As at Ay at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Cash on hand 0.03 0.11
Balance with banks
- On current accounts 235.19 261.12
- Deposils with original maturity of less than 3 months 0.76

Other bank balances

- Bank overdraft (695.50) (241.65)
Total cash and cash equivalents 10 (@) (460.28) 20.34

* amount below rounding off norms adopted by the Company

For non-cash investment and financing activities refer notes 5, 11(a) and 13(a), respectively.

The above Standalone Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noles.

This is the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm registration number: 012754N/ N500016

Amitesh Dulta

Pariner

Membership No: 058507
Placa: ()

Dalo: "'UG ZO‘Q

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
One97 Communications Limited

Vik(s Garg Madhur Deora
Senior Vice President - Finance Chief Financial Officer

Place: DQMN‘Q
Date: I6IOSIZO,9



One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

One97 Communications Limited (“the Company”) is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The registered office of the Company is located at 1st Floor, Devika Tower, Nehru Place,
New Delhi - 110019. The principal place of business of the Company is in India.

The Company is in the business of providing payment services primarily as payment facilitator and providing voice and messaging
platforms to the telecom operators and enterprise customers.

These Standalone Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on May
16, 2019.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

These standalone financial statements (“Financial Statements™) of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard (“Ind AS™) notified under Section 133 of the Act, Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (refer accounting policy on financial instruments).

Accqunting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision
to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use (also refer note 2.2 d below).

All the amounts included in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘Rupees” or ‘Rs.” or ‘INR”) and are-rounded to
the nearest crores up to two decimal places, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, held
primarily for the purpose of trading, expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or cash or cash equivalent
unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other assets
are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, it is held primarily for the purpose of
trading, it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities, are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

b. Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which it operates i.e. the “functional currency”. The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the
Company’s functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s functional currency at exchange rates prevailing at the date
the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at
the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income (“OCI™) or statement of profit and loss, are also recognised in OCI or statement of profit
and loss, respectively).

¢. Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments (e.g. investments) at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market

. participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liabilities takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability or in absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable '

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be re-
measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management or its expert verifies the major
inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant

documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

d. Revenue recognition
Accounting policy applied till March 31, 2018

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties. Where the
Company acts as an agent for selling goods or services, only the commission income is included within revenue. The specific

revenue recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized.

Sale of services
Revenue from services is recognized by reference to stage of completion as and when services are rendered as per the terms of the

agreement with customer. Revenues are disclosed net of the service tax charged on such services. In terms of the contract, excess of
revenue over the billed at the year-end is carried in the Financial Statement as unbilled revenue under other financial assets.

Commission
The Company facilitates recharge of talk time, bill payments and availability of bus tickets and eamns commission for the respective
services. Commission income is recognized when the services have been provided by the Company.

Service fees

The Company earns service fee from merchants and recognizes such revenue when the services have been provided by the
Company. Such service fee is generally determined as a percentage of transaction value executed by the merchants. Amount
received by the Company pending settlement are disclosed as payable to the merchants under financial liabilities. Service fee also
includes royalty charged to customers for providing brand and technical support. Such fee is determined as a percentage of
transaction value executed by the customers.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset or to the amortised cost of a financial Hability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit
losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Changes in accounting policies

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ from April 1, 2018, which resulted in changes in
accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial statements. In accordance with the transition provisions
in Ind AS 115, the Company has adopted the modified transitional approach to implementation where any transitional adjustment is
recognized in retained earnings at April 1, 2018 without adjustment of comparatives and the new standard is only applied to contracts
that remain in force at that date.

Impact of adoption

The Company provides incentives to users in various forms including cashbacks. Prior to the adoption of Ind AS 115, cashbacks given
to users where the Company recovers a convenience fees were classified in the statement of profit and loss as a marketing expense.
Following the adoption of Ind AS 115, cashbacks given to users where the Company recovers a convenience fees are classified as a
reduction of revenue. However, such adjustment does not have an impact on retained eamings of the Company on the date of transition.

Typically, the Company has a right to payment before or at the point that services are delivered. Cash received before the services
delivered is recognised as a contract liability. The amount of consideration does not contain a significant financing component as
payment terms are less than one year.

i) Impact on financial statements:
The following table show the adjustments recognised for each individual line item. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

March 31, 2019
As presented under | Adjustments on account of | Amounts prior adoption of
Ind AS 115 Ind AS 115 Ind AS 115

Revenue from operations 3,049.87 194.14 3,244.01
Other expenses 6,534.71 194.14 6,728.85
Profit/(loss) for the year for (3,954.33) - (3,954.33)
continuing operation
Profit/(loss) for the year for 63D - (5.3
discontinuing operation
Basic and diluted Earnings per share (705.02) - (705.02)
for continuing operations
Basic and diluted Earnings per share (0.95) - (0.95)
for discontinuing operations
Contract liability 352.87 352.87 -
Other current liability- Advance from - 352.87 352.87
customer

During the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company recognized revenue of INR 26.09 arising from advance from customer as of
April 1, 2018.




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Accounting policy applied from April 1, 2018

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer net of variable consideration e.g. discounts,
volume rebates, any payments made to a customer (unless the payment is for a distinct good or service received from the customer)
and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises revenue when it transfers control over a product
or service to a customer. Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

The Company provides incentives to its users in various forms including cashbacks. Incentives which are consideration payable to
the customer that are not in exchange for a distinct good or service are generally recognized as a reduction of revenue at the later of
when revenue is recognized or when the Company pays or promises to pay the incentive.

Where the Company acts as an agent for selling goods or services, only the commission income is included within revenue. The
specific revenue recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized. Typically, the Company has a
right to payment before or at the point that services are delivered. Cash received before the services are delivered is recognised as a
contract liability. The amount of consideration does not contain a significant financing component as payment terms are less than one
year.

Sale of services

Revenue from services is recognized when the control in services is transferred as per the terms of the agreement with customer i.e.
as and when services are rendered. Revenues are disclosed net of the Goods and Service tax charged on such services. In terms of the
contract, excess of revenue over the billed at the year-end is carried in the balance sheet as unbilled revenue under other financial
assets where the amount is recoverable from the customer without any future performance obligation. Cash received before the
services are delivered is recognised as a contract liability.

Commission
The Company facilitates recharge of talk time, bill payments and availability of bus tickets and earns commission for the respective
services. Commission income is recognized when the control in services is transferred to the customer when the services have been

provided by the Company.

Service fees from merchants . .
The Company earns service fee from merchants and recognizes such revenue when the control in services have been transferred by
the Company i.¢. as and when services have been provided by the Company. Such service fee is generally determined as a percentage
of transaction value executed by the merchants. Amount received by the Company pending settlement are disclosed as payable to the

merchants under contract liabilities.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected
cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest
income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

e. Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the
countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 .
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in other comprehensive income
or in equity. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the

deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in other comprehensive income or
in equity. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum alternate tax

Credit of MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset only when it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the credit
can be utilised. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of
a credit to the statement of profit and loss account. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the
carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent it is no longer probable that the Company will pay normal income tax during
the specified period.

Taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST/value added/ service taxes paid, except:

e  When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax
paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or disclosed separately in statement of profit and loss, as applicable,
or

o When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of other current/ non- current assets
or other current liabilities in the balance sheet.
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CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

f. Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale rather than through continuing use. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that
significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the sale
expected within one year from the date of classification.

For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current assets when the exchange has
commercial substance. The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets or disposal group is available
for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets (or disposal
groups), its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The Company treats sale of the asset or disposal
group to be highly probable when:

The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal group),

An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable),

The asset (or disposal group) is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation o its current fair value,
The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification , and

Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the plan
will be withdrawn. .

* & & & @

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less costs
to sell. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately in the Balance Sheet.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of, or is classified
as held for sale, and:

» Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations or

» Ispart of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical arca of operations.

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount as profit or loss
after tax from discontinued operations in the statement of profit and loss.

Additional disclosures are provided in Note 32. All other notes to the financial statements mainly include amounts for continuing
operations, unless otherwise mentioned.

g. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment, if any. Property,
plant and equipment is depreciated on a written down value basis to its residual value over its estimated useful life.

Costs directly atiributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by the
management.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when future economic
benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the item can be measured reliably. When significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on
their specific useful lives. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced.
All repair and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital
advances under the non-current assets and the cost of assets not ready to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work in
progress’.
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The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the date of
disposal or retirement.

Depreciation is provided using the written down value method and charged to statement of profit and loss as per the rates prescribed
under schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, given below:

Assets Rate of Depreciation
(per annum)

Servers and networking equipment (Computers) 39.30%

Laptops and desktops (Computers) 63.16%

Office equipment 45.07%

Fumniture and fittings 25.89%

Vehicles 31.23%

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over lower of the period of the lease and useful life.
Leasehold land is depreciated over the period of the lease.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year
end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h. Intangible assets

Separately acquired intangible assets, such as software are measured initially at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the
year in which the expenditure is incurred. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost and are amortised on a written
down value basis over their estimated useful lives and charged to statement of profit and loss.

Software and licenses acquired are amortized at the rate of 40% per annum on written down value method. ’

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation
period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.
Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as an intangible
asset when the Company can demonstrate all the following:

The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale
Its intention to complete the asset

Its ability to use or sell the asset

How the asset will generate future economic benefits

The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset

The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.
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Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the asset to be carried
at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when development is
complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of expected future benefit from the
related project, i.e., the estimated useful life of one to five years. Amortization is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. During
the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in the statement of profit and loss in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. '

j. Impairment of non-financial assets

For all non-financial assets, the Company assesses whether there are indicators of impairment. If such an indicator exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount for an asset or CGU is the higher of its value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. If the recoverable
amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the asset or CGU is considered impaired and the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of
profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows of the asset or CGU are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators: .

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations. These budgets and forecast calculations
generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company
extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate
can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country
or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses
no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s or
CGU’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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k. Provisions and contingencies
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented
in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the lability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

l. Retirement and other employee benefits

For defined benefit plans (gratuity), the liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obhgatlon is calculated by an
independent actuary using thie projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value
of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they oceur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in the subsequent periods.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

The Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans (provident fund) are recognized in profit or loss when the employee
renders related service. The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its periodic contributions.

The Company provides for liability at year end on account of un-availed earned leave as per actuarial valuation using projected unit
credit method.

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of
the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented
as employee benefit payable under other financial liabilities in the balance sheet.
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m. Share-based payments
i) Equity-settled transactions

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation
model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) reserves in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit
and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the terms not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.
Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed
immediately through profit or loss. )

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted eamings per share.

ii) Cash-settled transactions

For awards classified as cash settled share based transactions, the goods or services acquired are measured and the liability incurred,
at the fair value of liability. Until the liability is settled, the fair value of the liability is re-measured at the end of each reporting period
and at the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in statement of profit and loss for the period.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is determined by the fair value of equity instruments at each reporting date using an appropriate
valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in liability, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for cash-settled transactions at each
reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the
movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met.

The Company has set up an Employee Welfare Trust (EWT) for administering certain types of share-based payment arrangements
including awards given to employees of the outside group companies as well for awards of options of other companies given to its
employees. The Company uses EWT as a vehicle for distributing shares under the ESOP schemes. The EWT holds shares of the
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Company, for giving shares to employees. The Company treats EWT as its extension and shares of the Company held by EWT are
treated as treasury shares. Other assets held by EWT are consolidated on a line-by-line basis with Company’s financial statements
Shares of other companies held by EWT for distribution to its employees are separately disclosed under investments.

n. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
o Debt instruments at amortized cost
° Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
° Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
® Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if beth the following conditions are met: .
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables and is most relevant to the Company.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets,

and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment
losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to the statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst
holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.
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Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred
to as ‘accounting mismatch”).

Debt instruments included within the FV{'PL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit
and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company may make an irrevocable election to present
in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit or loss, even on sale of
investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of
profit and loss.

Equity investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are measured at cost. The investments are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’. If
any such indication exists, policy for impairment of non-financial assets is followed.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily defecognised
(i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

e  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

° The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on (inancial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits,
trade receivables and bank balance.
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The Company follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of
simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month expected credit
loss (ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision
matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analyzed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit
and loss. This amount is reflected under the head other expenses in the statement of profit and loss. For the financial assets measured
as at amortised cost ECL is presented as an allowance, i.€., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet.
The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment
allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities
hitial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
All financial Liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly

attributable transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, including bank overdrafts and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below:
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
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substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is ireated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
anew liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract — with
the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded
derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified
interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index,
or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Company does not separate embedded
derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives
embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated
at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in
profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

0. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of-the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

p. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of
the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease.
All other leases are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to statement of profit and loss
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation
to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss.
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A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease
term.

g- Earnings/ (loss) per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity
shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the
dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

r. Treasury shares

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments. Any difference
between the carrying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognised in other reserve.

s. Segment reporting

Identification of segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker
(CODM). Only those business activities are identified as operating segment for which the operating resuits are regularly reviewed by
the CODM to make decisions about resource allocation and performance measurement.

Segment accounting policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the
financial statements of the Company as a whole.

t. Use of estimates

The Company is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on
various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable, the results of which form the basis for making judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities.

u. Exceptional Items

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary activities of the Company
is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the Company. Such income or expense is classified as an
exceptional item and accordingly disclosed in the financial statements. Significant impact on the financial statements arising from

impairment of investments and gain/ loss from slump sale of business lines are considered and reported as an exceptional items.
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v. Contributed Equity

Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

w. Accounting standard and amendment issued but not effective as at March 31, 2019
i) Nature of Change for Ind AS 116

Ind AS 116 was notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs on March 30, 2019 and it is applicable from annual reporting periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2019.

Ind AS 116 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on balance sheet. The
standard removes the current distinction between operating and finance leases and requires recognition of an asset (the right-of-use
the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals for virtually all lease contracts. An optional exemption exists for short-term and
low-value leases.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting Ind AS 116 on the standalone financial statements.

ii) Uncertainty over Income tax Treatments, to Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’ — Appendix C

The appendix explains how to recognise and measure deferred and current income tax assets and liabilities where there is uncertainty
over a tax treatment. In particular, it discusses:

e how to determine the appropriate unit of account, and that each uncertain tax treatment should be considered separately or
together as a group, depending on which approach better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty;

o that the entity should assume a tax authority will examine the uncertain tax treatments and have full knowledge of all related
information, i.e. that detection risk should be ignored;

o that the entity should reflect the effect of the uncertainty in its income tax accounting when it is not probable that-the tax
authorities will accept the treatment;

s  that the impact of the uncertainty should be measured using either the most likely amount or the expected value method,
depending on which method better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty; and

o that the judgements and estimates made must be reassessed whenever circumstances have changed or there is new
information that affects the judgements.

The Company has substantially completed assessing its existing models and processes which it has developed to account for tax
uncertainties against the specific guidance in the appendix C to Ind AS 12 to consider the impact on income tax accounting in respect
of its tax jurisdictions. Basis such assessment, the application of this guidance is not expected to have material impact on its financial
statements.

iii) Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation — Amendments to Ind AS 109, ‘Financial Instruments’

The narrow-scope amendments made to Ind AS 109 enable entities lo measure certain prepayable financial assets with negative
compensation at amortised cost. These assets, which include some loan and debt securities, would otherwise have to be measured at
fair value through profit or loss. To qualify for amortised cost measurement, the negative compensation must be ‘reasonable
compensation for early termination of the contract” and the asset must be held within a ‘held to collect” business model. These
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Financial Statements of the Company.
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iv) Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation — Amendments to Ind AS 109, ‘Financial Instruments’

The amendments to Ind AS 19 clarify the accounting for defined benefit plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. They confirm
that entities must :

e calculate the current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the reporting period after a plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement by using the updated assumptions from the date of the change;

e any reduction in a surplus should be recognised immediately in profit or loss either as part of past service cost, or as a gain
or loss on settlement. In other words, a reduction in a surplus must be recognised in profit or loss even if that surplus was not
previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling; and

® separately recognise any changes in the asset ceiling through other comprehensive income.

These amendments will apply to any future plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements of the Company on or after 1
April 2019.

v) Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends on financial instruments classified as equity should be
recognised according to where the past transactions or events that generated distributable profits were recognised. These requirements
apply to all income tax consequences of dividends. Previously, it was unclear whether the income tax consequences of dividends
should be recognised in profit or loss, or in equity, and the scope of the existing guidance was ambiguous.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

vi) Ind AS 23, ‘Borrowing Costs’

The amendments clarify that if a specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended use
or sale, it becomes part of general borrowings. The Company’s current practice is in line with these amendments and accordingly
these amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the financial statements of the Company.




Juswdmbe pue yueid ‘Kadoid o uontsmboe oy 10} FUSTRIWWOS [BTGIBIUO JO SMEOSIP JOJ §T 240U 0] IJOY (m)
(€1 10U 39301) 'sIeaK [8UTU JoJ §1 9SEL] SOUBUI} J5PUN pannboe PuE| PIOYSSES] Y JO 10adsol UL Ui1a) o5BI] SY T, "95BS] SOUEUILY JOpUN 99559] E T AURdIO)) a15ym sjosse asaidar pue ployesea] (1)

*SOUOIIMS JIOMISU PITE §10AISS JO sostdwos Aqurews ssexSoid ut ypom epded

ssaaSoad ur yiom [epde) (1)

SSAJON
[6rest = 161 S6'0 BL'BT a3 1UELL 8107 1€ PICAIE V|
| Zi89t 9EF8 1€LT 950 ol €9°F FESHI GI0Z 1€ PITI JE 5V |
JUNOWE BULALILD 33N

691 L0 8CT€1 18°0 60701 §5°C 96°0F1 6102 ‘1€ PIEIN 18 5V
989 . 00 - - €10 1.9 sesodig
vT0 > ¥00 - - = 0zZ0 (€ @10u I3]0y UonRId) PANLTILOISI(]

| 0T'69 TL0 8's 62°0 447 vl £ LS . Teof ot J04
| kL0l = 98'L 50 S6'S ST P06 810C ‘1 1udv 1 7y
yELOT 98'L 750 S6'S LS'T ¥+'06 8107 ‘1€ PIE I8 5V

€rE 100 = - z 7223 Sesodst

or'e9 S9'E Lo 34 96°0 6L'SS Tea a1y Jo
19l - Ty S€0 Tr'E 19°1 L08€E L10z 1 dY & 5y

1 HespIowe / uoyesldap pajemunIIy
9T’k 80'S8 6508 ir1 1592 178 0£98T 6102 "I€ PICW IE 5V
1Tor . €00 - - [0 3 S[EsodEg|
£€0 - S00 - : - 820 (z€ @0u I3§oy) uoneIsd() PHMITLOOSI(]
LTL8T 80'S8 061 . 8Ll e 00°€8 SUOTIPRY
£5°197 = LL5] 'l ELFE 08 SSEIT 810T ‘I [udy e 5y
€519 - LL'ST Lp'1 §LPT 109 SS'EIZ ST0T ‘IE PICN 18 5V
1% €00 : = 3 80% sesodsic]

- T - 5 7 = RIJSUBRL
3668 06'p 190 4% 61 00°LL FUOHIPPY

| 9z9ct _ 0601 080 6l sy €90r 1 L10T 1 udy ® 5
junowre Wﬂﬁﬂﬂ g.—_.pU

puEg Tuamdinby STETTERGET: [ Fouiig
1oL ployasea] PO SPIeA ployssea] pue asnjuang ssandwio)y slojnandud

juawdinbe pue jueyd .hf.umpl_._h

‘€

(paje)s 251419110 SSI[UN 524013 YN Ul SJUNOWY’)
6102 ‘TE YIEIN p2pUa J2a4 31 Joj 53 Jess et ] dUO[BPUE)S A1) 03 SAON

$8680TDTd000TTAO0TTLA ‘NID
PAWYT SUOPEINWWO)) £GUQ




(1811 1070 0611 8107 1€ PO I S|
[Tit 10°0 Ll 6107 1€ P I S|
JNOWES SUIALIED JIN

6+'1T 010 6512 6107 1€ YPIE JU sV

L0 E 940 S[esodst

199 3 199 Teok oy oy
posi 010 ¥esl __8log ' mdv e sy
+9'ST 010 +S'S1 SI0T 1€ WPIEW 38 5V
. - - sesadsi(
(43 r 78 Teok o1 30
86 010 L6 £10Z 1 [udY 1 5Y
noSHIoWE Foju] v

16'8€ 11°0 08'8€ 6107 1€ PIEN 185V

vET * PEl esods
oLzl - orzl SUOTIPPY
ss'LT 1o P LT 810T ‘1 [udy Je 5y
SS'LT [ PrLT 8102 1€ PN B 5V
: . - esdiig]
s & s SuonIppY
ez o €€TT £10T ‘1 udy 12 5y
junome wnl—Hnu $50.45)
JTAOS
moL pejesemas Ajjemaouy o HOS semapaeg

AT J|QIBUEIN] ‘b

(Pa3€)S ISIAIY)IO SSIUN “§3101d YN Ul SJUnROWY)

6T0Z ‘L€ Y24EJA] Papua 18a£ ay3 10) 53 1E1S 18! 1] auojepuelg oY) 0) sa30N
§8680101d000TTA00ZTLN NID

PajIwT suoyeAuRWWO)) LGUO




!

Sasgndsdensr Finmnafal Matemeonty

One97 Communicatons Limited

CIN: UT2200DL2000PLC108985

Noles (o the Standalone Financlal Statements for the yem ended Barch 31, 2019
s A IR Cyares, wides stheywive widrd)

5 Invesmient n subsidlaries Non Curre
Avm Asat

March 33,2009 March 3l 2008

Investment in equity Instrum ents
Unqnoied equity shar'es (Fully paid up)

One97 Communications Nigeria Limited 0.30 030

10,000,000 (March 31, 2018: 10,000,000) equity shares of NGN 1 each

One9? Communications FZ LLC 2.08 2,08

1,500 (March 31, 2018 1,500) equity shares of AED 1000 each

One9? Communicetions India Limited 83,15 40,15

£3,150,000 (March 31, 2018 40,150,000) equity shares of INRI0 each

Oned7 Communications Singapore Privale Limiled 3310 1B 89

3,356,100 (Merch 31, 2018 : 3,356,100) equity shares of SGD 1 each

Oned7? USA Inc imn 332

532,000 (March 31, 2018 : 532,000) equity shares of USD 1 each

Paytm Financial Services Limiled 2.00 200

2,000,000 (March 31, 2018 : 2,000,000) equity shares af face value of INR 10 each

Paytm Enleriginment Limiled 63.83 001

61,010,000 (March 31, 2018 : 10 000) equity shares of face value of INR 10 each

Paytm Money Limited B0 35 10.00

78,870,000 (March 31, 2018 : 10,000,000) equity shares of fece value of INR 10 each

‘Wasteland Enlertainment Private Limited 11968 3500

44337 (March 31, 2018 : 22,996) equlty sheres of INR 10 each

Orbgen Technologies Private Liriied (Refer notes (i) & (iv) below) 58.81

974,880 (March 31,2018 : Nl) equity shares of INR 10 each

Urja Money Private Limited 14.00 600

1,637,912 (March 31,2018 : 1,173,5680) equity shares of INR 10 each

Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Privale Limiled 804 8.04

115,035 (March 31,2018 115,035) equity shares of INR 10 each

Little Internet Private Limited (Refer note (1) below) 20511 257.15

13,477,263 (March 31, 2018 : 13,477,263) equity shares of face value of INR 10 each

QorQL Private Limited (Refer nole (iil) below)

25,60,938 (March 31, 2018 : Nil) equlty shares of face value of INR 10 each

Cube 26 sofiware private limited (Refer note (i) below) 074

586,300 (March 31, 2018 : Nil) equity shares of face value of INR 10 each

Belence Technology Private Limlted (Refer note (1) below) 1.60

15000 (March 31, 2019 : Ni) equity shares of face value of INR 10 each

Total (A) = 676.11 38294
q! [ shares (Fully pald up)

Mobiques! Moblle Tedinologles Private Limited 217 217

35,710 (March 31, 2018 35,710) compulsory convestible preference sheres of INR 10 each

Little Internet Privete Limiled - 15.16 15.16

520,000 (March 31, 2018 : 520,000) Ce C i hi of face value of INR 10 each

Totat (B) 1738 17.33

Grand Tolal [A+B] 693.44 400.27

Aggregate amouni of unquoted Investmenis 693.44 40027

Aggregale amoant of in the value of 128.67

(i) Invesments woquired during the year.

(ii) Nel of provislon for impaimment amounting to INR $1.00 (March 31, 2018: NIL). Alsorefe notes 11(a) () and 21,

(i) Converted o investment in subsidiery during the year ended March 31, 2019. Nel of provisian far Lmpeimment amounting to INR 2.56 (Merch 31, 2018 : Nil). Aleo refer nate 21,

(i) Orbgen Technologles Privale Limlled was acquired during the year for consideration other than cash, through swep of Campany’s equity sheres with the previous sharchdders of Orbgen
Tectmologies Private Limited The smount of lovestment disclosed shove is net af provision fix impeirment amounting to INR 75.11 (March 31,2018 : NIL). Also refer note 21,

(v) For acquisitian of Little Intamet Privete Limlted In previous year (refer nole 11(s)(¢)), equity shares were imsied during the year for conslderation other then cash, through ewap of Company’s

equity shures with the previous shareholders of Little Internel Private Limited

(This space is intertionally left blank)




Stundslone Financial Statements

One9? Communl cations Limited

CIN: U72208DL2000PL C108985

Notes (o the Standalone Financial Staiements for the yest ended March 31, 2019
iAmmEin INR Crorey, waless odlierwise stufody

6, Investinenl fn assoclates - Non Cuwrent
Asat

_ Mach 31, 2018

Unquoted equity shares (Fully pald up)
Paytm Peymenls Bank Limited 156.00 156 00
156,003,900 (March 31, 2018 : 156,003,900) equily shares of INR 10 each

Paytm General Insurance Corporation Lid* 005
49,000 (March 31, 2018 : Nil) eqity shares of INR 10 each

Puytm Life Insurance Corporation Limited* 005
49,000 (March 31, 2018 : Nil) equity shares of INR 10 each

Total (A) T “156.10 T 15600
Unqueteil compulyorly convertible preference chares (Fully pald up)

Loginext Saiutions Private Limitest * 18.00 2255
279,443 (March 31, 2018 ; 279,443) Campulsorily Convertible Preference shere of face value of INR 10 each

Socomo Technologies Private Limited* *
28,800 (March 31, 2018 : 28,800) Compulsorily Convertible Preference share of face value of INR  each

Total (B) ) 18.00 2255

Unquoted compulsorily convertible debenture (Fully pald up)

QorQL Privale Limlled # 200
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 2,000,000) Campulsorily Convertible Debentures of INR 10 each

Totad (C) - 2.00
Grend Told [A+B+C] ———— [T 15055
Agdgregate amount of unquoted investments 174.10 180.55
Aggregale amount of In the value of 6934 6529

+4 Net of provision for impaimment amounting INR 27.05 (March 31,2018 : 22.50) and INR 42.79 (March 31, 2018 : 42.79) for Loginex! Solulions Private Limited and Socomo Technologies Privale Limiled, respeclively

# Canverled lo investmen in subsidiary during the yemr ended March 31, 2019.
* Investmenls made during the year.

7. Financial essets
7 (@) Investments - Curren(
Arat Aval
March X1, 2019 March 31, 2018
Investments s fair value (brough profit and loss
Mutual Funds (Quoted)

Aditya Birla Sun Life Cash Plus - Growth - Direct Plan 566,86
NI unlts (March 31, 2018 : 20,294,811 units)

Aditya Birla Sun Life Floating Rate Pund - Long Tesm - Growth-Direct . 31004
Nil units ( March 31, 2016 114,398,760 units)

Aditya Birla Sun Life Savings Fund - Growth - Dired! Plan - 256.49
Nil units ( March 31,2018 :7,437,811 unils)

Asis Liquid Fund- Direct Growth 4501
217,056 units ( March 31, 2018 :Nil mjls)

DSP BluckRock Liqui dity Fund-Direct Plan-Growth 3629
Nil units ( Merch 31, 2018 :146,000 units)

HDFC Floating Raie Incame Fund Short -Direct Plan - Wholesle Growth Option 102.85
Nil units ( March 31, 2018 ;33,850,370 unlts)

HDFC Ligéd Fund - Direct Plan-Growth 793.00
NI undts { March 31, 2008 2,316,075 unily)

ICICI Prudential Flexible Income - Direct Plan - Growth . 5594
Nif units (March 31, 2018 :1,670,459 units)

ICICI Prudential Liquid - Direct Plm - Growth 626.96 568.99
22,681,730 unils ( March 31, 2018 :22,14,137 units)

ICICT Prudential Liquid Regular Plan Growth 118
Nil units ( March 31, 2018 :45,932 unts)

ICICI Prudential Liquid - Direct Flm - Growth (refer note G) below) 142.08
5,139,147 unlts ( March 31, 2018 :NIl units)

IDFC Cash Fund Direct Plan - Growth 228 7432
10,068 uaits ( March 31, 2016 :352,191 units)

Rellance Liquid Fund - Treasury Plan - Direct Qrowth Plan - Growth Oplion 8820
Nil units ( March 31, 2018 ;208,025 units)
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Stapdadone Finandial Stalemmis
Oned? Communlcations Limlited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Sotes o the Stendadone Flnancial Statementy fon Wve yose eaeded Ko 35, 2078

AAmounts in INH Crocey naten oifwrwiee datedy

Reliance Liquid Fund - Direct Plan Growth Plan - Growth Option
1,677,500 umils (March 31, 2018 :Nil units)

Reliauce Medium Term Fund Direct Plan Growlh
Nil units (March 31, 2018 :68,389,527 unils)

Reliance Money Manager Fund Direct Plan Growth
Nil units { March 31,2018 :1,051,459 unils)

SBI Magoum Insla Cash Fund - Direct Plan - Growih
Nil umits ( March 31,2016 :27,156 unils)

SBI Liquid Fund- Direcl - Growth (Formerly SBT Premier Liquid Fund)
2,597,386 units ( March 31, 2018 :77,954 units)

UTI- Liquid Fund-Cash Plan-Growth Direct
102,459 units ( March 31, 2018 :Nil units)

UTI-Treasury Advaniage Fund-Inslitutional Plan-Dired Plan-Growth
Nil units ( March 31,2018 :1,061,933 units)

Total (A)

Debenfures (unquoted)

Ciqual Limited (refer note (iii) md (iv) below)
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 27,876,274) Convertible Loan Noles of GBF 0.01 each

Total (B)
Investments at amortised cost
Dbt Inatramends {qualed)

Kotak Mahindra Prime L4d 8.019% NCD 29 Jen 2019
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 150) Ne Non Co ible D: of INR 1,000,000 each

Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd 8.709% NCD 10 Aug 2018
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 100) Non Convertible D of INR 1,000,000 each

Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd 8.03% NCD 14 Feb 2019
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 500) Nan C D of INR 1,000,000 each

Kotak Mahindra Investments Lid §.10% CP 21 Feb 2019
Nil (Merch 31, 2018 : 4000) Commercial Papers of INR 500,000 each

HDFC 7.40% NCD 22 Nov 2018
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 175) ble Non C Di of INR 10,000,000 each

HDFC 0% ZCB 30 Oct 2018
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 1000) Zevo Coupon Bonds of INR 1,000,000 cach

LIC Housing Finance Limited 9.65% NCD 25 Mar2019

Nil (March 31, 2018 : 250) Non Convertibl of INR 1,000,000 each

LIC Housing Finance Limited9.7624% NCD 8 Mar 2019

Nil (March 31, 2018 : 250) Non Convertibi of INR 1,000,000 cach

LIC Housing Finance Limled B 70% NCD 17 Dec20138

Nil (March 31, 2018 : 500) Noa C of INR. 1,000,000 each

Tata Capital Finandial Services Limited 8.20% NCD 8 Mar 2019

NIl (March 31, 2018 : 500) i Non € of INR 1,000,000 cach

LIC Housing Finance Limited 7.085% NCD 23 Apr 2019

1000 (March 31,2018 : Nit) Non C af INR 1,000,000 each
Told (O

Total current Investman s [A+B+C]

(Thuis space is intertionatly left blank)
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Saanddonre Finansial Statements
One97 Commun cations Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Nofes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

7(b) Investments - Non Current

Asal Asal
_ Blwreh 33, 2008 _ Darch 35 2018

Investments al falr value (hrough OCI (refer noe (i) below)
Unquoied equity shares (Fully pald up)

Ciqual Limited (refer note @iii) and (iv) below)
2043276 (March 31, 2018 127 ,489) equity shares of GBP 0.03 each

Highorbit Careers Privale Limited 038 036
235 (March 31, 2018 : 235) equity shaves of INR 10 each
ZEPO Tedmologies Privale Limited 228 228
3,458 (March 31,2018 : 3,458) Equity shares of face value INR 10 each
Pilani Experts Techmalogy Labs Private Limiled L84 049
1,277 (March 31,2018 : 1,277) equity shares of INR 10 each
Red Pixels Ventures Limited 037 044
1,093 (March 31,2018 : 1,093) Equity shares of face value INR 10 each

Total (A) T aw e
Trvestments o P value woagh Profi sd fes

Unquoted Compulsorily Canvertible Preference shares (Fully pald up)

Iitiing Clouds Tech Privale Limiled (refer nole (ili) below)
3,620 (March 31,2018 : 3,620) Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares of INR 10 cach
Busy Bees Logistics Solution Private Limited B2.16 48 58
18,121 (March 31, 2018 : 18,121) Compulsorily Convertible Preference shere of face value of INR 10 each
Avenues Payments India Private Limited 1,00 7.00
11379 (March 31, 2018 : 11,379) Cc C il here of face value of INR 100 each
Pilani Experis Technology Labs Private Limifed 042
289 (March 31, 2018 : Nil) Camputsorily Convertible Preference share of face value INR 100 each

£9.58 55,58

Unquoted equity shares (Fully pald up)
Paytm E-cammerce Privaie Limited 5.74 4513
1,792 (March 31,2018 ; 11,276) Equily shares of face value INR 10 each held try Employee Welfare Trust

Total (B) 9532 100.71

Investments sl am ortised cost

Debi Instruments (quoted)
LIC Housing Finance Limlted 7,065% NCD 23 Apr 2019 - 10245
NiI (Merch 31, 2018 : 1000) Non C ible D of INR 1,000,000 each
Totd (C) _ A 102.45
Totel Non Current investm ents (A+B+C) . 100.19 20678
Tolal Current Investmenis 2472.65 439997
Tolal Non-Curreni Investments 100.19 20673
2,572.84 4,606.70
Aggregate book value of mquoted lnvestments 100.19 104.28
Aggregate book value of quoled mvestmen(s 2412.65 4,502.¢2
Aggregate markel value of quoied Ivestments 2472.68 4,502.42
Ag@regate amount of Impairment In the value of investments 467 467
Notes {0 7 () mnd 7 (b) above

(@) ICICI Prudential Liquld - Direct Plan - Growth is marked imdef [len by banks for bank overdmfl umounting to INR 142,05 (Murch 31, 2018 NIL) and for guarantees INR Nil (March 31, 2018 INR
0.70) issued agalnst various cantracts,

() Investments et falr value through OCT (fully paid) reflect investmentin unquoted equlty securifies, Refes nole30 (or determination of thelr falr values

(i4f) The Campany holds these investments, however the fair value is Nif.

(i) In current year, Ciqual Limited has converted 27,876,274 loan ndles of GBP 0.01 ¢ach into 2,815,767 ovdinary shisres of GBP 0.01 each

(This space is intentionaily left blank)




Standalone Flnancial Statements
Oned? Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC19B985
Noftes to the Standalone Financla Statemenis for the year ended Mai ch 31, 2019

7(c) Loans
Non-Current Current_
Avm Asal
Muarch 33,2000 Muweh 31,2000 Mareh 31, 2019 Narch 31,2008
Inier Corporate Loans#
with relaled parties (refer nole 25) 242 220
Others 27221
Security deposils 104 50 3227 2900 411
Less: Loss allowance for security deposits ©11) 11 v
104,39 SLI_S‘ 303,63 6.31
Break-up of security detalls _ . S B
Avad Ay
March 31, 2018 March 31, 201% __ Niurehi 31, 301%
Seaured, consi dered good . - . .
Unsecured, considered good 10439 32.16 303.63 6.31
Security deposit which have significant increase in credit risk 011 011
Security deposit Credit Impaired o - o -
104,50 3227 303.63
Loss allowance ©.11) ©.11) - -
Total Loans 104.39 32.16 303.63 6.31

#Theinter carporale loans include loans given to r subsidiary end two other parties afier complying with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies act, 2013, The loans have been given in accordance with terms aud
ions of the Al ‘The toan given lo the one of the parties, is at lhe rate of 8% per eunum, is repayable on demand, from the dale of dawing of the loan, from the specified limil of emounl extended as
barowing 1o the paty. For other parties including the relaled party lhe amounts are repayable within twelve months. The loan Lo the related party and remuinling other party carries a rate of inlerest of 1196 per annum and 1096

per armum for respective amounts.

1id) Other Mnend el waels

Bank balaces
Deposils wilh original maturity for more than 12 months (Refer note 10(8)(b) & 10(a)(c))

Others

Loan 10 employees

Other advances recoversble in cash

Accrued Irlerest on Debt Instruments measured al amortised cost
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits

Unbilled revenue

Less: Loss allowance for unbilled revenue

Am ount recoverable from Payment Gatewsy banks®
Unsecured, considered good

Amount recoverable from othier parties

Amoun recovernble from releted partles (Refer note 25)
Unseced, considered doubifid

Amounl recoverable from other parties

Less *Loss allowance

Unseamed, considered good

Amount recoverable from related parties (Refer nole 25)
Amount recoverable fram other parties (Refer nole 35)
Unteaumed, comrdered doohithul

Amount recoverable from related parties (Refer nole 25)

Less; Loss allowance for recoverable from refoted parties

Totd [A+B+C]

*The amounl represent recoverable fram payment galeway banks an account of aredit card/debit card and net banking transactions related lo trd party merchants.

Bresk up of Onancial acsety carried at amortised cost

‘Trude recelvables (Note B)

Cash md cash equivalents (Note 10(a))

Bank belmoes other than cash and cash equivalents (Note 10(b))
Secusity deposlls (Note 7(c))

Inter corporete 1oms (Note 7(c))

Others (Note? ()

Tevestments (Nede 7(1) and 7(bY)

Break up of Anandal eszets carried af fair valne

Evestments at fuir value through OCI (Refer note 7(b))
Luvestuients at fulr value tkrough Prafit and loss (Refer note 7(0) &7(b))

Non Current
Ayt
Murch 31, 2019 Mlarch 31, 2018
299 B.07 9848 130.01
324
- 1821
- 608 743 E
uir 049 3.69 470
. 20434 5209
(17.80) (2.35)
331 14.64 3759 17945
650.71 29016
511.03 11557
. 3.04 302
1,164.78 408.75
. 3.04) (302)
1I6L74 405.73
25.09 2.5 11625 B1.49
10841 206.47 297.25 440.69
- - 339 339
13350 22900 416.89 525.57
- - 039) 639)
133.50 229.00 413,50 522,18
13481 24344 159251 L107.38
i il =Lt ——
Nan-current Current
Aral

March31,2009  _ Mach3L200

As ol
Nureh 31,2019

— March 31,2008

24221 504.76

23522 261.99

- - 621 2493

10439 32.16 29.00 411

. . 274.63 220

136.81 24354 1,692.83 1,107.36

. 10245 99.06 746.99
FITET s 5T EYITR

Non-curreni Curreni
As ot Av

March 31, 2019 Narch 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 Murvh 31, 2018

487 3s7 '
9532 100.71 237389 3,65296
100.19 10423 247089




Standatane Dlemdlal Maleimmls

Oned7 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Neotes (o the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Ammnds i INR Cvoees, unbess othersdie dided) . s

8, Trade receivables

“Trade Receivables

Receivables from related parties (Refer Notes (i) & (ii) below)
Receivables from other parfies (Refer nole 35)

Less: Loss allowance

Current
Non-curreni

Break-np of sccurity detalls

Trade recelvables

Secured, cons dered good

Unseaured, considered good

Trede receivable which hwve sgnificant inerease i credit risk
“Trade receivable Credit Impumired

| Less: Loss allowance
| Total Trade recelvables

Asat Asat
L Machsiers  Mwch3udew
26061 196,93
5187 9398
180 27323
(72.07) (59.38)
242.21 504.76
24221 50476
Asa
Murch 31,2000
26284 54353
—1 T 061
428 564,14
(207) (59.38)
2221 504.76

(i) No trade or othier receivable are due from directors or other officers of Ihe Compatty either severally or Jolnlly with eny other person. Nor any trade ar other receiveble are due from firms or privale companies respectively in

ikl sy director fe o parines, o dleceter ér 8 member, excopl as disd osed above.
(Ul) For relaled party receivables, refer nole 25

(ll) Trude receivables are non-interest bearing and carry a credit period af upto 90 days

9. Other assets
Mewscurrent Current
Avm Arm Anad Ava
Muarch 41, 2819 March 31, 2018 March 31,2010 Atarch 31, 2018
Cepftal advances
Unsecured, conzidered good 227 102
Doubiful 0.08 ons ) -
235 L10 .
Liss Provision for doubdfls) scvinces (©.08) ©.08)
A 2.27 1.02
Advantes sthir than coplial sdvences
Advances 1o vendory
Unsecured, considered good 9991 3659 842 44 39221
Doubtful = . 6.86 346
el 3659 849.30 397.27
Less Provision for doublful advances - - B . (6.5} (4}
B 99.91 3659 342.4 39221
Others
Balances with govenment authaorilics :
Goods md sevice lax input aredit 366.68 3684
Value Added Tax (VAT) credil receivable . 019 0.19
Prepayments s 16.09 63.50 50.61
Advanoces to related parties* (refer note 25)° 15202 16588
Advances to olher parties (refer nole35) - - - 255
c 38.86 16.09 239 277.07
Totl A4B1) XTI S0, (T %
! 1 i athier offi cers of the Campany elther severlly ar jolntly with any other parson. Nor any advance are recoverable fram firms or private compnies respectively in which amy

direcior i3 u partner, a director or a member, except as disclosed above.

(This space ts mtertionally left blank)




Sawladons Funmylal Statemmiy
One9? Coinmuni cations Limited
CIN: UT2200DL2000PLC108985

Nofes to the Standalone Financial Statements for' the yes' ended March 31, 2019

(Amounts in INR Crores, unjess otherwise stated)

10(a). Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Balance with banks
- On current accounts

- Deposits with original malurity for less than 3 months.

Notes :

(8) There are no repatriation restrictions with regard (o cash and cash equivalents ss at the end of Lhe reporting peviod and prior period.

Asal Avwr
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
0 o1
23519 26112
- o 0.76
23522 26199

(b) Fixed depasils jnduded in note 7(d) and 10(b) are marked under lien by banks for guarantess amounting to INR 10738 (Merch 31, 2018 : INR 241.93) issued agalost vari ous conlracts.
() Fixed deposits induded in note 7(d), 10(a) and 10(b) with a carrying amount of INR 0.30 (March 31, 2018 : INR 62.11) are subject fo first charge to secure the Companry's Working Capital facllity.

Faor the purpose of the statement of cash Mows, cash and cash equivalents camprise the following:

Cash on hand
Balance with banks
- On cusrent accounts

- Deposits with original matwity of less than 3 moaths

Other bank balances
Bank overdraft

Mergin money deposit
Balanwe with ofher banks

Cash and cash for 1he porp

£0(d). Bank batances other than cash and cash equivalents

Deposits with originel meturity of more than 3 months but Iess then 12 moaths (Refer note 10(z)(b) & 10(a)(c))

W

——————
0 Charlergy
P

1 AAG.

(This space is intentionally left blank)

Arat Asel
March 31,2019 Mareh 81, 2018
0.03 o1l
235.19 26112
- 076
FITETS 26199
(695.50) (241.65)
(695.50 (241.65)
4502 2034
Asd Asat

_ Merch3L209 _ Mecch3i208

621

2493

6.21

24.93
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Ones7 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC 108985

Noies 10 ihe Standalone Financial Statements for the year anded March 31, 2019

(Amounis in INR Crores, unless otherwise staled) - _ R .

11 (a). Share Cepltal Number of Shares Amount

Authorised equity share capital

As of April 01, 2017 56,100,000 56.10
Increase/ (decrease) during the year ; = —
As o March 31,2018 S, 100,000 56.10
Increase/ (decrease) during the year . 48,006,600 480l
As at March 31,2019 LG L BE 800 104.11

Authorized preference share capital

As ol April 01, 2017 2,759,000 4301
Increase/ {decrease) during the year
As s March 31,2018 2,759,000 480

Increase/ (decvease) during the year _@r59000) @8.01)
As @l March 31, 2019 : -

~Convertedinlo authorised equity share capital in the ratio L: 17.4

Termy righis attached to equity shares
All the equity shares issued to investors and ather shareholders stusll rank pari passu and have  par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held only.

Dimed, piberribed wnd Nadly puid op dares Asa As st

Aureh 31,2019 o Machinom
57,533,866 (March 31, 2018 : 55,325,271) equily shares of INR 10 each flly paidup 5753 5532
Totl Issucd, ynbrcribed and fully pald-up share capital 57.53 55.32

& Recondlistion of the chares outstanding at ¢the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity shares Diarch 51, 201% Murch 31,2019 Mawch $1, 3018 March £1, 1018
Nuomber Amount Number Am ount
Sheres outslanding at the begiming af the year* 54,998,632 5532 46,626,540 46.99
Shares issued during (he year 2.094,650 208 8,127,633 809
Shures fssued during the year - ESOP (Refer nate 24) 162847 0.16 244,459 024
Shares outslanding ai the end of the year* 57356.129 57.53 S4.900 452 S8.3X

* Net of treasury shares 277,737 (March 31, 2018: 326,639) at nil cost through emplayee welfare trusd (refer note 2.2(m))

b. Detalls of tharehalders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Nwme of sharcholder March 31, 2019 March 31,2019 ___ March 31,2018 _Muarch 33, 200
Number of Shares held 96 holding Number of Shares held % holding

Alipay Singapore E-Commerce Private Limiled 17,544,525 30.49% 17,544,525 31L.71%

SVF India Holding (Cayman) Limlled 11326223 19.69% 11326223 2047%
Mr.Vijay Shekher Sharma 9,051,624 15.73% 9,051,624 16 36%
SAIF Il Muuritius Company Limiled 7491061 13.02% 7,491,061 13.54%
Allbaba.com Singapore E-Commerce Privale Limlied 4428214 7.70% 4,428,214 8.00%

SATF Partners Iniia TV Limited 3,180,202 553% : 3054370 5.52%

¢ Shares reserved for Issue mder options

For delails af shares reserved for issue under the employee stock options plan (ESOP) of the Company (refer nole 24)

Shere application money pending allolment mounting o INR Nil (March 31,2018 : INR 0.05) represents amaount recel ved from employees for exercising the employee slock options

4. Aggregale number of banus shares trsucd, shares boughi back md share lued for conslderation other than cash during the period of five years tnmedlately preceding the reparting date:

The Company has issued 333,035 shares for cousideration other than cach during the year, no such shares issued in the previous five years, The Company has nof issued bonus ehares 2nd has not bought back shares during the

perlod of five years immediatety preceding the reporiing dale. . . .
. Datrusients entiredy equily In nefure
Ce 3 fered 30, 2017 between the Campany, Little Intemet Private Limited (‘LI'), Shereholders of LI, Nearbuy India Privaie Limited {'NBI'), and Shareholders of NBL the

shareholders of NBI swepped their shares in NBI with shares in LI, resulting in their becomlng 37% shercholders of LI and NBI becoming wholly owned subsidiury of LL The Compeny through further restruchuring oflis

existing investments in LI (596) and Little Singapore Pte Limlted (‘LS") (2795), as well as through its obligation (o issue firther sheres omounting toINR 173.63 (o other shareholders of LI became 63% shereholder in LL The
ing of existing in LI andLS, as di d sbove, resulted [n LS buying back 2796 stake af the Campany in LS for INR 77.40 and the Compagy forther Infusing INR €3.53 In L1 The buybadk resulledin

the Campany recoeding gain of INR 44.11. Company's obligstion to [ssue further shares smounting to INR 173.63 to olher sharchotders of LI was diaclosed as “Insdruments entirely equity ln nature under Equity in the

Previous year.

During the anrent year, the Company has allotled shares amounting to Rs, 172.59 Crares based on the share swap report. Thiie has resviled in an adjustment of Ra. 1,04 Crares In the carvying value of investments in Litile

Indin Private Limlted

(This space is intentionaly left blank)
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements lor the year ended March 31, 2019

_(Amounts In INR Croves, wdeis atheymiue slajed) e -

11 (b). Other equity

1. Reserve and Surplus
Securities premium
Employee slock opfions oulstanding accoun! (ESOP Reserve)
Relained eamings

Total reserve and surplus (A)

® Securities premfum

Opening balamce

Ade (rnsferred from ESOP Reserve on exercise of slock options
Add amount received during the year on issue of shares

Add shares issued for consideration other than cash

Less: amoun vlilized fowards shere issue expenses

Balance @ the end of the year

() Employee stock options outstanding account (ESOP Reserve)
Upening balance

Add Share based paymen! expense (refer nole 24)

Add: Share based paymenl for emplayees of group companies (refer nole 24)
Less: amount (raneferred to securilies premium on exercise of stock options
Less; reversal on forfelture of siock options (refer nole 24)

Less: adjustment on cancellation of unvesied stack options (tefer note 24)
Balance at the end of the year

(U Retained emrnings

Opening balance

Loss for the year

Less: remeasurement of post-cployee benefil obligation

Add trensfer from employee slock options oulstanding sccourd (refer note 24)
Add adustmen! @ cancellation of unvesied ESOP (refer nole 24)

Add: other adusiments

Balance al the end of the year

2. Share application mouney pending allotm ent
Opexing balance

Less: Exerdige af share options

Receipl of share spplication moncy

Balance al the end of the year (B)

3. Other reserves- FVTOCT

Opeuing balmce

Net change in falr value of equity instruments s FVTOCT
‘Balance at the end of the year (C)

‘Totsl other equity (A+B+C)

Nature and purpose of reserves
(@) Securities premium

Asal As at
L Marth $1,001% March 31,2018
13,822.69 11,324.23
198,46 127,70
(B840} {4,101.84)
5,980.75 7,350.09
1132423 4,883.28
18.69 1240
2187.41 6,435.46
294.75 -
239) (691)
ALELLE9 11,324.23
127.70 6594
86.06 1247
25.90 479
(18.69) (12.40)
(349 (310)
(907
198.48 127,70
@.101 84) (2,61726)
(3.959.64) (1,490,47)
(.43 (0.76)
344 310
19.07
— . Sy 355
Bo4040) (410140
0.0 022
©05) 022)
. 005
0.05
354 (354)
117 .
29 5D
5,978.50 T A0

Securities premium Is used 1o recard Lhe premium on issue of sheres. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act

() Employee riock options ouistanding account (ESOP Rexerve)

Employee stock optlons outstanding account is used to fecognise the grant date falr vatue of options issued lo emplayees under the One 97 Employee Stock Option Plen

(tif) FVTOUT Reserve

The Company ha elected to recognise changes In the falr values of the cerisin in equity i in other

FVTOCT reserve within equity. The Company lransfers amounts from this reserve lo relsined eamlng when relevant equity securilies are derecognised

Income. These changes ere accumulaled within the

12, Providons
Mo curvent Currenl
Arat As @t
Mereh 31, 2019 ___ March A1 1018 Muareh 31, 2019 As ul March 31, 2018
Provision for employee beneflis
Provision far gratuity (refer nole 26 ) 8.65 830 - 5
Providon far leave benefils* - 37.63 28.73
8.65 §.30 37.63 26,73
— = — ——

*The eatire amount ofthe provision of INR 37.63 (March 31, 2018 INR 28.73) is presented as cument, gince the compny does nol have am unconditianal right to defer setttement for amy of these obllgalions. However based ou
past experience, the company docs not expect all employees 1o avall the full amount of iccrued leave w reyuire payment for such leave within ihe next 12 manths. The amoun! nol expected to be seftled within next twelve

manths is INR 28.05 ( March 31, 2018 INR 21.15).

(This space is intentionally left blank)




Stendalone Financlal Statements
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Notes lo the Siandalone Financial Stalements for the year ended March 31, 2019
iAtmounts in INR Cror'es, unless othe: wise staled)

13. Financial lighllities

(@) Borrowlugs

Secured
Loan repayable on demand- bank overdrafl (refer note i) below)

Unsecured

Deferred paymenl liabililies from Noida authority* (refer note (ii) below)

Total borrowings

Less: Currenl melurities of deferred payment liablities (Refer note 13(c))

Totdl borrowings (as per Balance Sheet)

Note:

— Bk 3y, 2008

= 24165
241.68
3691
36.91
3691 o 9550 24168
995 -
Z&g} 695,50 241.68

() Bank Overdrafl (borrowing in TNR) are repayeble on demand and carry imerest st [-MCLR and “spread” per annum. As on the reporting dale, I-MCLR is 8 75% (March 31, 2018: 8.15%) and spreadis 1.2% (March 31,
2018: 1.45%) Bank overdrafl are secured by way of hypothecati on on Ihe entire current assels, pledge on mutusl funds and also backed by imevocable and personel guarentee of M. Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Chairman and

Managing Director.

(il) D eferred payment llabilities 1o Noida Authority (in INR) is in respect of land acquired on finance lease, isTepayable in elghl equal helf yeaty i
interest al the rale of 11 percenl per annum compounded ha!f yearty. The lessor has a right to cancel the sltotment in the even! of defaull (Refer Nole 3)

*New Okhla Industrial Developmeni Authority, Utlar Pradesh

Net debl recouclliadon

Opening net deb

Cash flows/ assels acquired
Interesi expense

Interest paid

Closing net dedt

*includes INR 9.95 Cr. daselfied as cumrent maturilies of deferred payment liablities under ather finencial Liabilities

(b) Trade payables

Current

‘Trade payabl e

‘Trade payabtes o refefed parties (Refer note 25)
‘Trade payables o other parfies (Refer note 35)

#hefer note 29 for MSMED disclosure

(i) Totat Outsianding dues of micyo and small enferprises
(ii) Total Outstanding dues other than ) above

(€) Other finandal Habilities

Carrent

Puyable lomerchants

Payable to mer chaais- related parties (Refer nole25)
Payable (o merchanis- Other parties (Refer note 35)

“Current i ¥ {inchsding inlerest acaued and not due) (Refer note 13(2))
Payable on purchase of fixed ansets

Payable on purchase of fixed assels- refated parties (Refer nole 25)

Employee benefits payable

Ofhar anaanl recelved Som ouonrs

Other amouni rectived fram costomers- refaled puoties (Refer note 25)

Others
Others- related parties (Refer note 25)
Olhers- Other parties (Refer note 35)

Terms s conditions of the abeve fnmdul Natilities

(1) Trade and ather payables are nan-interest beasing and carry credit period of upto 60 days

Note: All (inandal Habilities are carried af amortized cost

14 Odhver current Dahilies

Advence from customers
Advance fram customers- related parties (Refer nole 25)
Other payable
Siatutary dues payable:
Tk dhehactid b souioe paysble
GST Paysble
Tex callected at source payable
Provident fund peyable
Other statidory dues

* amount bef ow romding off norms adopled by the Campany

with first i starting from December 31, 2048 and carry
Mureh 31, 2019 Blwrch 38, 2008
Nan aorrent Current borrowings Non cwrrent borrowings Currenl baTowings
— borreling®
241,65 2027
36.00 453,65 151.38
443 10.57 - 12,29
(52) (1057) (1229)
3691 695.50 241.65
Asal Asat

March 31, 2019 March 34, 2018
543.20 366.23
12054 5932
954 0.80
67328 426,35
11.24 0.B8
662.04 425.47
673.28 426.35
27003 11192
244.69 289
1267 3L10

995 -
41,99 1237

1.60 -
577 LIRS

2475 .

015 -
253 7.16

310 .
055 0.94
699.18 227.84

Aval Asat

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
2595
0.14
. 0.08
29.65 1498
115.07 505

6.76 -
146 137
0.09 0.08
158.03 47.85




Standalone Financial Statements

One97 Conimundcations Limlted

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC103985

Notes (o the S(andalone Financial Stntements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Amounts In INR Crores, ardess otherwise stated) S

15. Revenne from opcrutions

Revenue (rom contracts with customers
Sale of services (tefer noles below)

i) Refer note 2.2d far change in accaunting policies consequent to adoption of IND AS 115
i) Refer note 34 for disapgregated details of revenue from operatians.

16. Other Income

Fair value geln on investments measized at FVTPL (nel)

Ghin an sale of current investmenls measured al FVTPL (nel)

Profit on salo of propenty, ptaal and equipment (nel)

Liabilitles / Provision no tonger required writlen back

Exchange differences (nef)

Miscellunous Income

Interest incame
-on benk depodils
dntecest ca Income b oefind
~Intevest on assels given on finance lease 1o related parties (Refer nole 25)
-Inievest on Inler corporaie loans - measured at amortized cost
<Inferest Income on unwlnding of discount - measured at amortized cost
“Interest Income on debenfures -messured at amortlzed cost

Other non operaling income

17. Employee beneflis expense

Salarles, banus and incentives

Contribution to provident and other funds
Shere based payment expenses (refer Note 24)
Leave Encashment Expense

Gratuity expenses (refer Note 26)

Slaff welfare expenses

13, Finance costs
Inlerest
- on borrowings at amartised cost

- Inlerest on late deposit an statutary dues
- on others

19. Depredation and smortization expense

Depreclatian/ amartisatian of property, plani and equipment
Amortisation of Infangible assets

(This space is intentionally tefl blank)

_Mareh 31, 2019 March 31,2018
— 349,87 298222
2,

March $1. 201% ___March 31, 2018

10132 166.03
11486 .
0.82 047
501
282 L60
0.65 177
11.42 Lo27
419 260
- 159
107 011
4547 5092
5022 B48
299 332
341.74 247.16
=)

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

407.18
955
7203
2222
465
1303
528.66
smes
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
15,00 1229
037 0.05
113 6.05
165
March 31, 2019 = March 31, 2018
69.20 63.10
6.61 5.82
T sasn
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Notes o the Standalone Financial Statements foi the year ended March 31, 2019

CAmounis i INR Cvores, unless athe; sated)

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
20, Other expenses
Payment gateway expenses 2241 56 1,199.51
Connectivity and cantent fees 277,62 147.08
Customer and merchiant onboarding expernses 4368 7301
Conlesl expenses 12,20 14.25
Communication coss 2997 27.29
Legal and profissionsl fees 90.95 5471
Marketing and business promotion expenses 2,805.01 1,891.80
Advertiscmenl expenses 56154 29352
Subcontract expenses 2n.20 21159
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure (Refer Note 39) 1.59 228
Fixed assets written off 0.06 011
Isuremnce B.15 6.41
Logistic, packing & collection cost 029
Bk Charges 352 935
Payment to auditors (Refer detalls below) 123 1.94
Postage and Courier 3.54 236
Power and fuel 9.38 107
Printing and stationery 1.48 L77
Traide receivables / advance wiitim off . L39
Less: utillsation from provision for i af trad i . (1.06)
Prondsdon for doubdful advaices and unbilled reccivabien 1227 287
Provision far impainnent af trade recelvables 3036
Repair and maintance - Buildings 1160
Repair and maintance - Ofhers 308
Repair and muintance - Plant and machinery 1537
Rates and taxes 471
Renl (Refer Note 28) 11.74
Service Iax expense 2403
Travelling and conveyance 29.76
Miscellaneous expenses . 2902
4,082.11
Payment io Audi{ors
As auditors
-Audit fee 0.40 110
~Tax audit fee 0.02 005
-Limlted Review (Including fee pald to previous auditors in the current year) 070 0.60
In other capucity

~Other Services (Catification fees) 0,06 011
“Reimbursement of expenses (Including fee paid to previous suditors in the current year) 0.05 0.08
123 194

¥ Amoun( bel ow rounding off norms adopted by Ihe Company

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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CIN: U72200DL2000PL.C108985
Notes (o the Standalone Financlal Staiements for Lthe year ended Mo ¢h 31, 2019

l&_nl.ni\ I INE Croces, md ey ofhervilie sated) o= ——
21, Excepdonal items
March 31, 2019 ‘March 31, 2018
Gain on sale of gaming business (refer nole32) 4220
Gain on sale of wallet business (refer note32) 6299
Provision for impairment of i in assodates and subsidieri (13322) (65.29)
(91,02) (2.30)

2) On April 9, 2018, sharehol ders of the Campany approved the Innsfef of online gaming business on u going concem basis by way of Sump sele, 1o Gamepind Enlerlainment Privale Limiled (formerly
known as Acumen Game i Private Limited). i Private Litnited, is an Indian joint venture company wilh 55%% shares held by Paytm Enterfainment Limited (wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company) and 45% shares held by AGTech M edia Holdings Limited. The Company has Iransfered i1s online geming business on June 1, 2018 1o Gemepind Entertainment
Private Limiled on a going concem basis for & consideration of INR 33.91, The nel linbilities of the business transferred were INR 829, The Company has recognised a gein of INR 42.20 which has
been disclosed a3 exceptional gain in the Standalone Stelement of Profil and Loss for the yeer ended Merch 31, 2019.

b) The Company basis ils assessment of future business projeciions of its idiaries i.e Orhgen jies Privale Limiled and Lillle Inlernet Private Limlled has recognized pravision for
impaimment in lhe cauTying value ofits investments of INR 75.11 and INR 51 respectively which has been shown as item in lhe of Profil and Loss for the year ended
March 31, 2019, The impsirment loss for Orbgen Technologies Private Limited and Litile bmlemet Private Limiled was based on the equity value calculaled based on cash flow projections with the
business plan used for impalrment testing using discounled cash ow method. The managemenl has compuled equity value of Orbgen Technologies Private Limited and Litile Intemef Privale Limiled
based an discount rate of 15% and terminal growth rale used in exirepolating cash flows beyond the planning period of 2 and 3.5 times of revenite, respectively, of the {erminal year.

©) The Compay busis its assessent of fiiture business projections of one of its ssoclales i.¢, Loginex! Solutians Private Limited has recagnized provision of INR 4.55 for impeinment ip the carmying
value ofils Investment which has been shown as exceptional item in the slatement of Profit and loss for Ihe year ended March 31, 2019.

d) During the year ended March 31, 2019, the i in (CCD) in QorQL Private limited (QorQL) were couverted into equity shares. Such conversion resulted in
QorQL becomlng a wholly owned subsldiary of the Company. On conveslon, the Company, basis ils assessment of operations of QorQL and ils fulure business prgjections, recognised provisian of
INR 2.00 townrds Impairment in the camying value ofits investmenl. Durlng the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has further invesied INR 0.56 in QorQ), which has been fully impaired.

¢) The Comparry besis It assessment of fiture business projections of one of its clates i.e. Socomo Private Limited had revagnized provision of INR 6529 for impairment in the
carying value of its invesimenl which has been shown as i item in the of Prafit and less for the year ended March 31, 2018,

1) During the previous year, Compeny transferred its Wallet business on a galng concemn basis, by wey af slump sale, te Psylm Payments Bank Lindled. Tolal sale consideration of INR 65, the felr value
of which is INR 63.10 (discounled at 9.75%) and net assets transferred is INR 0.11 resulting a tolel gein of INR 62.99.

22. Ewroings per shares (EPS)

Busic EPS amounts are calculaied by dividing the profit/ (1oss) for ihe year attributable to equity haders of the Camparyy by the welghted average number of equity sheres outstending during the

year.
Diluted EPS srotmis sre ealculaled by dividing the profit/ (loss) attribulable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted avemge number of equity sheres oulstanding during the yeas plus the
weighted aversge number of equity shares that would be issied an conversion of all the dilutive polential equity shares into equity shares

“The following reflects the income aud dhare dats wsed in e bdc and dluted EPS compulatione

Mardh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Loss attributable (o equity holders:

Camtinulng operations [1.834.33)

Discantinied operation {5.31)
Loss attribuisble to equity holders for basic earntigs (295864
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS T 5608799 ) T 50,381,366
Earnings per share for continuing operations
Basic and Diluled earnlngs per equity shere (INR per Share)* (705.02) (291.77)
Earnings per share for discontimed operations
Basic and Dituled earmings per eqlty share (INR per Share)* 0.95) (4.06)
Earnings per share for md P
Basic and equity (VR p (705.97) (295 63)

< In view of |osses during the current year and previous year, the options which are anti-dilutive have beea ignoredin the calculatlon of diluded eanings per share. Actordingly, there is no variation
between basic end diluted earmings per share.

(This space 1s intentionally left blank)
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CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

23. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s Standalone Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a

material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets can be recognised for deductible temporary differences (including unused tax losses) only to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. As the
Company is yet to generate operating profits, Management has assessed that as at March 31, 2019 it is not probable that such
deferred tax assets can be realised in excess of available taxable temporary differences. Management re-assesses unrecognised
deferred tax assets at each reporting date and recognises to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will

allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. For details about deferred tax assets, refer note 27.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved
in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds in India. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. The mortality tables tend to
change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected
future inflation rates. For further details about gratuity obligations, refer note 26.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the standalone balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model, Price
of Recent Investment (PORI) method and Comparable Company Multiples (CCM) method. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. For further details about Fair value measurement, refer note 30.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit risk associated with its assets carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 31 details how the
Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Impairment reviews

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are tested for impairment at-least on an annual basis and when events that occur /
changes in circumstances - indicate that the recoverable amount is less than its carying value. In calculating the value in use, the
Company is tequired to make judgements, estimates and assumptions inter-alia conceming the growth in EBITDA, long-term

growth rates; discount rates to reflect the risks involved. For details about impairment reviews, refer note 21.
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24. Employee share based payments

During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company introduced One 97 Employee Stock Option Plan - I for the benefit
of employees as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on September 08, 2008 and by the members in
the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on October 22, 2008 for a total of 951,355 options. The Company has
appropriated 795,056 options of INR10 each to be granted to eligible employees which were granted on December 31,
2008. These options were granted to all eligible, permanent employees who were on rolls of Company as at December
31, 2008 and to be settled in equity. These options have a vesting period of 4 years and were vested at one year interval
in the following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
December 31, 2009 10%
December 31, 2010 20%
December 31, 2011 30%
December 31, 2012 40%

Out of 795,056 options granted, exercise price of 233,602 options granted to employees who joined the Company till
March 31, 2007 is INR10 per option and for 561,454 options granted to employees joining between April 01, 2007 and
December 31, 2008 the exercise price is Rs 49 per option.

On September 03, 2010, the Company has appropriated 252,101 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees (including grant of 30,000 options to independent non-executive directors) at an exercise price of INR 180
each. Options granted to mdependent non-executive directors were approved in Extra-Ordinary General meeting of
members held on November 22, 2010. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year mterval in following
proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vestmg
September 03, 2011 10%
September 03,2012 20%
September 03, 2013 30%
September 03, 2014 40%

On September 01, 2011, the Company increased the ESOP pool by adding 107,407 options taking total ESOP pool to
1,058,762 as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on August 02, 2011 and by the members in the
Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on August 19, 2011.

On January 30, 2012, the Company has appropriated 4,330 options of INR 10 each to be granted to one eligible
employee at an exercise price of INR 232 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year iterval in
following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
January 30, 2012 10%
January 30, 2013 20%
January 30, 2014 30%
January 30, 2015 40%
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On December 29, 2012, the Company has appropriated 196,163 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employee at an exercise price of INR 180 each as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on November
29,2012 and by the members in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on December 29, 2012.

These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
December 29, 2012 10%
December 29, 2013 20%
December 29, 2014 30%
December 29, 2015 40%

On August 01, 2013, the Company has appropriated 166,668 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees
at an exercise price of INR 180 each as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on January 31, 2014.
30% of these options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
August 1, 2014 10%
August 1, 2015 20%
August 1, 2016 30%
August 1, 2017 40%

Remaining 70% of the options will be vested upon achievement of certain performance targets.

On March 31, 2014, the Company increased the ESOP pool by adding 260,000 options taking total ESOP pool to
1,318,762 as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on January 31, 2014 and by the members in the
Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on August 31, 2014. °

On April 01, 2014 the Company has appropriated 313,446 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees at
an exercise price of INR 90 each as ratified by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on June 10,2015.

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
April 1, 2015 10%
April 1,2016 20%
April 1,2017 30%
April 1,2018 40%

On April 01, 2015, the Company has appropriated 491,722 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees
at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
April 1,2016 10%
April 1,2017 20%
April 1,2018 30%
April 1,2019 40%




Onc¢97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

On September 30, 2015, the Company increased the ESOP pool by adding 604,858 options taking total ESOP pool to
1,923,620 as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on July 24, 2015 and by the members in the
Annual General Meecting held on September 30, 2015.

On October 01, 2015 the Company has appropriated 104,864 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in

following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
October 1,2016 10%
QOctober 1,2017 20%
October 1,2018 30%
October 1,2019 40%

On April 01, 2016 the Company has appropriated 395,325 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees at
an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following

proportion:
Date of vesting % of total options vesting
April 1,2017 10%
April 1,2018 20%
April 1,2019 30%
April 1,2020 40%

On October 01, 2016 the Company has appropriated 97,031 options of INR 10 each to be granted io eligible employees
at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following

proportion:
Date of vesting % of total options vesting
October 1,2017 10%
October 1,2018 20%
October 1,2019 30%
October 1,2020 40%

On April 01, 2017 the Company has appropriated 361,128 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees at
an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following

proportion:
Date of vesting % of total options vesting
April 1,2018 10%
April 1,2019 20%
April 1,2020 30%
April 1,2021 40%
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On October 01, 2017 the Company has appropriated 29,044 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees
at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
October 1,2018 10%
October 1,2019 20%
October 1,2020 30%
October 1,2021 40%

On April 01, 2018 the Company has appropriated 243,899 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees at
an exercise price of INR 90 cach. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
April 1,2019 10%
April 1,2020 20%
April 1,2021 30%
April 1,2022 40%

On July 01, 2018 the Company has appropriated 45,649 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees at
an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
July 1,2019 10% ]
July 1,2020 20%

July 1,2021 30%

July 1,2022 40%

Certain options will be vested upon achievement of operational performance targets as determined by the Board of
Directors.

On October 01, 2018 the Company has appropriated 34,409 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees
at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
October 1,2019 10%
October 1,2020 20%
October 1,2021 30%
October 1,2022 40%
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On January 01, 2019 the Company has appropriated 47,958 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employecs
at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
January 1,2020 10%
January 1,2021 20%
January 1,2022 30%
January 1,2023 40%

Certain options will be vested upon achievement of operational performance targets as determined by the Board of
Directors.

All the above options issued by the Company are Equity Settled and the vested employee stock options expire in 5 years
from the date of vesting.

On March 22, 2019, the Company's shareholders in an extra ordinary general meeting authorized the Chief Executive
Office/Managing Director of the Company to approve the cancellation/modification of unvested employee stock options
with the prior consent of the employees. Pursuant to this, the Company has cancelled 95,561 outstanding unvested
employee stock options, with prior consent of the employees. This cancellation has resulted into an accelerated share
based payment expense of INR 6.16 in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

The total options outstanding as at March 31, 2019 are 960,743 (March 31, 2018: 988,521) out of which 15,141 (March
31, 2018: 19,785) options have an exercise price of INR 10 each, 2,868 (March 31, 2018: 5,016) options have an
exercise price of INR 49 each, 127,544 (March 31, 2018: 137,813) options have an exercise price of INR 180 each and
815,190 (March 31, 2018: 825,907) options have an exercise price of INR 90 each.

Grant Date Number of Options | Number of Options | Exercise
outstanding outstanding Price
March 31,2019 March 31,2018 )
December 31, 2008 15,141 19,785 10
December 31, 2008 2.868 5,016 49
September 03, 2010 250 250 180
December 29, 2012 127,294 137,563 180
April 01, 2014 9,420 70,863 90
April 01, 2015 38,148 153.457 90
October 01, 2015 24,362 33,238 90
April 01, 2016 123,260 165,182 90
October 01, 2016 66,473 85,932 90
April 01, 2017 203,226 293,191 90
October 01, 2017 20,552 24,044 90
April 01, 2018 212,596 - 90
July 01, 2018 45,649 - 90
October 01, 2018 23,546 - 90
January 01, 2019 47,958 - 90
960,743 988,521
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Movements during the year

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share

options during the year:

Number of Weightsd Number of sviciehicd
. Average . Average
Options : , Options : !
. Exercise Price Exercise Price
Particulars
INR INR
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 988,521 100.74 1,139,075 96.31
Options granted during the year 371,915 90.00 390,172 90.00
Options exercised during the year** (157,960) 93.25 (226,034) 77.18
Options forfeited during the year (146.172) 89.66 (314,692) 88.37
Options cancelled during the year (95,561) 90.00 - -
Options expired during the year - - - -
Options outstanding at the end of the year 960,743 100.56 988,521 100.74
Vested options outstanding at the end of the
year (exercisable) 362,016 118.04 385,779 117.51

** The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options exercised during the year ended March 31, 2019
was INR 6,513.33 per share (March 31, 2018: INR 4,959.04 per share).

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 2019 was 5.71 years
(March 31, 2018: 5.87 years).

* The weighted average fair value of options granted during thé year was INR 6,181.35 per option (March 31, 2018 was
INR 4,894.71 per option).

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

March 312019  March 31,2018
Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment . ' o
transactions (refer note 17)* 86.06 72.47
Investm.ent (ESOP issued to employees of subsidiary 25.90 479
companies) T
Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions 111.96 77.26

*Including expenses of discontinued operations for the year ended March 31, 2019: INR 0.11 (March 31, 2018: INR
0.44)

The weighted average fair value of options granted under the One 97 ESOP Scheme during the year ended on March 31,
2019 (computed using Black-Scholes model) was INR 6,015.60 per option for grant date April 1, 2018, INR 6,017.90
per option for grant date July 1, 2018, INR 6,762.90 per option for grant date October 1, 2018 and INR 6,762.60 per
option for grant date January 1, 2019. The estimation of fair value on date of grant was made using the Black-Scholes
modcl with the following assumptions:
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Grant Date:- April 1, 2018

Share price

Weighted average exercise price
Dividend yield %

Expected life (years)

Risk free interest rate
Annualized Volatility

INR 6,076 per share
INR 90 each
0%

4
7.20-7.40%
59.00-64.00%

Grant Date:- July 1, 2018

Share price INR 6,076 per share
Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4

Risk free interest rate 7.82-8.10%
Annualized Volatility 59.00-62.00%

Grant Date:- October 1, 2018

Share price INR 6,821 per share
Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4

Risk free interest rate 7.94-8.03%
Annualized Volatility 58.00-74.00%

Grant Date:- January 1, 2019

Share price INR 6,823 per share
Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4

Risk free interest rate 7.10-7.40%
Annualized Volatility 51.00-52.00%

The weighted average fair value of options granted under the One 97 ESOP Scheme during the year ended on March 31,
2018 (computed using Black-Scholes model) was INR 4,894.71 per option for grant date April 1, 2017 and October 1,
2017. The estimation of fair value on date of grant was made using the Black-Scholes model with the following

assumptions:
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Grant Date:- April 1, 2017

Share price INR 4,959.04 per share
Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4

Risk free interest rate 6.63%
Annualized Volatility 56.46%

Grant Date:- October 1, 2017

Share price INR 4,959.04 per share
Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4

Risk free interest rate 6.48%
Annualized Volatility 54.87%

Notes:

1. Weighted average share price is based on the value of Equity Shares arrived at by using Backsolve method and
share prices based on secondary transactions, where available.

Dividend yield is considered zero, as no dividend payout is expected in the foreseeable future.

Risk free return is based on the yield to maturity of Indian treasury securities, with a maturity corresponding to the

expected term of ESOP.
4. Annualized volatility is based on the median weekly volatility of selected comparables compames for a time period

commensuraie with the expected term.
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25. Relaled parly (ransaclions

A, Entlties over which compauy exerclse conirol

Country of

Name
Incorporatlon

Indisn Subsidiarics
One97 Communicalions India Limited
Paytm Financial Services Limited
Paytm Enterlainment Limiled (w.e.f. July25, 2017)

Paytm Money Limited (w e f. September 20, 201 7)
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited (w.ef. July 6. 2017)

Mobhiquest Mobile Technologies Privale Limiled (w.c.f. August 10. 2017)
Urja Money Privale Limited (w e f. October 16, 2017)
Little Internel Private Limited (w.cf. December 6. 2017)

QoROL Private Limited (w.c.{ June 01, 2018)

Orbgen Technologies Private Limited (w.e.f June 01, 2018)

|Balance Technology Frivate Limited (w e.f July 31. 2018}
‘Cube26 Software Privale Limited (w.e f November 1, 2018)

Forelgn Subsidlarles

One97 Communications Nigeria Limited Nigeria
One97 C ications FZ-LL.C Dubai
One97 Communications Singapore Privale Limited Singapore
One97 USA Inc. Usa
{Subsidiarles of Subsldiarles

Oned7 Communications Rwanda Privite Limited Rwnls
(One97 Communications Tanzania Private Limited |'1‘anzam'a
Qne?7 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited |Bn_n5hdt§1
One97 Uganda Limiled Uganda
One97 Ivory Coast SA |ivary Coast
One97 Benin SA |Benin
Paytm Labs Tnc. Canada
One97 Communications Malaysia Sdn. Bdn ]Ml'laEI-u
Nearbuy India Private Limited (w.e f. December 6, 2017) India
Xeeed IT Solution Privale Limited (w.e f. August 10, 2017) India

One Nine Seven Nepal Private Limiled (w.¢.f November 20, 2018) Nepal
Controlled Trust

Cne97 Employee welfare Trust® India

* Consolidated in these datone financial of the Company.

B. Joint Venture of Payim Entertalnment Limited

Name Country of
Incorporatlon
« pind E i Private Limited (formerly known as Acumen Game Enteriainment | India
Private Limited) i
C. Enlltles over which company exerclse significant Influence
Country of

Name
incorporation

Loginext Solutions Private Limited

S Technologies Privaie Limited
Little Internet Singapore Pie. Limited (till November 30, 2017)
|QoRQL Private Limited (1ill May 31,2018 )

Inedi Yuva Limited (Lii November 30, 20i7)

Cliairman and Managing Director

Chiel Financial Officer (from June 10, 2017)

Chiel Financial Officer (from April 01, 2017 to June 10, 2017)

E. EnUtles having significant Influence over the Company

SAIF I Mauritius Company Limited

SAIF Partners Indiz V Limited

SATF Partners India TV Limited

SATF India V FII Holdings Limited

Alipay Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited
Alibaba.com Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited
Alipay Labs (Singapore) Pte Limited

SVF India Holdings (Cayman) Limiled

F. Relatives of Indlviduals owning Interes in the vollng power of the Company that glves the controt or significant Influence

Ajay Shekhar Sharma Brother of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma
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Details of transactions with related parties during the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018:-

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rendering of services to related parties
Oned7 Ce ications Migeria Ltd 0.14 045
One97 Communications FZ-LLC 0.20 034
Mobigquest Mobile Technolopies Private Limited 6.16 4.87
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 927.75 490.86
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 1.10 0.83
Nearbuy India Private Limited 264 0.64
Socomo Technologies Private Limited 0.02 0.15
Little Internet Private Limnited 0.90 2.50
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 0.64 -
Paytm Labs Inc. 0.12 0.33
One97 Communications Tanzania Private Limited 0.14 0.21
One97 Uganda Limited 0.02 0.33
One97 Benin SA 0.02 0.01
Paytm Money Limited 0.74 -
Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited 141 -
One97 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited - 0.08
One Nine Seven Nepal Private Limited 0.05 -
935.55 501.60
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of related parties
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 146.59 117.75
Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 0.15 0.26
Paytm Money Limited 1.51 0.39
Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited 2.26 -
Paytm Labs Inc. 13.94 16.70
One97 Communications Malaysia Sdn. Bdn 8.58 -
173.03 135.10
Assets given on Finance Lease to related parties
Paytm Payments Bank Limited - 23.24
- 23.24
Repayment for assets given on finance lease to related parties
Paytm Payments Bank Limited - 21.66
5 21.66
F Interest income earned from related parties
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 3.86 5.78
Urja Money Private Limited 0.24 0.11
4.10 5.89
Gain on sale of business
Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited z 42,20 -
Paytm Payments Bank Limited - 62.99
42.20 62.99
Purchase of property, plant & equipment from related parties
Paytm Labs Inc. - 0.05
QoRQL Private Limited 0.17 -
Balance Technology Private Limited 0.0] -
0.18 0.05
1 roperty, plant & equipme d e
Paytm Money Limited 0.15 -
0.15 -
Services received [rom related parties
-Pavment gateway expenses
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 918.30 369.08
918.30 369.08
- | and professional fees
Paytm Labs Inc. 63.42 31.22
63.42 31.22
-General expenses
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 7.11 3.98
Alipay Labs (Singapore) Pte Limited 51.03 2411
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 5.46 -
Oned7 USA Inc. - 1.32
63.60 29.41
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Issuc of cquity shares
SVF India Holdings (Cayman) Limited - 8.09
SAIF Pariners India IV Limited 0.13 -
0.13 8.09
Security premium received
SVF India Holdings (Cayman) Limited - 6,433.81
SAIF Partners India IV Limited 99.94 -
99.94 6,433.81
Investment in subsidiaries
One97 Communications India Limited 43.00 17.90
Paytm Entertainment Limited 61.00 0.01
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 84.68 35.00
Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited - 1021
Paytm Money Limited 68.87 10.00
Balance Technology Private Limited 1.60 -
Urja Money Private Limited 8.00 6.00
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 126.53 -
Paytm Financial Services Limited - 200
Little Internet Private Limited (refer note 11(a)(e)) (1.04) 27231
Cube26 Software Private Limited 0.74 -
QoRQL Private Limited 0.56 -
393.94 353.43
Inter corporate loan given
Urja Money Private Limited 0.22 220
0.22 2.20
Stock Options granted to employees of Group Companies
One97 Communications Singapore Private Limited 14.21 4.75
Paytm Entertainment Limited 2.82 -
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 7.39 -
Paytm Money Limited 1.48 -
25.90 4.75
Gain on sale of investment in associates
Little Internet Singapore Pte. Limited - 727
Indi Yuva Limited - 0.78
- 8.05
| Sale of Investment in Associates
Little Internet Singapore Pte. Limited - 33.29
Indi Yuva Limited - 0.08
= 33.37
Investment in associates
Paytm Payments Bank Limited - 71.00
Paytm General In Limited 0.05 -
Paytm Life Insurance Limited 0.05 -
0.10 71.00
v s given duri
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited ) - 6.22
Paytm Labs Inc. - 46.28
= 52.50
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Details of balances outstanding with related parties as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018:

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Other financial assets (Other receivable for expenditure incurred)
One97 Benin SA 0.46 0.45
One97 Communications FZ-LLC 0.02 018
One97 Communications Nigeria Limited 1.11 1.26
One97 Communications Rwanda Private Limited - 0.56
One97 Communications Tanzania Private Limited - 012
One97 Ivory Coast SA 0.20 0.34
One97 Upanda Limited 0.01 1438
One97 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited 1.86 1.75
Paytm Labs Inc. 71.21 16.98
Paytm Money Limited 0.88 0.57
Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited 1.22 -
Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 0.4 0.28
Alibaba.com Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited 0.08 0.08
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 16.71 . 697
One97 Communications India Limited 0.25 0.26
One Nine Seven Nepal Private Limited 0.05 -
One97 Communications Malaysia Sdn. Bdn 8.55 -
103.05 31.28
Loss allowance for other receivable for expenditure incurred
One97 Communications Nigeria Limited 0.55 0.55
One97 Communications Rwanda Private Limited 0.46 046
One97 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited 0.63 0.63
One97 Ivory Coast SA 0.33 0.33
One97 Benin SA 0.45 045
One97 Uganda Limited 0.76 0.76
Paytm Labs Inc. 0.21 0.21
3.39 3.39
. Amount receivable for sale of business (Other financinl assets)
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 40.98 54.29
40.98 54.29
er current asset
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 105.98 -
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 5.86 6.22
Little Internet Private Limited 0.18 0.02
Paytm Labs Inc. - 3420
Paytm Payments Bank Limited - 12544
112.02 165.88
Inter corporate loan receivable
Urja Money Private Limited 242 2.20
2.42 2.20
jvable V] t patewa
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 511.03 115.57
511.03 11557
Trade receivables
One97 Communications Nigeria Limited 15.99 16.35
One97 Benin SA 0.01 -
One97 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited 0.07 B
One97 Uganda Limited 0.04 -
Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 6.04 2,17
Paytm Money Limited 0.34 -
Nearbuy India Private Limited - 0.08
Paytm Labs Inc. 12.06 -
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 16.14 7538
| Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 118 -
51.87 93.98
ILess allowance for Trade recclvables
One97 Communications Nigeria Limited 6.00 6.70
6.00 6.70
Other financial assets
One97 Communications Nigeria Limited - 0.26
One97 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited - 0.08
One97 Benin SA - 0.01
One97 Communications FZ-LLC - 16.38
One97 Communications Tanzania Private Limited - 0.11
One97 Uganda Limited - 0.04
One97 Communications Rwanda Private Limited - 0.01
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 0.13 4.95
[Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 0.11 -
Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 0.46 -
0.70 21.84
,';"}’.e r54 |-u\.\'3'§3‘,r'
e




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
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Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Trade payables (including accrued expenses)
One97 Communications Singapore Private Limited - 0.03
One97 USA Inc. - 253
Paytm Labs Inc 45.42 -
Alipay Labs (Singapore) Pte Limited 40.88 1147
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 16.73 4526
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 7.79 -
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 9.46 0.03
Paytm Money Limited 0.26 -
120.54 59.32
Other financial liability
-Pavable to merchants
Socomo Technologies Private Limited 0.02 0.02
Little Internet Private Limited 0.12 0.18
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 241.29 248
Nearbuy India Private Limited 1.93 021
| Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 1.24 -
Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited 0.09 -
244.69 2.89
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 142
QoRQL Private Limited 0.17 -
Balance Technology Private Limited 0.01 -
1.60 -
-Others
One97 Communications Tanzania Private Limited 0.53 -
One97 Uganda Limited 0.05 -
Oned7 USA Inc. 2.52 -
3.10 -
Balances with banks on current account
Paytm Payments Bank Limited B 1.16
" 1.16
Other amount received from customers (Other financial liabilities)
Socomo Technologies Private Limited 0.02 -
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 0.02 -
Little Internet Private Limited 0.11 -
0.15 -
Advance received from customers (Other current liabilities)
Socomo Technologies Private Limited - 0.02
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited - 0.01
Little Internet Private Limited - 0.11
- 0.14
Contract Liabilities E !
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 0.02 -
0.02 -
Investments

For details of investments in subsidiaries and associates refer notes 5 and 6

* Amount below rounding off narms adopted by the Company

Remuneration to KMP & Relatives of Individuals owning interest in the voting power of the Company that gives the control or

ignificant influence

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Salaries, bonus and mcentives 6.08 5.83
ESOP Expenses 937 12,40
Total p tion paid 15.45 18.23

No remuneration is paid to any other director of the Company.

Terms and conditions of tr ctions with related parties

(i) The services provided and received from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.
Outstanding balances at the period end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees

provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.

(ii) The remuneration to the key managerial personnel ('KMP") does not include the provisions made for gratuity, leave benefits as they are

determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.

(This space is intentionally lefl blank)
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One97 Communlcations Linlted

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes (o the Standalone Financlal Stalemenis for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amownts In INR crores, wiess olherwise siated)

27. Income Tax

The major components of ncome tax expense for the years ended Mardi 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are:

Standalone Stateiienl of Profit and Loss:
[ March 31,2019 |
012 :
a (o]
= == o1z (101
Reconciliation of bax expense and the accomiting profit multiplied by India’s domestic lax rate for March 31, 2019 anid March 31, 2018:
March 31, 20 March 31, 2018
Dl (L49148))
¥ 460,87
. (1.01)]
012 =
10,743 0.71)
120271 39504
3676 16.93
665 46.61
Incoimie lax ed i (e statement of und loss 212 (1on
Deferred b relates (o the following:
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Te Movement In T -
i Tax staterent of Profit e Tax
and loss
Deferred (ax Habllitles
Accelerated depreciation for L purposes [ELREN | 9.59) (341} 19.59 (6. 1_82|
Unrealised gain on invesments {113,65) (35.46) [ Gren| (1235 (3.52)]
14438 45.05 503 3234 10.00
Net delerred tax assefs/(Habilties)* il NI N i} NI

* Deferred tax has been recognised to the extent of available deferred tax liabilities since it is not probable thal taxable profits will be available against which the unutilsed tax losses and temporary differences can be

utilised, as assessed at March 31,2019

Deductble temporary differences for which no deferred tux asset Iy recognised bn the Standatone Batance Shivet:
Explry Date Asof March :15 ;:119 Tax
Partlculars (Year m::ng March March 31, 2019 Impact
) @ 31.20%
Tax Losses 2023 33161 103.46
2024 1,494.29 466.22
2025 717.55 1187
2026 1,340.99 418.39
2027 3.854.83 1202.71 |
Total tax losses 7,739.27 2,414.65 |
Unabsorbed depreciation No expiry period 104.41 3257
Other temporary differences A4.01 126.05
Total 9,247.69 257321 |
Asol
Esplry Date Asof March 31, 2018 Tax
Partiaulars (Vear ending March | 7004, 31, 2018 Impact
i @3030%
Tax Losses 2023 33161 10247
2024 1,494.29 461.73
2025 _717.97 PR
2026 1.288.15 398.04 |
3892.02 1,184.09
o expiry pericd 130.66 4037 |
261.56 82.68
4,230.24 1,307.14




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000P1.C108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

28. Commitments and contingencies

i)

ii1)

a. Leases
Operating lease: Company as Lessee

The Company has taken certain office space on operating lease. Rental expense towards leases charged to Standalone Statement
of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019 amount to INR 17.89 (March 31, 2018 INR 11.74).

The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Not later than one year 16.26 10.41
Later than one year but not later than five years 17.02 18.71
Later than five years - 1.32
Total 33.28 30.44

b. Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts towards property, plant & equipment remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for is INR 39.75 (Net of capital advance of INR 1.97) [March 31 2018: INR 3.59 (Net of capital advances of INR
0.29)].

¢. Contingent liabilities

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Claims against the Company not acknowledged 6.44 2.70
as debts
Total 6.44 2.70

The Company has contingent liability towards Bank Guarantees amounting to INR 263.32 (March 31, 2018: INR 241.93).

The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of the recent Supreme Court Judgment in case of "Vivekananda
Vidyamandir And Others Vs The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (II) West Bengal" and the related circular (Circular
No. C-1/1(33)2019/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated March 20, 2019 issued by the Employees’ Provident Fund
Organisation in relation to non-exclusion of certain allowances from the definition of "basic wages" of the relevant employees
for the purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellancous
Provisions Act, 1952. There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court judgement. In the assessment of
the management, the aforesaid matter is not likely to have a significant impact and accordingly, no provision has been made in
these Standalone Financial Statements.

Notes:
1) It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any.

2) The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.




Onc97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

29. Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

March 31 2019 March 31 2018

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid
to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

- Principal amount due under MSMED Act 10.27 0.74
- Interest due on above 0.17 0.14
10.44 0.88

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to -
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year, for payment already made

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
earlier years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance -
as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act
2006

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED
Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

0.80

38.92

Total Qustanding dues of micro and small enterprises is INR 11.24 ( March 31, 2018: INR 0.88).

(This space is intentionally left blank)




One97 Conurunications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes 1o the Financial Statements for the year ended March 11, 2019
(Amounts In INR Creres. unless otherwise stated)

M), Falr value

Falr value hlerarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Companys assets and liabilities:
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels or liabilities

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, cither dircatly ie. as prioes) or indirectly G.¢. devived from prices)
Level 3 - Tnputs for the assets or liabililies that arc not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured ot fuir value on areauring basis as of March 31, 2049

Falr value measur ament at end of the

As of Murch 31, 2019 reporting year nsing
Level L Level 2 Levad 3
Assets
Investments at fair value through OCT
Investment in Equity shares 487 487
Investments at fair value through Profit and loss
in Cq ily Canvertible Prefe 89.58 . B89.58
Investment in Equity shares 571 - - 54
Investment in Mutual Fimds 2373.59 237.59
The following table presents fair value hicrarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair velue on # reauring basis as of March 31, 2018
Falr valute measurement st end of the
As of March 31, 2018 reporting year using
Leve 1 Level 2 Level3
Assels
Investments at fair value through OCT
Iovestment in Equity Sheres 337 - - 3.57
Iovestments at fair value through Profit md loss
in Ce dsorily Canvertible Prefc 35.58 - - 55.58
Investment in Equity Sheres 4513 - - 4513
Investment in Mutusl Funds 3,65298 3,652.98 - -

The management has ssscssed that fair value of all other finmcial assets and linbilitics inchuding cash end cash equivalents, bank balanees other than cash xd cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans, other financial assets, investments,

trade payables, borrowings and other financial lisbilities, approximste their carrying mounts

(This space 1s vizentionally leff biank)




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PL.C108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

31. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Company continues to focus on a system-based approach to business risk management. The Company’s
financial risk management process seeks to enable the early identification, evaluation and effective management of
key risks facing the business. Backed by strong internal control systems, the current Risk Management Framework
rests on policies and procedures issued by appropriate authorities; process of regular internal reviews/audits to set
appropriate risk limits and controls; monitoring of such risks and compliance confirmation for the same.

a. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and
price risk. The Company has in place appropriate risk management policies to limit the impact of these risks on its
financial performance. The Company ensures optimization of cash through fund planning and robust cash
management practices.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s
borrowings with floating interest rates. ’

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, being a 0.5%
increase or decrease in interest rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s loss before tax due to
the impact on floating rate borrowings.

As at March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Effect on loss before tax:

I-Base*- decrease by 50 bps (3.48) (1.21)
I-Base*- increase by 50 bps 3.48 1.21
*ICICI Bank Base Rate

Other financial assets and liabilities of the Company are either non-interest bearing or fixed interest bearing
instruments, the Company’s net exposure to interest risk on such instruments is negligible.

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a reasonably possible change in the under-lying interest rate of the
Company’s borrowings while assuming all other variables to be constant.




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200D1L.2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Based on the movements in the interest rates historically and the prevailing market conditions as at the reporting
date, the Company’s management has concluded that the above mentioned rates used for sensitivity are reasonable

benchmarks.
(ii) Price risk

The Company invests its surplus funds in various debt instruments and debt mutual funds. These comprise of
primarily liquid schemes of mutual funds (liquid investments), debentures and fixed deposits. All mutual fund
investments are in liquid scheme only.

Mutual fund investments are susceptible to market price risk, mainly arising from changes in the interest rates or
market yields which may impact the return and value of such investments.

Set out below is the impact of a 0.25% movement in the NAV of mutual funds on the Company’s loss before tax:

Change in NAV Effect on loss before tax
March 31, 2019 0.25% (6.18)
-0.25% 6.18
March 31, 2018 0.25% (9.13)
-0.25% 9.13

The Company is also exposed to equity/ preference shares price risk arises from investments held by the Company
and classified in the balance sheet either as fair value through OCI or at fair value through profit or loss (refer note
7(b)). To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity/ preference shares, the company diversifies its
portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the company.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

(iii) Foreign currency risk

The Indian Rupec is the Company’s most significant currency. As a consequence, the Company’s results are
presented in Indian Rupee and exposures are managed against Indian Rupee accordingly. Foreign currency risk is
the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the
Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in United States Dollar (USD),
and Canadian Dollar (CAD) are as follows:

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Financial assets  Financial liabilities  Financial assets Financial liabilities

Amount in USD Crores 0.71 0.26 0.70 0.27
Amount in CAD Crores 1.47 0.87 1.12 .

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity of profit or loss to a reasonably possible change in USD and
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.

Change in USD rate Effect on loss before tax
March 31, 2019 : 10% strengthening of USD against INR : (3.48)
10% weakening of USD against INR 2.85
March 31, 2018 10% strengthening of USD against INR (3.14)
' 10% weakening of USD against INR 2.57

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity of profit or loss to a reasonably possible change in CAD and
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.

Change in CAD rate Effect on loss before tax
March 31, 2019 10% strengthening of CAD against INR (3.41)
10% weakening of CAD against INR 2.79
March 31, 2018 10% strengthening of CAD against INR (5.23)
10% weakening of CAD against INR 6.22

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a reasonably possible change in the under-lying foreign currency against
the functional currency while assuming all other variables to be constant.




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Based on the movements in the foreign exchange rates historically and the prevailing market conditions as at the
reporting date, the Company’s management has concluded that the above mentioned rates used for sensifivity are
reasonable benchmarks.

b. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial mstrument or contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) including deposits with banks. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis.

All of the entity's investments and loans at amortised cost are considered to have low credit risk, and the loss
allowance recognised during the period was therefore limited to 12 months expected losses. Management considers
instruments to be low credit risk when they have a low risk of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.

(i) Trade receivables

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-payment by customers. Customer credit risk is managed
subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management.
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by grouping the receivables in homogeneous group.
The calculation is based on lifetime expected credit losses.

Expected credit loss for trade receivable under simplified approach- year ended March 31, 2019

Ageing in years 0-1 1-2 2-3 >3 Specitic Total

Gross  carrying © amount- trade | 231.83 | 16.03 7.30 7.68 | 5144 314.28
receivables

Expected loss rate (%) 2.24 17.17 77.94 91.16 100

Expected credit losses (Loss allowance 5.19 2.75 5.69 7.00 51.44 72.07
provision)- trade receivables

Carrying amount of trade receivables | 226.64 | 13.28 1.61 0.68 0.00 24221
(net of impairment)

Reconciliation of loss allowance Loss allowance measured
at 12 month expected loss

Loss allowance as on April 1, 2017 29.02

Creation during the year 30.36

Loss allowance as on March 31, 2018 59.38

Creation during the year 12.69

Loss Allowance as on March 31, 2019 72.07

AR
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In previous year, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its
trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of
the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

Ageing of past due but not impaired receivables is as follows:

As at March 31,2018
up to 90 days 184.22
91 to 180 days 55.70
181 to 270 days 591
271 to 365 days 12.66
Total 258.49

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.
The Company does not hold collateral as security.

(ii) Other financial assets

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department
in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investment of surplus funds is made only with banks of high repute.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2019 and
March 31, 2018 is the carrying amounts as disclosed in Note 7.

Reconciliation of loss allowance Loss allowance measured at
12 month expected loss

Loss allowance as on April 1, 2017 12.90

Creation during the year 0.97

Loss allowance as on March 31, 2018 13.87

Creation during the year 10.47

Loss Allowance as on March 31, 2019 24.34

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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c. Liquidity Risk

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank overdrafts, working capital loans etc. Company monitor their risk of shortage of funds using cash flow
forecasting models. These models consider the maturity of their financial investments, committed funding and
projected cash flows from operations.

The Company’s objective is to provide financial resources to meet its business objectives in a timely, cost effective
and reliable manner. A balance between continuity of funding and flexibility is maintained through the use of bank
borrowings. The Company also monitors compliance with its debt covenants. The maturity profile of the
Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments is given in the table below:

Particulars 0-180 days 181-365 days | More than 1 year | Total

As at March 31, 2019

Borrowings 695.50 - 26.96 722.46
Trade payables 673.28 s - 673.28
Other financial liabilities 694.56 4.62 - 699.18
Total 2,063.34 4.62 26.96 2,094.92
As at March 31, 2018

Borrowings 241.65 = - 241.65
Trade payables 42635 » ' - 426.35
Other financial liabilities 227.84 = - 227.84
Total 895.84 ; = - 895.84

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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32. Discontinued Operations

(a) On April 9, 2018, shareholders of the Company approved the transfer of online gaming business forming part of
Cloud segment on a going concern basis by way of slump sale, to Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited
(formerly known as Acumen Game Entertainment Private Limited). Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited, is an
Indian Joint Venture company with 55% shares held by Paytm Entertainment Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company) and 45% shares held by AGTech Media Holdings Limited. The Company has transferred its online
gaming business on June 1, 2018 to Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited on a going concern basis for a cash
consideration of INR 33.91. The nct liabilities of the business transferred were INR 8.29. The Company has
recognised a gain of INR 42.20 which has been disclosed as exceptional gain in the Standalone Statement of Profit

and Loss.

The results of Gaming business for the period are presented below:

For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Revenue 1.53 5.19
Expenses (Including INR 0.11 (March 31, 2018: 0.44) for share
based payment expenses) 6.84 20.42
Profit/ (Loss) for the period before tax from discontinued
operations (5.31) (15.23)
Income Tax expense - -
Profit/ (Loss) for the period after tax from discontinued
operations (5.31) {15.23)
The net cash flows incurred by Gaming business are as follows:--
For the Year ended  For the Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Operating (5.31) (15.23)
Investing 33.91 : .
Financing - -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) 28.60 (15.23)
Details of the gaming business sold:-
For the Year ended  For the Year ended
Consideration Received March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Cash 33.91 .
Carrying amount of the net liability sold 8.29 -
Gain on sale before income tax 42.20 -
Income tax expense on gain - -
Gain on sale after income tax* 42.20 -

* The entire amount is attributable to equity holders of the company
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The carrying amount of assets and liabilities as at the date of sale (June 1, 2018) were as follows:-

For the Year ended
March 31, 2019
Property, plant and equipment 0.09
Total assets 0.09
Trade Payable 7.07
Other current liabilities 1.31
Total liabilities 8.38
Net assets (8.29)

(b) During previous year, the Company had discontinued its Wallet business. Revenue, other income, cost, and loss
of the Wallet business upto the date of transfer of business i.e. May 23, 2017 are INR 27.57, INR 2.82, INR 35.64
and INR 5.25, respectively. The Wallet business was included in the ‘Payments’ segment in Company’s operating
segments until May 23, 2017, being the date on which transfer of Wallet business was consummated. Being a
discontinued operation, this business is no longer presented within the Payments segment. The Company had
recognised a gain of INR 62.99 which has been shown as exceptional gain in the Standalone Statement of Profit
and loss for the year ended March 31, 2018.

33. Capital Management

The Company’s objectives while managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concer and to
provide adequate returns for its shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. The key objective of the
Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structure with the focus on total
equity, uphold investor; creditor and customer confidence, and ensure future development of its business activities.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions
or its business requirements.

The Company's capital management objective is to remain a debt-free company till the time it achieves break-even.
In order to meet this objective, Company meets anticipated funding requirements for developing new businesses,
expanding its geographical base, entering in to strategic mergers and acquisitions and other strategic investments,
by issuance of equity capital together with cash generated from Company’s operating and investing activities. The
company utilizes certain short term overdraft and working capital facilities to meet anticipated interim working
capital requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

34. Segment Reporting

The Board of Directors (chief operating decision maker or CODM) monitor the operating results of the business
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment’s performance is evaluated based on segment revenue and segment result viz. profit or loss before tax
from continuing operations.

For management purposes, the Company is organized into business segments based on its services and has four
reportable segments, as follows:
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- Payments: Includes the services provided by acting as a payment facilitator to third party merchants and money
transfer facilitator to consumers.

- Commerce: Includes acting as an aggregator for digital product like movie, deal, online travel aggregator and
provision of services like advertisement, brand promotion and technical support.

- Cloud: Includes provision of services to client for their various business needs like hosting services, marketing
services.

- Others: Includes other businesses of the Company like wealth management services.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable segments.

The Wallet business was included in the ‘Payments’ segment in Company’s operating segments until May 23,
2017, being the date on which transfer of Wallet business was consummated. Being a discontinued operation, this
business is no longer presented within the Payments segment. The information about this discontinued segment is
provided in note 32.

The Online Gaming business was included in the ‘Cloud’ segment in Company’s operating segments until June 1,
2018, being the date on which transfer of Online Gaming business was consummated. Being a discontinued
operation, this business is no longer presented within the Cloud segment. The information about this discontinued
segment is provided in note 32.

Segment assets comprise assets directly managed by each segment, and primarily include receivables, property,
plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, intangibles assets, intangible assets under development. Segment
liabilities primarily include operating liabilities. Segment assets/ liabilities are measured in the same way as in the
Standalone financial statements. These assets/ liabilities are allocated based on the operations of the segment and
the physical location of the asset.

The Company has revenues primarily from customers domiciled in India. Substantially all of the Company’s non-
current operating assets are domiciled in India. There is no inter segment revenue.

Information about major customers

1. Revenues of INR 927.75 (March 31, 2018 INR 490.86) are derived from an external customer. These revenues
are attributed to the Payments segment.

2. Revenues of INR 992.48 (March 31, 2018 INR 1,603.11) are derived from another external customer. These
revenues are atiributed to the Payments and Commerce segment

Adjustments and eliminations

(i) Other income including fair value gains and losses on financial assets and finance costs are not allocated to
individual segments as the underlying instruments are managed at Company level.

(ii) Current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not allocated to those segments as
they are also managed at Company level.
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35. Transactions and balances of Paytm E~-Commerce Private Limited (PEPL)

Details of transactions during the year

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rendering of services to PEPL 992.48 1,603.11
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of 144.86 121.21
PEPL
Interest Income on unwinding of Discount 31.66 43.95
Purchase of property, plant & equipment 21.28 -
Services received from PEPL 25.25 1.14
Details of balances outstanding

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Other Financial Assets 405.66 653.07
Other Current Assets - 23.55
Trade payables 9.54 0.80
Other Financial Liability 43.22 32.04
Contract liabilities ' 339.06 -
Trade Receivable 1.80 273.23

36. Company Secretary

Mr. Vimal Chawla, Company Secretary of the Company has resigned from the Company with effect from May 8,
2019. The Company is in the process of identifying the replacement and shall make the appointment at the earliest
and in any event within the statutory time limit of 6 months from the date of resignation.

37. Overdue outstanding foreign currency receivable and payable

The Company has foreign currency payable balances aggregating to INR 2.61 and INR 0.10 which are outstanding
for more than six months and three years respectively, as of March 31, 2019. The Company has applied to
authorised dealer for extension of the time for payment of these payable balances vide its letters dated March 18,
2019 and May 14, 2019. The Company also has foreign currency receivable balances aggregating to INR 21.39 and
INR 0.28 which are outstanding for more than nine months and three years respectively, as of March 31, 2019. The
Company has applied to authorised dealer for extension of time for realisation of receivable balances outstanding
for more than nine months vide its letters dated March 28, 2019 and May 14, 2019 and also applied for permission
to write-off receivable balances outstanding for more than three years vide its letters dated March 28, 2019.
Management does not expect any material financial implication on account of the delays under the existing
regulations.

38. Transfer pricing

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by
the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961. For this purpose, the Company
has appointed independent consultants for conducting Transfer Pricing Study. Management is of the opinion that its
international transactions with associated enterprises have been undertaken at arms' length basis at duly negotiated
prices on usnal commercial terms. The transfer pricing study for the year ended March 31, 2018 has been completed
which did not result in any adjustment.
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39. Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) expenditure

The Company has not eammed net profit in three immediately preceding financial years, therefore, there was no
amount as per section 135 of the Act which was required to be spent on CSR activities in the current financial
year by the Company. However, the Company has spent an amount of INR 1.59 (March 31, 2018: INR 2.28)

towards contribution to state relief funds.
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of One97 Communications Limited

Report on audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Oneg7 Communications
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company
and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), its associates and joint venture (refer Note 23
to the attached Consolidated Financial Statements), which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
prepared based on the relevant records (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associates and
joint venture as at March 31,2019, of consolidated total comprehensive income (comprising loss and other
comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group, its associates and joint venture in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics
issued by ICAI and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit
evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph 14 of the
Other Matters section below, other than the unaudited financial information as certified by the
management and referred to in sub-paragraph 15 of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Emphasis of matter

4. We draw your attention to Note 40 to the Consolidated Financial Statements regarding the non settlement
of foreign currency payables as at March 31, 2019 amounting to Rs 2.61 crores and Rs 0.10 crores by the
Holding Company, due for more than six months and three years, respectively from the date of imports
and non realisation of foreign currency receivables as at March 31, 2019 amounting to Rs 21.39 crores and
Rs 0.28 crores by the Holding Company, due for more than nine months and three years, yespectively
from the date of exports, being the time period permitted under the RBI Master Direction on Import of
Goods and Services vide FED Master Direction No. 17/2016-17 dated January 1, 2016 (as amended) and
RBI Master Direction on Export of goods and Services vide FED Master Direction No. 16/2015-16 dated
January 1, 2016 (as amended), respectively, issued by the Reserve Bank of India, The Holding Company
has applied to the Authorised Dealer secking permission for extension of time period for settlement of the
payables and realisation of the receivables and for write-off of certain receivables outstanding for a period
exceeding three years. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

5. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Holding Company's Directors’ report, but does not include the
Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon, Our opinion on the Consolidated
Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and the reports
of the other auditors as furnished to us (Refer paragraph 14 below), we conclude that there is a material
imisstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

6. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
Consolidated Financial Statements in term of the requitements of the Act that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated cash flows, and
consolidated changes in equity of the Group including its associates and joint venture in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in Indlia, including the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its
associates and joint ventures are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by
the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
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7. In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associates and joint venture are responsible for assessing the ability of the
Group and of its associates and joint venture to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

8. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and joint
venture are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates and
joint ventures.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Consolidated Financial Statements.

10. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates
and joint venture to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associates and joint venture
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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11.

12.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group and its associates and joint venture to express an opinion
on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matters

13.

14.

15.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, were audited
by another firm of chartered accountants under the Act who, vide their report dated May 18, 2018,
expressed an unmodified opinion on those Consolidated Financial Statements.

We did not audit the financial statements of 2 subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect total assets of
Rs. 62.51 crores and net assets of Rs. 32.23 crores as at March 31, 2019, total revenue of Rs. 45.47 crores,
total comprehensive income (comprising of profit/ loss and other comprehensive income) of Rs. (-) 87.77
crores and net cash flows amounting to Rs. 15.21 crores for the year ended on that date, as considered in
the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Consolidated Financial Statements also include the Group’s
share of total comprehensive income (comprising profit and other comprehensive income) of Rs. 32.05
crores for the year ended March 31, 2019 as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements, in respect
of an associate company whose financial information have not been audited by us. These financial
statements/ financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished
to us by the Management, and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements insofar as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and associate company and our report
in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including report on Other Information insofar as it
relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associate company, is based solely on the reports of the other
auditors.

We did not audit the financial information of 25 subsidiaries whose financial information reflect total assets
of Rs. 691.39 crores and net assets of Rs. 460.77 crores as at March 31, 2019, total revenue of Rs. 180.99
crores, total comprehensive income (comprising of profit/ loss and other comprehensive income) of Rs.(-)
214.98 crores and net cash flows amounting to Rs. 14.26 crores for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Consolidated Financial Statements also include
the Group’s share of total comprehensive income (comprising of profit/ loss and other comprehensive
income) of Rs. (-) 0.84 crores for the year ended March 31, 2019 as considered in the Consolidated
Financial Statements, in respect of 4 associates whose financial information have not been audited by us.
These financial information are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management, and our
opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries and associates and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section
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143 of the Act including report on Other Information insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and
associates, is based solely on such unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial information are not material
to the Group.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial information certified by the
Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

16. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

®

(g

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account and records maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, associates and joint venture
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies,
its associates and joint venture incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in Annexure A.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations

on the consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates and joint venture — Refer
Note 29 (¢) to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ii. The Group, its associates and joint venture did not have any derivative contracts and in
respect of long-term contracts there are no material foreseeable losses as at March 31,
2019,

iii. During the year ended March 31, 2019, there were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and
its subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture incorporated in India.

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the
Group, its associates and joint venture for the year ended March 31, 2019.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Amitesh Dutta
Place: Gurgaon Partner
Date: June 15, 2019 Membership Number: 058507
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

Tn conjuniction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Onegy
Communications Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries, its associates and joint
venture, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiaries, its associates and joint venture, to whom
reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements is applicable, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible
for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal contrel stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Finanecial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAD). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the respective company’s policies, the safegnarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the ICAT and the Standards on Auditing
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Acl, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAL Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal finaneial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of
their reports referred to in the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to finaneial stalements.,

Meaning of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
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reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
oeeur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, its associales and joinl venture, which are companies
incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference lo
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively
as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal conirol over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

9. Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(0) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to 2 subsidiaries and an associate company,
which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies
incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Amitesh Dutta
Place: Gurgaon Partner
Date: June 15, 2019 Membership Number: 058507
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Consolidnied Balance Sheet as a1 March 31,2019
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Notes As it i Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non-currenl assels
Property, plant and equipmen! ] 284.28 16113
Capilal work in progress 5131 1854
Goodwill 4 293.02 31221
Other intangible assels 4 73.45 99 02
Intangible assels under d p 4,29 163
Tavestment in joint venture S(a} 46,05
Investment in associates 5(b) 20020 17557
Financial assels
Investments 6{b) 105,08 21159
Loans 6(c) 107.40 3248
Other financial assels 6(d) 137.07 243 64
Curvent tax assets 464.76 28126
Deferred tax assots 28 3.04 080
Other non-current assets 8 141,04 53 68
Total Non-Current Assets 1,91099 1,591.58
Current assels
Financial assets
Investments 6(a) 2,497.88 4,455.09
Trade receivables 7 25845 504 78
Cash and cash equivalents 9(a) 32547 33184
Benk balances other than cash and cash equivalents 9(b) 3726 3821
Loans 6(c) 308,83 1286
Other financial assets 6(d) 1,829.29 1,106 55
Other current assets ] 141382 635,77
Total Current Assels 6,671.00 7,085.10
TOTAL ASSETS B,581.99 8,676.65
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 10 (a) - 57.53 5532
Instruments entirely equity in nature 10 (a)} - 173.63
Other equity 10 (b} 568115 7.254.90
Equity atiributable {0 owner of the parent §,738.68 7,483.85
Non-controlling interests 86.17 135.47
Total Equity 5,824.85 7,61932
LIABILITES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 12(a) 26.96 .
Deferred tax liability 28 1847 22.67
Provisions 11 11,55 9.89
Total Non-Current Linbilities 56.98 32.56
Current liablltles
Financial liabilities
Bomowings 12(a) 695,60 242,12
Trade payables
(a) Total Outstanding dues of micro and small enlerprises 12(b) 11.26 0.88
(b) Total Outstanding dues other than (a) above 12(b) 72539 461 80
Others financial liabilities 12(c) 71541 235.80
Contract Liabilities 35287 .
Other current liabilities 13 159.17 53.50
Provisions 11 4046 3067
Total Current Linbititles 2,700.16 1,024.77
Total Liabltlties 2,7157.14 1,057.33
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 8&!].99 8,676,658

The ubove Consolidated Balance Sheet should be read in conj

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even dale

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm registration number: 012754N/ N500016

Amitesh Dutta

Partner

Membership No: 058507
Place:
Dale:

1$I06] 2019

ing notes

For and on behalf of Board of Dire¢tors of

Onew] Communleations bted
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VLM Madbur Deora

Place: P w;-
oo | ¢ Jo.5 2009

Chief Financial Officer
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CIN; U72200DL2000PLC108985

Consotidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019
{Amounts [n INR Crores, unless siherwise stnted)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Continuing Operatlons
Income
Revenue from operations 14 3,232.01 3,052.90
Other income 15 347.66 256.71
Tolal income* 3,579.67 3,309.61
vexeluding total income from discontinued operalions for the year ended March 31, 2019: INR 1 53
(March 31, 2018 : INR 35 58) (Refer nole 33)
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 16 856.22 61398
Finance costs 17 16.87 18.88
Deprecialion and amortizalion expense 18 99,51 7898
Other expenses 19 6,757.54 4,152.79
Toin expeaes® 7,730.14 4,864.53
*excludi | of di inued operations for the year ended March 31, 2019; INR 6 B4 (March
31, 2018 : INR 56.06) (Refer note 33}
Loss belore share of profit / (loss) of 1ates / Jolnt venture, ptional items (4,150.47) {1,584,92)
and tax from continulng operations
Share of profit/ (loss) of associates / joinl venture 24 14,61 (30.81)
Loss beforo exceptional items and tax from continuing operations (4,135.86) (1,585.13)
Exceplional jlems 20 (82.52) 3.40
Loss before tax from continuing operations (4,218.38) (1,58233)
Income Tax expense
Current tax 28 056 219
Tax expense related o earlier years 28 - (Lol
Deferred lax expense/(credit) 28 (7.05) (025)
Tolal Tax expense (6.49) 1.53
Laoss for the year from confinuing operations (4,211.89) (1,58.86)
Losa for the year from dlscontinued operations n (5.31) (20.48)
Loss for the year (4,217.20) (1,604.34)
Other comprehensive Inconte
Ttems (hat will not be reclassifled to profit or loas in subsequent years
Re-mesurement gaine/ (losses) on defined benefil plans 27 (0.45) 0.76)
Changes in fair value of equity instruments al FVTOCI 129 -
fiems (hat may be reclassified to profit or loss In subsequent years
Exchange differences on Lranslation of foreign operalions (5.45) (0.95)
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(1.0s9) for the year (4.61) (1.1}
Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for (he year {4,221,81) (lﬁﬂﬁ;ﬂs!
Laoss for the year
Auributable 10:
Qwners of the parent (4,167.98) (1,58946)
Non-conlrolling interests (49.22) (14.88)
{4.217.200 {1,604 34)
Other comprehensive income for the year
Aliributable (o:
Owners of the parent (4.95) (71
Non-controlling interests 0.34 -
(4.61) (171)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for (he year
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent (4,172.93) (1,591.17)
Non-conlrolling interests (48.88) (14.88)
_{a221.81) 06,05
Total comprehensive Income/(103s) attributable to equity holders
Conlinuing operalions (4,167,62) (1,570.69)
Disconlinued operation 5,31 20, 48)
(4,172,93) (1,591.17)
Basic & Diluled Eamnings per share from inuing operations atiributable to owners of 21 (714217 (31142)
the parent (INR per Share)
Basic & Diluled Eamnings per share from disconlinued operalicns atiribulable 1o owners 21 (0.95) (4.06)
of the parent (INR per Share)
Basic & Diluled Earmings per share from inuing and di inued op 21 (743.12) (315.48)
altribulable (o owners of the parent (INR per Share)
The above Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the panying nofes.

This is the Consolidaled Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even dale

For Price Waierhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm registration number: 012754N/ N500016

Amnifesh Dultn
Pariner
Membership No: 058507

b, OLUAI0N
s o8/ 2809

For and on behall of Board of Dlvectors of

Vi el
fendhe Vice President - Finance
\

W\N

Place: D

> 16)ss /2019

Madhur feora
Chief Financial Oficer
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Oney7 Communicailons Limited

CIN: UT2200DL2080PLC108985

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31,2019
{Amaunts in INR Crores, unbess otherm bie stated)

a)
shares of INE 10 each lwved, subwcribied ani fully patd Mo, OF Bhares
4
H1,27,4%3 nae
244,459 i
5.40.96,632 5533
Shares |esutd during e year 10,94,650 108
Sharcs imsned during (he 162,147 wie
At Ma i9* 51 9 5753
* Net of theamary shares 277,737 (Mamh 31, 2018 326,639) at nll cost thsugh enploves welaro i
Amount
173.6%
1734
i)
¢) Other equity
‘Atiributable 1o the equity sharchalders of ihe jureat
Share appllcation Reserves and Surplus Ot melruvg”( gerem0g bl i Total Other
Particulars money pending Total interesis Equity
llotment mﬁ: ::'“'“"' l ESOP Reserve | €VTOCI | FCTR®
Mﬂml,m‘l? w1z 488327 45| 6595 102 064 TAN65 - 2.050.65
Loss for the year a . (1,589.46) " . . (1,589.46) (14 B (1,604 34)
| Oebee i - . 0.76! - - 0.95)] (1.71y; - 170
Tatal comprebenilyve lncume - . 1,390.22) . = 0.95) 159117 (14, (1,606.05),
Excrcipe of share aplions 02 . - - - - 0.22) . .22y
Adjotiment ba Rorfeliure of ESOP . . 3,10 @3.10) = F . . :
Share lased paymatit expame (refer note 25) = - - 8182 - . 8382 . 83.82
Receipt of share applioaion meney 005 - - - . - 005 - 0.05
Aol foceived on isue of shares - 6,435.13 . - - - 6,435.13 643513
| At utilised for share issue expenses - 691) - . - . 691) . {091
Acquiuliion of subsidiodes . - - - - - - 15035 15035
Amnunt tranaferred (0 securities premium on exercise of oplions » 1240 - (12.40)! - - * & .
Oty adjostments . - 3355 - - . 335 - 358
As st March Jt, 018 0.05 11323.69 {4.204.02 13437 1.02 1 b/ ‘I_:.I-LM‘J 739037
Losa for (he yesr . - 4,167.96) - . - (4,167.9%) (49.22) {4.217.20}
ke ive income . - (0.79), = 129 (5.45) 4.9, 034 (4,613
Totsl comjirchenshve income - - 4163.77) . 129 (5.45) H17083) (48.98) (2218
Exercisy of thate oplioas (0.05) F . - : . 085 . (0.05)
Adjisstment on forfeituce of ESOP . - 344 (344 - - . - -
Adfjesstzment on cancellation of unvesied ESOP 19,07 (1907 - .
Share bawed prymient expenses (refer note 25) - - . 154.19 . - 154.19 - 154.19
Sharg based payment ceserve on account of joint venture . . . 282 . - 282 - e
Amound roceived on issue of shares - 2,187.41 - - - - 2,1R741 - 2,18741
Shwres losed Sor cansiderstion oy ltan cash . 294,75 - - . - 29475 * 204,75
A=t ulilised for share issue expenses . (245 . - . . (248 - [2.49)
Acquinithin of Non-controlling interest (refer note 39) . . (36.54) . . - (36.54) 050 AR 0%)
Mea-conrolliy interest recogained o dilulion of interest (refer note 39) . . (0.95) - . . (0.9%) 109 014
At IrsmnBonied 0 pecrzilien peemigm on sxsrchg ol optices - 1869 . (18.69) . . - - .
_As at March 31,2019 - 13.822.29 T 250,08 13 (3.76 [KE] 86.17 5,767.31
¢ Parcign curvency timiislation reserve

The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunclion wilh the accompanying noles.
This is the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity referved (o in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accouniants LLP For aadl om lichill of Hoary of Directars of
Firm registration number: 012754N/ N500016 One97 Communications Lindied

.
Amltesh Dutta Vijay
Partner Chai Direclot
Membership No: 058507 DIN No.

Piwe: (o
") ozfzuﬁ

¥ g Wwdhar Devra
Senior Vice Presiilind - Finance Chief Fhwancial

Place:

Oelint
b 16 Josf2019



Consolidated Financial Statements

One97 Communications Linited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (or the year ended March 31,2019
{(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Amounis i A S, S

For the year ended

For the year ended

Note March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Cash flow from operating activities:
Loss before tax from
Conlinuing operations {4,218.37) (1,582.34)
Discontinued operations (5.31) (20.48)
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortization expense 18 9951 78 88
Interest income 15 (69.58) (23 69)
Interest Income on unwinding of discount ~ measured at amortized cost 15 45175) (51 58)
Interest on borrowing al amortized cost 17 15.08 1228
Trade receivables / advances written off 19 162 312
Provision for doubtful advances and unbilled receivables 19 1224 182
Provision for impairment of trade receivables 19 20 56 3591
Gain on sale of gaming business/ wallet business 15 {42 20) (62.99)
Liabilities / provision no longer required written back 15 (591 -
Provision for impairment of investments in assaciales and subsidiaries 19 455 59 59
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles written off 19 2230 01t
Impairment of goodwill 20 120.17 -
Rent equalisation reserve 031 018
Non-cash employee share based payment expenses 25 154.19 83.68
Provision for employee incentive (9.85) 37.70
Share of result of associates 24 (14 61) 3081
Fair value gain on financial instruments measured at FVTPL (net) 15 (104.00) (158 66)
Gain on sale of current investments measured at FVTPL (net) 15 (1491 (18.78)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibles (net) 15 (1.01) (0.25)
Operating loss before working capital changes (4,180.97) (1,574.69)
Working capital adjustments:
Increase in trade payables 28401 209 87
Increase in provisions . 11.74 1147
Increase in other current liabilities and contract liabilities 45770 1439
Increase/(decrease) in other non-current liabilities - (283)
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities 449 43 (990.72)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 22476 (441.23)
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets (628.56) 682,29
(Increase) in other current and non current assets (846.89) (338.09)
(Increase) in loans (83.36) (27.09)
Cash used in operations (4,312.14) (2,454.91)
Income taxes paid (net off refunds) (183.49) (164.91)
Cash flow used in operating activities (A) (4,495.63) (2,619.82)
Cash flow Tram/{used in) investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equip including intangible assets, capital work in progress and capital (17733) (5951)
advances
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 236 042
Proceeds from sale of gaming business 33 3391 -
Acquisition of non controlling interests 23 (36.87) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash acquired) (1.43) (17.95)
Investment in bauk deposits (having original maturity of more than 12 months) (138.19) (119.64)
Tnvestment in bark deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months) (80.48) (88 82)
Maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 12 months) 177.06 74 49
Maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months) 81.43 73.08
Investments in joint ventures and associates (59.33) (182.52)
Inter corporate loans given (274.21) (2.16)
Proceeds from sale of non current investments 75037 81.06
Payment for purchase of current investments (3,296.34) (10,350.85)
Proceeds from sale of current investments 4,829.41 6,317.69
Interest received 68 54 7497
Cash flow from / (used) in investing activities (B) 1,878.90 (4,199.74)

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)
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One9? Communleations Limited
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For the year ended

Nate March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Cnsh flow from/(used [n) financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares 2,189.29 6,443,49
Share issue expenses (2.45) (6.89)
Share application money received during the year - 0.05
Share application money utilised during the year - (022)
Repay of borrowings on isition of subsidiari (3.10) .
Interest paid (1417 (1228)
Repayment of secured loans - (23 65)
Payment of deferred payment liabilities (7.24) -
Cash flow from financing actlvitles (C ) 1,162.33 B,A00.50
Ne Incrense/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {454.40) (419.06)
Cash and cash equivalent ol the bejginning of the year 89,72 509,73
EfTect of exchangs differcnces on of toreign cash and cash equlvalents (5.45) (0.95)
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year {370.13) 89.72
As mt As at
March 31, 2019 Murch 31, 2018
Cash and cash equivalents as per ahave compirises of fullowing
Cash on hand [AY] 011
Balance with banks
- Oun current accounts 304.03 32028
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 2133 1145
Other bank balances
- Bank overdraft {695 60} (242,12)
Total cash and cash equivalents 9(a) (370.13) £9.72
For h i and actlvities refer notes 10(a), 12(a) and 37 respectively
The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows should be read in junction with the ing notes,

This is the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

These Consolidated Financial Statements (“Consolidated Financial Statements™) comprise the financial statements of One97
Communications Limited (“hereinafter referred to as the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries, (the Holding Company and
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), its joint venture and associate companies for the year ended March 31,
2019.

One97 Communications Limited is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The registered office of the Holding Company is located at 1% Floor, Devika Tower, Nehru
Place, New Delhi - 110019. The principal place of business of the Group is in India.

The Group is in the business of providing payment services primarily as payment facilitator and providing voice and messaging
platforms to the telecom operators and enterprise customers.

These Consolidated Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on
May 16, 2019.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

These Consolidated financial statements (“Financial Statements™) of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard (“Ind AS”) notified under Section 133 of the Act, Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial instruments).

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use (also refer note 2.5 d
below).

All the amounts included in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘Rupees’ or ‘Rs.” or ‘INR’) and are
rounded to the nearest crores up to two decimal places, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

2.2 Business Combination and Goodwill

Business combinations (other than those under common contro!) are accounted for using the acquisition method under Ind AS
103. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair
values. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated
below:

. The assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind
AS 19 Employee Benefits.

o Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
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date. The consideration transferred by the acquirer is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Deferred consideration is
classified as a liability under Ind AS 109 and is measured at amortized cost.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in statement of profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has Control. The determination of control for the
purpose of consolidation is done as per Ind AS 110. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

a) Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee)

b) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

¢) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the
Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

a) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

b) Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

¢) The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

d) The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting
rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date the Group gains control until the
date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in
similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the Consolidated Financial
Statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that group member’s
Financial Statements in preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting
policies.
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The Financial Statements of all entities used for the purpose ot consolidation are drawn up to same reporling date as that of the
Group. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for
consolidation purposes, additional financial information as ol the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable
the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedures:

(@) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and
liabilities recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements at the acquisition date.

(b)  Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of
each subsidiary.

(c)  Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating (o ransaclions
between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in Fixed assets,
such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires
recognition in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that
arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating (o
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. The Group measures non-controlling
interests at their proportion of the fair value of the identifiable net assets.

2.4 Investment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence is similar to those necessary to determine control over the
subsidiaries

The Group’s investments in its associate are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in
an associate is initially recognised at cost.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method, after initially being recognised at cost in the consolidated
balance sheet.

The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or
joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of
the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The consolidated statement of profit and loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of the associate or joint
venture. Any change in OCI of the associate or joint venture is presented as part of the Group’s OCL In addition, when there has
been a change recognised dircetly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture.

If an entity’s share of losses of an associate or joint venture equals or exceeds ils interest in the associate or joint venture (which
includes any long term interest that. in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the entity
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint
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venture subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits
equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate or joint venture is shown on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit and loss, The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary Lo recognise an impairment loss on its
investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that
the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then
recognises the loss as *Share of profit of an associate’ in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair
value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating eycle,
held primarily for the purpose of trading, expected to be realised within twelve months afier the reporting period, or cash or cash
cquivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period. All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating eycle, it is held primarily for the purpose
of trading, it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or there is no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-
current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities, are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operaling cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
b. Foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it operates i.e. the “functional currency”. The Group’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is
also the Holding Company’s functional currency.
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Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional cutrency at
exchange rates prevailing at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange
at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) or consolidated statement of profit and loss, are also
recognised in OCI or consolidated statement of profit and loss, respectively).

Group companies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
reporting date and their consolidated statements of profit and loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCI. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

c. Fair value measurement

The Group measures certain financial instruments (e.g. investments) at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liabilities takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability or in absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
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For assets and liabilitics that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be
re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policics. For this analysis, the management or its expert verities the
major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other
relevant documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

d. Revenue recognition

Accounting policy applied till March 31,2018

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be
reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties. Where the
Group acts as an agent for selling goods or services, only the commission income is included within revenue. The specific
revenue recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized.

Sale of services

Revenue from services is recognized by reference to stage of completion as and when services are rendered as per the terms of
the agreement with customer. Revenues are disclosed net of the service tax charged on such services. In terms of the contract,
excess of revenue over the billed at the year-end is carried in the Consolidated Financial Statements as unbilled revenue under
other financial assets.

Commission
The Group facilitates recharge of talk time, bill payments, availability of bus tickets and sale of deal coupons and earns
commission for the respective services. Commission income is recognized when the services have been provided by the Group.

Service fees

The Group earns service fee from merchants and recognizes such revenue when the services have been provided by the Group.
Such service fee is generally determined as a percentage of transaction value executed by the merchants. Amount received by
the Group pending seitlement are disclosed as payable to the merchants under financial liabilities. Service fee also includes
royalty charged to customers for providing brand and technical support. Such fee is determined as a percentage of transaction
value executed by the customers.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income
is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” from April 1, 2018, which resulted in changes in
accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial statements. In accordance with the transition
provisions in Ind AS 115, the Group has adopted the modified transitional approach to implementation where any transitional
adjustment is recognized in retained earnings at April 1, 2018 without adjustment of comparatives and the new standard is only
applied to contracts that are not completed as at that date.

Impact of adoption

The Group provides incentives to users in various forms including cashbacks. Prior to the adoption of Ind AS 115, cashbacks
given to users where the Group recovers a convenience fees were classified in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as
a marketing expense. Following the adoption of Ind AS 115, cashbacks given to users where the Group recovers a convenience
fees are classified as a reduction of revenue. However, such adjustment does not have an impact on retained earnings of the
Group on the date of transition.

Typically, the Group has a right to payment before or at the point that services are delivered. Cash received before the services
delivered is recognised as a contract liability. The amount of consideration does not contain a significant financing component as
payment terms are less than one year.

i) Impact on consolidated financial statements:
The following table show the adjustments recognised for each individual line item. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

March 31, 2019
As presented Adjustments on account of | Amounts prior adoption
under Ind AS 115 Ind AS 115 of Ind AS 115
Revenue from operations 3,232.01 194.14 3,426.15
Other expenses 6,757.54 194.14 6,951.68
Profit/(loss) for the year for (4,211.89) - (4,211.89)
continuing operation
Profit/(loss) for the year for (5.31) - (5.31)
discontinuing operation
Basic and diluted Earnings per share (742.17) - (742.17)
for continuing operations
Basic and diluted Earnings per share (0.95) - (0.95)
for discontinuing operations
Contract liability 352.87 352.87 -
Other current liability- Advance from - 352.87 352.87
customer

During the year ended March 31, 2019, the Group recognized revenue of INR 29.30 arising from advance from customer as of
April 1,2018.
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Accounting policy applied from April 1, 2018

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer net of variable consideration e.g.
discounts, volume rebates, any payments made to a customer (unless the payment is for a distinct good or service received from
the customer) and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control
over a product or service to a customer. Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal will not occur.

The Group provides incentives to its users in various forms including cashbacks. Incentives which are consideration payable to
the customer that are not in exchange for a distinct good or service are generally recognized as a reduction of revenue at the later
of when revenue is recognized or when the Group pays or promises to pay the incentive.

Where the Group acts as an agent for selling goods or services, only the commission income is included within revenue. The
specific revenue recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized. Typically, the Group has a
right to payment before or at the point that services are delivered. Cash received before the services are delivered is recognised
as a contract liability. The amount of consideration does not contain a significant financing component as payment terms are less
than one year.

Sale of services

Revenue from services is recognized when the control in services is transferred as per the terms of the agreement with customer
i.e. as and when services are rendered. Revenues are disclosed net of the Goods and Service tax charged on such services. In
terms of the contract, excess of revenue over the billed at the year-end is carried in the balance sheet as unbilled revenue under
other financial assets where the amount is recoverable from the customer without any future performance obligation. Cash
received before the services are delivered is recognised as a contract liability.

Commission

The Group facilitates recharge of talk time, bill payments, availability of bus tickets and sale of deal coupons and earns
commission for the respective services. Commission income is recognized when the control in services is transferred to the
customer when the services have been provided by the Group.

Service fees from merchants

The Group earns service fee from merchants and recognizes such revenue when the control in services have been transferred by
the Group i.e. as and when services have been provided by the Group. Such service fee is generally determined as a percentage
of transaction value executed by the merchants. Amount received by the Group pending settlement are disclosed as payable to
the merchants under contract liabilities.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income
is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.
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e. Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside consolidated statement of profit and loss is recognised either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject Lo interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss.

o In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assels are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interest in joint arrangements where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside consolidated statement of profit and loss is recognised either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax items are recognised in cotrelation to the underlying transaction either in OCI
or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
cutrent tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Minimum alternate tax

Credit of MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset only when it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
credit can be utilised. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created
by way of a credit to the consolidated statement of profit and loss account. The Group reviews the same at each balance sheet
date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent it is no longer probable that the Group will
pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added/goods and services/ service taxes paid, except:

e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the
tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or disclosed separately in consolidated statement of profit
and loss as part of the expense item, as applicable, or

o  When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of other current/ non- current
assets or other current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

f. Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale rather than through continuing use. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is
unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be
committed to the sale expected within one year from the date of classification.

For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current assets when the exchange has

commercial substance. The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets or disposal group is

available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets

(or disposal groups), its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The Group treats sale of the asset

or disposal group to be highly probable when:

o The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal group),

e An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable),

o The asset (or disposal group) is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair
value,

o The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification , and

o Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the
plan will be withdrawn.

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less
costs to sell. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of, or is
classified as held for sale, and:

o Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations or

e Ispart of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations.

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount as profit or
loss after tax from discontinued operations in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.
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Additional disclosures are provided in Note 33. All other notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements mainly include
amounts for continuing operations, unless otherwise mentioned.

g. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment, if any.
Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a written down value basis to its residual value over its estimated useful life.

Cost directly attributable to acquisition are capitalised until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by
the management.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when future
economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Group and cost of the item can be measured reliably.
When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All repair and maintenance are charged to consolidated statement of profit and loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as
capital advances under the non-current assets and the cost of assets not ready to usc before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital
work in progress’.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Depreciation is provided using the written down value method and charged to consolidated statement of profit and loss as per
the rates prescribed under schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, given below:

Assets Rate of Depreciation
(per annum)
Servers and networking equipment (Computers) 39.30%
Laptops and desktops (Computers) 63.16%
Office equipment 45.07%
Furniture and fittings 25.89%
Plant & Machinery 18.10%
Vehicles 31.23%

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over lower of the period of the lease and useful life.
Leasehold land is depreciated over the period of the lease.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h. Intangible assets

Separately acquired intangible assets, such as software are measured initially at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried
at cost and are amortised on a written down value basis over their estimated useful lives and charged to consolidated statement
of profit and loss.
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Software and licenses acquired are amortized at the rate of 40% per annum on written down value method. Other intangibles i.e
Customer relationship, right to use brand, technology and non- compete right acquired in business combination are amortised over
their useful life on straight line basis, which is taken to be 5 years.

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value
of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as an intangible
asset when the Group can demonstrate all the following:

e The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale

e Its intention to complete the asset

e Its ability to use or sell the asset

e  How the asset will generate future economic benefits

o  The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset

e The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the asset to be
carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when
development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of expected future
benefit from the related project, i.e., the estimated useful life of one to five years. Amortization is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in the consolidated statement of profit and loss in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

j. Impairment of non-financial assets

For all non-financial assets, the Group assesses whether there are indicators of impairment. If such an indicator exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where the asset does
not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount for an asset or CGU is the higher of its value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. If the recoverable
amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its carrying amount or CGU the asset is considered impaired and the
carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss.
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In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows of the asset or CGU are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations. These budgets and forecast calculations
generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the
Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products,
industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s
or CGU’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of
the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

k. Provisions and contingencies

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the consolidated statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be contirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The
Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial Statements.

1. Retirement and other employee benefits

For defined benefit plans (gratuity), the liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference
to market yiclds at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the
related obligation.
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The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the het balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

The Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans (provident fund) are recognized in profit or loss when the employee
renders related service. The Group has no further obligations under these plans beyond its periodic contributions.

The Group provides for liability at year end on account of un-availed earned leave as per actuarial valuation using projected unit
credit method.

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the
end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as employee benefit payable under other financial liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

m. Share-based payments

i) Equity-settled transactions

Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate
valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) reserves in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
consolidated statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards,
but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the terms not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the
award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per
share.
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ii) Cash-settled transactions

For awards classified as cash settled share based transactions, the goods or services acquired are measured and the liability
incurred, at the fair value of liability. Until the liability is settled, the fair value of the liability is re-measured at the end of each
reporting period and at the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in consolidated statement of profit and
loss for the period.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is determined by the fair value of equity instruments at each reporting date using an
appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in liability, over the period in which the performance and/or
service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for cash-settled transactions at
each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The consolidated statement of profit and loss expense or
credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is
recognised in employee benefits expense.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met.

The Group has set up an Employee Welfare Trust (EWT) for administering certain types of share-based payment arrangements
including awards given to employees of the outside group companies as well for awards of options of other companies given to
its employees. The Group uses EWT as a vehicle for distributing shares under the ESOP schemes. The EWT holds shares of the
Group, for giving shares to employees. The Group treats EWT as its extension and shares of the Group held by EWT are treated
as treasury shares. Other assets held by EWT are consolidated on a line-by-line basis with Group’s financial statements. Shares
of other companies held by EWT for distribution to its employees are separately disclosed under investments.

n. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
e  Debt instruments at amortized cost

o Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
. Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
o Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
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Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables and is most
relevant to the Group.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and
b)  The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPP1.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recoghizes interest income,
impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to consolidated
statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR
method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Group may make an irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to consolidated statement of profit or loss,
even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transter the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss.
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Equity investments in associates and joint ventures are measured at cost. The investments are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’. If any
such indication exists, policy for impairment of non-financial assets is followed.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s consolidated balance sheet) when:

o The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (2) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of
simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month expected
credit loss (ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is
used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12
months afier the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision
matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for
forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

JECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head other expenses in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss. For the financial assets measured as at amortised cost ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
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measurement of those assets in the consolidated balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset
meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, including bank overdrafts and other borrowings.
Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below:

Loans and borrowings

Afier initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently mcasured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract —
with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An
embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified
according to a specified interest rate, linancial instrument price, com modity price, forcign exchange rate, index of prices or rates,
credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case ol'a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a
party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification ol a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or
loss.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Group does not separate
embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid contracl.
Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for
trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognized in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments.
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to seltle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

0. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the consolidated balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

p. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified
in an arrangement.

Group as a lessee

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group is classified as a finance lease.
All other leases are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to consolidated statement
of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or, il
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are recognised in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the assel. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the nsset
and the lease term.

q. Earnings/ (loss) per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on
canversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.
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r. Treasury shares

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments. Any difference
between the carrying amount and the consideration, il reissued, is recognised in other reserve.

S. Segment reporting
Identification of segments

Operaling segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker (CODM). Only those business activities are identified as operating segment for which the operating results are regularly
reviewed by the CODM to make decisions about resource allocation and performance measurement.

Segment accounting policies

The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group as a whole.

t. Use of estimates

The Group is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Group bases its estimates on
historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable, the results of which form the basis for
making judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities.

u. Exceptional Items

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary activities of the
Group is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the Group. Such income or expense is
classified as an exceptional item and accordingly disclosed in the consolidated financial statements. Significant impact on the

financial statements arising from impairment of goodwill, impairment of investments in associates and gain/ loss from slump
sale of business lines are considered and reported as an exceptional items,

v. Contributed Equity
Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

w. Accounting standard and amendment issued but not effective as at March 31, 2019
i) Nature of Change for Ind AS 116

Ind AS 116 was notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs on March 30, 2019 and it is applicable from annual reporting periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2019.

Ind AS 116 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on balance sheet.
The standard removes the current distinction between operating and finance leases and requires recognition of an asset (the
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right-of-use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals for virtually all lease contracts. An optional exemption exists
for short-term and low-value leases.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting Ind AS 116 on the consolidated financial statements.
ii) Uncertainty over Income tax Treatments, to Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’ — Appendix C

The appendix explains how to recognise and measure deferred and current income tax assets and liabilities where there is
uncertainty over a tax treatment. In particular, it discusses:

o how to determine the appropriate unit of account, and that each uncertain tax treatment should be considered separately
or together as a group, depending on which approach better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty;

o that the entity should assume a tax authority will examine the uncertain tax treatments and have full knowledge of all
related information, i.e. that detection risk should be ignored;

o that the entity should reflect the effect of the uncertainty in its income tax accounting when it is not probable that the
tax authorities will accept the treatment;

e that the impact of the uncertainty should be measured using either the most likely amount or the expected value
method, depending on which method better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty; and

e that the judgements and estimates made must be reassessed whenever circumstances have changed or there is new
information that affects the judgements.

The Group has substantially completed assessing its existing models and processes which it has developed to account for tax
uncertainties against the specific guidance in the appendix C to Ind AS 12 to consider the impact on income tax accounting in
respect of its material tax jurisdictions. Basis such assessment, the application of this guidance is not expected to have material
impact on its financial statements.

jii) Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures — Amendments to Ind AS 28, ‘Investment in Associates
and Joint Ventures’

The amendments clarify the accounting for long-term interests in an associate or joint venture, which in substance form part of
the net investment in the associate or joint venture, but to which equity accounting is not applied. Entities must account for such
interests under Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’ before applying the loss allocation and impairment requirements in Ind AS
28. The Group is in the process of evaluating the impact of above amendments.

iv) Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation — Amendments to Ind AS 109, ‘Financial Instruments’

The narrow-scope amendments made to Ind AS 109 enable entities to measure certain prepayable financial assets with negative
compensation at amortised cost. These assets, which include some loan and debt securities, would otherwise have to be
measured at fair value through profit or loss. To qualify for amortised cost measurement, the negative compensation must be
‘reasonable compensation for early termination of the contract’ and the asset must be held within a ‘held to collect’ business
model. These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group.

v) Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation — Amendments to Ind AS 109, ‘Financial Instruments’

The amendments to Ind AS 19 clarify the accounting for defined benefit plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. They
confirm that entities must :
o calculate the current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the reporting period after a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement by using the updated assumptions from the date of the change;
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s any reduction in a surplus should be recognised immediately in profit or loss either as part of past service cosl, or as a
gain or loss on settlement. Tn other words, a reduction in a surplus must be recognised in profit or loss even if that
surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling; and

s separately recognise any changes in the asset ceiling through other comprehensive income.

These amendments will apply to any future plan amendments, curtailments, or scttlements of the Group on or after
April 1, 2019.

vi) Ind AS 103, ‘Business Combinations’

The amendments clarify that obtaining control of a business thal is a joint operation, is a business combination achieved in
stages. The acquirer should re-measure its previously held interest in the joint operation at fair value at the acquisition date.
These amendments will apply to future business combinations of the Group for which acquisition date is on or after April 1,
2019.

vii) Ind AS 111, ‘Joint Arrangements’

The amendments clarify that obtaining control of a business that is a joint operation, is a business combination achieved in
stages. The acquirer should re-measure its previously held interest in the joint operation at fair value at the acquisition date,
These amendments will apply to future business combinations of the Group for which acquisition date is on or after April 1,
2019.

viii) Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends on financial instruments classified as equity should be
recognised according to where the past transactions or events that generated distributable profits were recognised. These
requirements apply to all income tax consequences of dividends. Previously, it was unclear whether the income tax
consequences of dividends should be recognised in profit or loss, or in equity, and the scope of the existing guidance was
ambiguous. The Group is in the process of evaluating the impact ol above amendments.

ix) Ind AS 23, ‘Borrowing Costs’

The amendments clarify that if a specific borrowing remains outstanding afier the related qualifying asset is ready for its
intended use or sale, it becomes part of general borrowings.

The Group’s current practice is in line with these amendments and accordingly these amendments are not expected to have any
material impact on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)
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Natex to the Consolldated Financlal Statements for (he vear ended March 31. 2019

(Amounts n INR Crores, unless nthvrwhiv 1tatei)

5. Investment n assoclates and jont venture

5 (a) Investment In jolnt venture - Nun Current

Asat As at
{ - - March IS
Unauoted eaulty shures (Fully pald up)
Gamenind Entertainment Private Limited
59.678.300 (March 31 2018 : Nil) equitv shares of INR 10 each 4605
EII=
5 (b} Tnvestment In ansociaten - Non Current
As at Asut
—Mlapcd LS S YR TG 7117 —

Unquoted equlty sharea (Fully pald up)
Paytm Payments Bank Limiled 190 14 158,07
195,904,900 (March 31, 2018 : 195,904,900) equity shares of INR 10 each

Paytm General Insurance Corporation Ltd® 005
49,000 (March 31, 2018 : Ni) equity shares of INR 10 cach

Paytm Life Tnsurance Corporation Limited* 005
49,000 (March 31, 2018 : Nil) equity shares of INR 10 each

Total (A) 190.24 158.07
Unquoted ly ible p! hares (Fully paid up)
Loginext Solutions Private Limited** 996 1551

279,443 (March 31, 2018 : 279,443) Compulsorily Convertible Prefirence share of fuce value of INR 10 each

Sacomo Technologies Private Limited**
28,800 (March 31, 2018 : 28,800) Compulswrily Convertible Preference share of tace value of INR | each

Total (B) 9.96 15.51
Unquoted I ble deb

QorQL Private Limited#

Nil (March 31, 2018 ; 2,000,000) Compulsorily Convartible Debentures of INR 10 each - 199
Total (C) - 199
Grand Total [A+B+C] 200.20 175.57
Aggregate amount of unquufed Investments 200.20 175.57
Aggregate amount of lmpairment in (he value of Investment 69.84 65.29

# Converted lo Investment in subsidiary during the year ended March 31, 2019
* Investments mude during Lhe year
* Net of provision for impainnent amounting (o INR 27 05 (March 31. 2018 : 22 50) and INR 42 79 (March 31, 2018 : 42 79) for Loginext Solutions Private Limited and Socomo Technologies Private Limiled, respectively

6. Financial assets

6 (2 Investments - Current Asat As at
Dlarch 31, 2018 Murwh A1, 21N

Investments at falr value through profit and loss
Mutual Faly (Quated)

Aditya Birlu Sun Life Cash Plus - Growth - Direct Plan - 568 87
Nif units ( March 31, 2018 :20,366,791 unils)

Aditya Birla Sun Lite Floating Rate Fund - Long Term - Growth-Direct 2 31004
Nil units ( March 31, 2018 :14,398,760 units)

Aditya Birla Sun Lile Savings Fund - Growth - Direct Plan - 25649
Nil unils (March 31, 2018 :7,457,811 uaits)

Axis Liqud Fund- Direct Growth 4804 797
231,675 unils ( March 31, 2018 :41,357 units)

Axis Liquid Fund - Dircct- Growth Oplion 10.18
49,112 wnits ( March 31. 2018 ‘Nil unils)

Bitla Sun Life Floating Rate Fund . 938
Nil units ( March 31, 2018 :4,04,421 unils)

DSP BlackRock Liquidity Fund-Direct Plan-Growth . 3804
13 units ( March 31, 2018 :153,196 units)

HDFC floaling rale debl fand - Growth Direct Plan I 21
3287 units ( March 31, 2018 :Nil units)

HDFC Floating Rate Income Fund Short -Direct Plan - Wholesale Growth Oplion - 102 85
Nil units ( March 31, 2018 :33,850,370 unils)

HDFC Liyuid Fund - Direct Plan-Growth . 793.00
Nil units { March 31, 2018 :2,316,075 units)

ICICI Prudential Flexible Income - Direct Plan - Growth . 60 96
Nil units ( March 31, 2018 :1,820,260 units)

ICICI Prudential Liquid - Direct Plan - Growth 626 96 57330
22,681,730 units ( March 31,2018 :22,308,384 units)

ICIC1 Prudential Liquid Regular Plan Growth - 1138
Nil unils { March 31, 2018 :45,932 unils)

*Below rounding oY noms adopted by Ui Group
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Avat Asat
March 31,0049 _ Murch 31,2008

ICICI Prudential Liquid - Direct Plan - Growth (refer note (i) below) 14205
5,139.147 units (March 31, 2018 :Nil unils)

1CIC] Prudential MF-Floaling Int Fund 031
18,319 Unils (March 31, 2018: Nil units)

IDFC Cash Fund Direct Plan - Growth 228 432
10,068 units ( March 31, 2018 :352,191 uts)

Kotuk Floaler Shorl Tamm Diect Plan 063
Nil unils ( March 31, 2018 :2,235 units)

Kotak Liquid- Direct Plan - Growth 032
843 units (March 31, 2018: Nil units)

Reliance Liquid Fund - Treasury Plan - Direct Growth Plan - Growth Option - 1225
Nil units ( March 31, 2018 :264,754 units)

Reliunce Liquid Fund - Direct Plan Growth Plan - Growth Oplivn 765,26 -
1,677,500 units ( March 31, 2018 :Nil units)

Relionce Medium Term Fund Direet Plan Growth - 25442
Nil units { Murch 31, 2018 :68,389,527 unils)

Reliance Money Manager Fund Direct Plan Growth . 256 42
Nil units ¢ March 31, 2018 :1,051,459 uriits)

$BI Magnum Insta Cash Fund - Direct Plan - Growth . 1044
Nil units { March 31, 2018 :27,156 units)

$BI Liquid Fund- Direct - Growth (Formerly SBI Premier Liquid Fund) 760 67 2124
2,597.386 unils (March 31, 2018 :77,954 unils)

SBI Liquid Fund - Direct- Growth Option 223
7,600 units ( March 31, 2018 :Nil units)

UTI Liquid Fund - Direct- Grawth Option 775 .
25,319 units (March 31, 2018 :Nil units)

UTI- Liquid Fund-Cash Plan-Grawth Direct 3136
102,459 units ( March 31, 2018 :Nil units)

UTI-Treastoy Advantage Fund-Institutional Plan-Direct Plan-Growth . 256.30
Nil units ( March 31, 2018 :1,061,933 units)

Total (A) 2,398.82 3,708.10
Dehentures (unquoted)

Ciigttal Linited (refex note @iii) and (iv) bebisw) s
Nil fhdali M1, 2018 : 27,876,274) Convertilile Loan Notes of GBP 0.01 each

Total (B) = B
Trveatmmnts = ansurtised cont
Debt Instruments (quoted)

Kotak Mshindra Prime Ltd 8,019% NCD 29 Jan 2019 . 1503
Nil March 31,2018 : 150) R ble Non C ible Deb: of INR 1,000,000 each

Kotak Mahindra Prime Lid 8.70% NCD 10 Aug 2018 - 1049
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 100) ble Non C: ible Dx o INR 1,000,000 each

Kolak Mahindra Prime Lid B 03% NCD 14 Feb 2019 - 50 16
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 500) R ble Non C ible Deb of INR 1,000,000 each

Kolak Mahindra Investments Ltd 8 10% CP 21 Feb 2019 - 18505
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 4000) Commercial Papers of INR 500,000 each

HDFC 7 40% NCD 22 Nov 2018 . 177 49
Nil March 31,2018 : 175) R ble Non C. ible D of INR 10,000,000 each

HDFC 0% ZCB 30 Oct 2018 - 150 07
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 1000) Zero Coupun Bonds of INR 1,000,000 each

L1 Honrring Finance Litnteal 9. 65% NUTI 25 Mur 2019 - 2761
[l {Nareh 31, 2018 250 Rl bl Moy € ble De of TNR 1,000,000 each

LIC Hiuatig Finance Limited § 762495 NCD K hu 2019 . 2533
Bl (Marcli 31, 2018 : 2307 Held ble Non L tible Deb of INR 1,000,000 each

|AC! Himuing Finance Lirdned B 70005 NUTY 17 D 2018 - 5361
Bl iddarch 31, 2018 : 300) Fok bde M C ible Det of INR 1,000,000 each

Taln Cajjital Fiviarssinl Serviges Linntesd 2006 NCD 8 Mus 2010 . 5215
Nil (%t 31, 20152 500) Rual s P 47 ilde T ol INR 1,000,000 each

102 Mg Financs Litissed 7 08504 NEC1 23 Apeil 2019 9906 -
1000 (Misteh 31, 2083 : Nif) Resdeeniable M Cormventiirle Debentures of INR 1,000,000 each

Total (C) 99.06 746.99

Totul current investments [A+B+C| 2AVTAR 4 4550

P
\.‘?_’é:’:.s:iﬂ
o —

* runram
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6 (b Investments - Non Current Asat Asat
March 31, 2UL4 March 4, 3018

Investments al falr value through OCI (refer note (i) below)

Unquoted equlty shures (Fully patd up)
Ciqual Limited (refer nole ii) and (iv) below)
29.43.276 (March 31, 2018 127 489) cquity shares of GBP 0 01 each

Highorbit Careers Privale Limited 0.38 0.36
235 (March 31, 2018 : 235) equily shares of INR 10 each

ZEPO Technologies Private Limited 228 228
3,458 (March 31, 2018 : 3,458) Equily shares of face value INR 10 each

Piluni Experts Technology Lubs Private Limited 1.84 0.49
1,277 (March 31, 2018 : 1,277) equity shares of TNR 10 each

Red Pixels Ventures Limited 037 0.44
1,093 (Murch 31, 2018 : 1.093) Equily shares of fave value INR 10 each

Plivo In¢ 4.39 4.86
793,696 (March 31, 2018 : 793,696) vormuom stock of USD | each

SoNware [s Correct INC (refer nole (jii) below) 2
50,000 (March 31, 2018 : 50,000) common stock of USD | each

Tutal (A) 9.76 .43

Investments at falr value through Profit and loss

Unquoted Compulsorly Convertible Preference shares (Fully paid up)
[aining Clouds Tech Frvete Limidted [redes nolz (iii) below)
346720 (Marcli 31, 3018 ; 3,620) Redewubte Converfibde Preference Shares ol INR 10 each

sy Bees Loyisties Solution Privale Eirmated 8216 4858
B2 (Mareh 31, 2018 : 18,121) Congmilsorily Convertible Preference share of face value of INR 10 each

Avemacs Pavinents Indin Private Linilicd 7.00 700
FAT9 (Wureh 31, 2018 : 11,375) Cannpalsorily Convertible Preference share of face value of INR 100 each

Pilund Exprerts Teshamlogy Laba Private Limiteil 042
289 (Ml 71, 20182 Nil) Compulsonly Comvertible Preterence share of lace value INR 100 each
89.58 55.58

Unquoted equity shares (Fully paid up)
Paylm E~commerce Privale Limited
1,792 (March 31, 2018 . 11,276) Equity shares of face value INR 10 cach held by Employee Welfare Trust 574 4513
Tolal (B) 95.32 100.71
Trvveutmmnts at wimuriisel eosl
Debt instruments (quoted)
LIC Housing Finance Lumatad 7 R34 NCTY 35 Ap 2019 - 102 45
Nil (March 31, 2018 : 1K1} Reebesriulale Moy Cor wtible Debentures of INR 1,000,000 each
Total (C) - 102.45
Total Non Curren( Invesiments [A+B+C]) 1159
Total Current Investments 2,49788 4,455 09
Total Non-Current Inveshments 105 08 21159

2,602.96 4,666,68
Ageregate book value uf unquoted Investments 105.08 10814
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 249788 +,557.54
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 2,497.88 4,557.54
Aggregate amount of impairment In the value of Inves(ments 5.03 5.00

Notes to & fa) anil & {ls) ahave

(i) ICICI Prudential Lt - Divect Plan - Growth is marked under lien by banks for bank overdrafl amounting to INR 142 05 (March 31, 2018 NIL) and for guaranices INR Nil (March 31, 2018 INR
0.70) issued against various contracts

(ii) Investments al fair value through OCI (fully paid) reflect investment in unquoted equity securitics Refer nole 31 for determinalion of their [air values

(§#i) The Company holds these investments, however the fair value is Nil

(iv) In current year, Ciqual Limited has converted 27,876,274 loan notes of GBP 001 each inlo 2,815,787 ordinary shares of GBP 0 01 each

(This space is intentionally loft blank)
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2009

6 (c) Loans

Intercorporate Loans #
Security deposils
Less: Loss allowance for sccurily deposils

Break-up uf security details

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good

Security deposit which have signilicant inuease in aredil risk

Security deposil Credil mpaired

Less: Luss sllowance
Toial Loans

Mun-Cuyremi Current
Asat As At
_ March 31,3019 Mutch 31,2018 March 31,2019 March 31, 2015
27637 216
107 51 3259 3246 1070
©in Ul - -
10740 JLAN s s3 12.86
As at Asal
March 51, 2019 March 31, 201% Bdarch 31, 2019 March 31, 2014
107.40 3248 308 83 1286
0.l 011 - -
107.51 3259 3U4.83 12.86
.11 ©.11) : .
107.40 32.48 308.83 IIJL

#The inter corporale loans primarily include loans given to wo parties aller complying with the provisions of section 186 of the Companics act, 2013 The loans have been given in accordance with Lerns and conditions of the
underlying agreements The loan given lo one of the parlies, is at the rate ol 8% per annum, is repayable on demand, (fom the date of drawing of the loan, from the spevitied limil of amount extended as borrowing to the party For
otlier party the antounts are repayable within twelve months The loan (o U remaining other party carrics a rate ol inferest of 10% per annum fo1 respective amounts,

6

=

Other financlal assels

Bank balances

Deposits with original matuwity for more than 12 months (Reia note 9@(b) & 9(W)(©)

Others
Loan t employees
Other advanes reeoverable in cash

Accrued Interest on Debt Instruments measured al amortised cost

Interest acorued but not duc on fixed deposils
Unbilled revenue
Less: Loss ollowance for unbilled revenue

Amount recoverable from Paymeni Gateway banks*
Unsecw ed, considered good

Amounl recoverable from other parties

Amount recoverable from relaled parlies (Refer nole 26)
Unsevured, considered doubtful

Amount recoverable from ulher parties

Ligss . Lok dlbisvvrice

Amount recoverable (rom related parties (Refer note 26)
Amount recoverable from olher parties

Total [A+B+C|

¢ The amount represent recoveruble from payment guleway banks on aceount of eredit card/lebit card and net banking transaclions related to thivd party merchants

Break up of financial assets carried ut amortised cost

Trade receivables (Nole 7)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 9(a))

Bank balances olher than cash and cash equivalents (Note 9(b))

Security deposils (Note 6(c))
Inter corporate loans (Note 6(c))
Others (Nule 6 (d))

Tnvestments (Note6 (a) & (b))

Break up of financial asseis carricd af fair value

Investinents al fair value through OCT (Reer note 6(b))

Investmenls at [air value through Profit and loss (Refer nole 6(a) & 6(b))

Man-currenl Curient
As at As at
March 31, 2019 Wlurch: 31, 2018 Murch 31, 2004 Maech 31, 2048
2.99 8.07 98 48 13227
- & 355 028
- - 2476 -
- 6.08 743 -
038 0.49 492 533
. - 21383 56.34
- - (1780 (7.35)
3.57 14.64 335.17 186.87
- - 65147 294 87
- - 51103 11557
- - 304 302
- - 1,165 54 41346
- - 304) .02
- - 1,162.50 410.44
2509 2253 3403 4376
LOR 41 20647 29759 465 48
133.50 229.00 331.62 509.24
137.07 Uxee, LEOA 10685
Non-current Current
Asat As al
March 31, 2009 Murch 31, 301K Murch 31, 2019 Alarch 31, 2008
- - 25845 50478
- - 32547 33184
- - 3726 3821
107 40 3248 3246 1070
- - 276 37 216
13707 243.64 1,829 29 1,106 55
- 102 45 99 06 746 99
24447 378.57 2 MER.36 2,741.23
Num-enrrenl Current
As al As at
Mareh 31, 2019 Mareh 31, 201K Hlareh 31, 2004 Mlarech 31, 2608
976 843 - -
9532 10071 2,398 82 3,708 10
105,08 109.14 2,398.82 5, 70400




Conaoliduted Flnunclal Statements
Oned7 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

tatements for the vear ended March 31,

2019

7. Trade recclvables

Trude Recervables
Reccivables from related parlies (Refer notes (i) & (i1) below)
Less: Loss allowance

Cunent
Non-current

Break-up of security detulls

Trade receivables

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good

Trade receivable which have significant increase in eredit risk
Trade receivable Credit Impaired

Less: Loss allowance
Total Trade recelvables

As at

Asat

March 31, 2019

_ Marh3n30m

32488 49141
16 14 7538
(82.57) (62.01)
pELE L] 504.78
25845 50478

Asat

As at

Bl 3100

arch 31, 2004

——March 31, 208

28958 546 18
5144 2061
34102 566.79
(82.57) ©62.01)
258,45 504.78
— A M —

(1 No trade or olher reccivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company cither severally or jomtly with any other person Nor any lrade or olher reccivable arc due from firms or pnvale companies respectively in

which any director is a partner, a director or a member, excepl as disclosed above

(i) For related party receivables, vefer note 26

(iii) Trade receivables are non-inlerest bearing and camry a credit period of upto 90 days

8, Other assets

Capital advances
Unsccured, considered good
Doubiful

Less Provision for doublful advances

Advances other than capitsl advances
Advances to vendors

Unsecured, comiderad good

Doubtful

Less Provision for doublful advances

Others
Balances with government authorilies
Goods and sarvice tax inpul credit
Value Added Tax (VAT) credit receivable
Prepayments
Advances Lo relaled parties* (refer note 26)

Totsal (A+B+C)

Nun-current Current
Asat Asat

March 31, 2014 Margh 31, 101% March 31, 1014 Dlurcls 31, 2004

227 100 . -

008 uug - -

235 108 - -

o W), - .

A 227 1.00 - -
9991 3659 858.91 41667
- . 676 498
9991 3659 865.67 421.65
= = 6.76; (4.98)
H 99.91 36.59 358.91 416.67
- - 37887 4152
- - 0.99 027
3886 1609 6897 5187
- = 106 D8 12544
c LEAL 16.09 §54.91 219.10
141.04 53.68 141361 635.77

*No advances are recoverable liom directors or otlier ofticers of the Company either severally or joinily wilh any other person Not any

is a partner, a director or a member, except as disclosed above

(This space is intentionally Jeft blank)

advance are recoverable from fimss or private companies respeclively in which any director




Consolidated Flnunclal Statements

One97 Communicatlons Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLCL0B9BS

Notex to the Consolldated Financ! talements for (he vear ended March 31. 2019
{Amaunis in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

9(a). Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Balance with banks
=Un cumenl accolints
- Deposits wilh original maturity o1 less than 3 months

Notes
@) There are no repatriation restrictions witl regard to cash and cash equivalents as al Uie end ol the reporting period and prior peniod

® Fixed deposits included in nole 6(U) und 9(b) are marked under lien by banks for guaniniees amounting t INR 107 38 (March 31, 2018 : INR 241 93) issuzd ngainst various contracts ond inctudes INR 1.6 (March 31, 2018

INR 1 6) marked us lien for overdraft facilily taken with HDFC Bank

Asal Asat
March 31,2019 Murch 31,2018
o1 on
30403 32028
2133 1145
325.47 331.84

() Fixed deposits included in note 6(d), 9(a) and 9(b) with & carrying amount of INR 0 30 (March 31,2018 INR 62 11} are subject Lo first charge to secure the Company's Working Capilal facility

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash eqy rise the followin

Cash on hand
Halimee with hanks
- On vurrent accounts
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months
Other bank bulances
Bank overdiafl

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpore of cush flow statement

9(b). Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalents

Deposits with original maturity of more thun 3 months bul less thun 12 months (Refer note 9()(b) & 9()e))

(This space is intentionally lefl blank)

Asui A ar
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
011 01l
30403 32028
2133 1145
32547 331.84
(695.60; 242.12
(695,60 (242.12)
(370.13) 84.72
As st Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
3726 3821
37.26 38.21




Cunsolidated Finunclal Statements
One97 Communicailons Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Cansolidated Financial Statements for ihe vear ended March 31. 2019

Amoanis Croves, wnlin silieraisy

10 (a). Share Caplial Number of Shares = Amount
Authorlsed equity shure capltal
Az at April 01,2017 56,100,000 5610
Increase/ (decrease) during Lhe year - -
As at March 31, 2018 56,100,000 56.10
Increase/ (decrease) during Lhe year dm g i 4801

Iﬂllllﬂén ladar

Ay at March 31, 2019

Authorized preference share capital

_—

48 ul

Asat April 01,2017 2,759,000
Increase/ (decreasc) during Lhe year =
As at March 31,2018 2,759,000

Increase/ (decrease) during Lhe year”
As at March 31,2019

*Converted into aulhorised equily share capital in the ratio 1: 174

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

(4T 500600

48.01
800,

All the equity shares issued (o investors and other shareholders shall rank pari passit and have a par value of Rs 10 per sharc. Each shareholder is ligible for onc vole pa share held onty

Issued, subscribed and fully pald up shures Anat As at
March 3§, 3019 March 31, 2018

57,533,866 (March 31,2018 : 55 325,271} equily shares of INR 10 each fully paid up 57153 5532

Total Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capltal 5753 55.32

a, R il of (he shares ding at the begnning and at the end of the reporting year

Equlty shares Mards 31, 2014 Mareh 31,2019 Welarch §1, 218 March 35, I01R

Number Amonni Mumndar Amount =

Shares vulstanding al the beginning o the year* 54,098,632 5532 46,626,540 14699
Shares issued duriny the year 2,094,650 205 8,127,633 8.09
Shares issued duing the year - ESOP (Refer note 25) 162847 LR {7} 24454 0,24
Shares outstanding at the end of the year* 57,236,129 A7.83 54,994,632 5531
* Net of treaswry shares 277,737 (Murch 31, 2018: 326,639) at nil cost through employee wellare bust (refer nole 2 2(m))

b. Detalls of shurcholders holding more than 5% shares In the Company

Name of sharcholder reh 31, 10! March 31, 2008

Number of Shaves held % holding Number of Shares held % holding

Alipay Singapure E-Commerce Private Limited 17,544,525 30.49% 17,544,525 31.71%

SVF India Holding (Cayman) Limited 11,326,223 19.69% 11,326,223 2047%

Mr Vijay Shekhar S8harma 9,051,624 1573% 9,051,624 1636%

SAIF 11 Mauritius Company Limited 7,491,061 1302% 7,491,061 13 54%
Alibaba com Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited 4428214 71.70% 4,428,214 8.00%

SAIF Purtners Indiu IV Limited 3 1R( 202 53V 051370 552%

¢. Shares reserved for Issuc under optivns
For details of shares reserved for issue under the ciployec stock oplions plan (ESOP) of the Company (refer note 25)

Share upplication money pending allotment smounting (o INR Nil (March 31, 2018 - INR 0.05) represents umount received {fom employecs o exercising the cmpl

oyec slock oplivns

d. Aggregate smber of humus shares butied, shares ol back and share lssued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years b

The Flolding Cepany has issuad 333,035 siares for consideration other tan cash during the year, no such shares issued in Lhe previous five years The Holding anmyrasey

shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date

. Tnatruments endinely equity In nature
Cuseequunt |k st enlae] on Muvenlor 311 2017 bretiwiecis Ui | Bbidig Coaipiatry, Eatthe Toperrset Poviater Liited (1L

whally owed dibaid

itie by aholders of ME swapped their shases i NBE with e L resitling their boganiing 3745 slyaredslders of 11w NHLE i
il s et v tmands o L1 (39%) and Litlle Sl P Lbribedd {15 (X740, s wwell s thronghi i

The nestiniituiing of exasting investaneit i L sl LS, 23 disc

preceillng the repuiriing date:
Jras not ypued bams shares and has not bought back

§, Stttz o 11, Nl Bl Pravute Labted ¢ SBE). i Shindiddess wi I,
y ol T4 e Mol Coanpur: through fimther ecitclumgt
iibligaion b i%ene s shaes ampmtingg fo IR 171,63 1 ather Wrmretient ol 11, heose 63% shoroholdes i LT
ihave, restifted 1 1.5 hayng back 374 stuke ol the Hodiyt Cvastprassy v 18 fiar THRL 77 40 and e Toldsng Coicispaitiy Faither mfuing TR A3 35 m L1 he

o L wad i loacd as "l

b enitinely ity i

st antieed st i Hiolding £ omgrany vecossting g of INI 4411 Higldnrg Coyraity's obligstion to st fharthei sisres nemouiating fo IR 17363 t0 oty
mapige” under Equity in the praviens year.

Ty Ure current year, the Thulibiryg Conipany has allolted shares amounting to Rs 172 59 Croies based on the share swap report This has resulted in an adjustment of Rs, 1.04 Crores in lhe canrying value of Goodwill

(This space is mtentionatly left blank)

~Lrarganl
NGz

*
2 Surupratt ==

S




Consollduted Finunclal Statements
Oned7 Communicatlons Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Nutes to the Consolidated Financal Statements for the vear ended March 31. 2019
Avpotnts i TN Croved, e itherwise

10 (b). Reserve and surplus

1. Reserve and Surplun
Sccurilies premium
Employee slock oplions outstanding account (ESOP Resene)
Reuined camings

Total reserve and surplus (A)

(1) Securdties premhum

Uhpeping Dl inme

Al {ransterred from ESOP Reserve on exercisc of stock oplions
Add: amount received during (he year on issue of shares

Add shares issued for consideration vther thun cash

Less amount utilized towards share issue expenses

Ralance ut the end of the year

{il) Employce stuck options outstanding account (ESOP Reserve)

Asal Asut
Bk 51,2019 el 31, 201K
13,822 29 11,323 89
25008 13427
(AT TT) GHANTY
504460 T,184.14
11,323 89 488327
1869 1240
2,18741 6,435 13
29475 -
|2 45) (LR

13422.29

11,2389

ety bk 134 27 65.95
Achl Shiase Vorsed paymment espeniae (reler ole 25) 154.19 8382
A Sl haseal g e oo jecotl of ol Vauie {refer nole b5)) 282 -
Litss Adjiustment e cancellabing of wyeed ok oo (el nade 25) (1207 =
Vs smaAinl tramslened b secuirithes premitn vn ceenciie O stid ujginn (1B 69) (12 40)
Less: reversal on forfeiture of stock optivns (refer nole 25) 3.44) 3.10;
Balance at the end of the year 15014 134.27
(i) Retained carnings
Opening balance (4,204.02) (2,620 45)
Loss for U year (4.167.98) (1,589 46)
Less: Auspiasthon of Mon-vontrulling inteiest fifix note 39) (36.54) -
Less: Miurcisptsolling interest recogmued un dilution of interest (refer note 39) (0.95)
Add: Adjuiteat on canicellation F wrvested ESOR (refer note 25) 19.07 -
Less: renteisimenmient of prit-empleryes benelil ol 0.79) © 76)
Add: transtir from employee stock uptions outstanding (refer nole 25) 3.44 310
Add : other adjustments - 3355
Balance at the end of the year wl!n (4,204.07)
2. Share application moncy pending alloment
Opening balance 005 0.22
Less: Execise of share vptions V.05) 22
Reueipt of share applicalion money - 0.05
Balance at the end of the year (B) . 0.05
3. Other reserves- FVTOCI
Openisi hislinie 102 102
Mt el il Lk value of equity instruments al FVTOC!I 1.29 =
Balance at the end of the year (C) 131 1.02
4, Other reserves- FCTR
Opening balance ©3n 064
Net change during the year (5.45) (©.95
Balance at the end of the year (D) (5.76) w3
Total other equity 541,15 7,254.90
Nature und purpose of reserves
(1) Securitles premium

Seourities peatiitin is used to record the premium un issuc of shares The reserve is utilised in ueeordunce with the provisions ot e Act
(11) Enrpluyeé atock aptions outstumling accaunt (ESOF Reserve)

Empihiee stock aptions firn sccoll s e 1 sy the grant date fair value of options issied to employees under the One 97 Employee Stock Option Plan
(1) FVTOCT Heserve

Th Mislige Ceseripiin: Ban vt to reegies dange i e i vatues of the certaln lssestments in equity i in other income. These changes are accumuluted within the FVTOCI reserve within

ety e Helding Corpay irapies aemnte frsodn this teieve o relaingil esming Wi redevdnt equily securities are derecognised
() FCTR Reterve

Ueechamyze dhifenmees ardrg o Aramsslation ¢ gxsels, liabililies, sconmse and expundis of the Citaui's foreign sdaud are jecogmmed o dlher i income and lated ly in foreign currency
Uramsalubeio pesetn e The smuunts e lire ferred to Tl sorolidated statiment of frofil Jos stk aligpeesad of the palibed forein subaiidiancs
LL. Provisions
Mub-cnrrent Current
Asat Asal
March 31, 2014 Tlavch 31, 2% March 31, 2014 March 31, 2018
Provislon for empluyee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refar note 27) 1155 989 060 036
Provision for lcave benefits* - - 3907 2886
Other pruvisions
Vhovarimin for bscatie b - - [IKE] 145
1155 9.89 Af.4h Ao
= L =L
*The gt amenad of the provision f [NR 39.07 (Muich 31, 2013 TNE 28 851 is jiicicsited as gurca, stnee e Lirmp decs il have an Ayl raphat to defer sel) Do iy o thicse obligatioiis | Tiweves sl on past

experiuie, Lhe vhmpu dues ol expicel ill emplajeed o avail e full wimownt of acemsd leave ar reaqitire prasinicsl (sl lesve within fhie'nisxd 1 siutha’ The amount ned expiciid W b satlled within ped tivelie mimhis is INR
28 05 (March 31, 2018: INR 21 15)




Cunsolldated Finunclal Statementa

One97 Communleations Limlied

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notex to the Consalldated Financlal Statements for the vear ended March 31,2019
Aimnl winleas otherwise sinfe

12 Finsnedal fibilites

{4} Borrowings

Non-curren( Current

Asat Anht
March 31, 2019 Murdli31, 1% Munch 31, 2009 Teburcds 31, MILE

Secured
Loan repayable on demand- bank overdraft (refer note (i) below) : - 693 60 24212

- - (A 242.12
Unsecured
Deferred payment lisbilities from Noida Authority* (refer nole (ii) below) 3691 - - -
Other hormnwings 056 - - -

3147 - -
Total borrowings 3747 = [ER] 242.12
Less: Current maturities (Refia note 12(c)) 1051 = - -
Total horrowings (as per Balance Sheet) 26.96 - (BN 242.12
Note:

(1) Bank Unienbeall (hoprowing i INR) e repuyubile vol dhinaamd ses cany snlercat al 1401 TR and “spread per atwmin. As oy the reporlisigt dle, I-MULR j B 754 (Musch 11, 2018: I 1586 sinid epeeadd is 1.2%% (Mfurch 31,
2018: 1.45%%) Tk averdrall wre secured by way of fopothesation on the enire curvel padels wf the Holding Comgury, pleslge sin mutizal funihi 67 Hie Holbing Cesuasey juned also baclied Ty srravweable and perianal guarantee of
Mr Vigiy Sheklunr Shotnis, Clesinm siud Musigiog Director.

{li) Dcferyed puypent Mabilitios (o Blowda Avibiscity (in IR is in pespicet of land aequired on fiysanice bease, w repayable i cight equeal half yearly installments, with first instalment starling from Deccmber 31. 2018 and carry
et il (he rale of 11 percent prer wman sempovided hall yearly Tl lessor has 4 1ight to caticel tlse allotment ixi Lhe vent uf defzult. (Heler Note 3)

* New Okhla Industrial Development Authority, Uttar Pradesh

Met debit reconcillation Muarch 31, 209 Mlarehs 31, 2018
Non current Current borrowlngs Non current burrowings Current burrowings
N
Opening net debt . 24212 - 9027
Acquired on business combination - ER LY - -
Cash flows 36 56 45038 - 15185
Interest expense 451 1057 - 1228
Interest paid (.60) (10.57) - (12.28)
Closing net debt 3747 695.60 - 242.12

sincludes TNR 9.95 Cr and INR 0 56 Cr_classified as curent maturities of deferred payment liabililies and other borrowings, respectively, under other financial liabilitics

Asat Asat
Murch 31, 2019 hll_nz 31, 200%
(b) Trade payables
Currend
Trade payablesif 679.04 40595
Tiade payables 1o related parties (Refer note 26) 5761 5673
136.65 462.68
Hirefer note 30 for MSMED disclosure
(i) Total Outstanding dues of micro und small enterprises 1126 088
(ii) Total Outslanding dues other than (i) above 725139 461 80
TI6.65 462.68
(¢) Other financial llabilities
Current
Payable lo merchants 327.18 147 57
Tayable to merehamts- seluted purlies (itefes note 26) 241.40 250
Uhrarrend mmeatiisdbiles of vt poyirssel linblities (invluding interest acerued and mot due) (Reter nole 12(a) 9.95 s
Cuent malwilies of ollier borrowings (Refer note 12(2)) 0.56 -
Payable on purchase of fixed assets 4221 1339
Employee benefils payable 59.44 6372
Other umount received from customens 24.99 -
Other amount received [rom customers- relaled parties (Refer note 26) 0.02 -
Others 9.66 8.62
71541 235.80
Terms nnd vonditions of the ubove tinunciul liabilities:
(i) Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and carry credit period of upto 60 days
Note: All financlal liabllitles are carried at smurtized cost
13, Other current linbilities
Asal Asat
Alureh 31, 2018 March 3i, 2048
Advance trom customers - 29.28
Advance [rom customers- related partics (refer note 26) - 0.02
Other payable 102 0.07
Statutory dues payable:
Tax deducted al sowce payuble 3204 15.22
Service tax payable - 0.23
GST Payable N 11691 5.05
Tax collected at source payable 676 S
Provident fund payable 178 1.63
Other statutory dues 066 204

159.17 B3 30




Consolidated Flnancial Stuteruents
One97 Communlcations Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Nutes fo the Conzulldated Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31. 2109
Crariy, unless otherwis atated

14. Revenue frum operations

Ievenue from contracts wills custusiers
Sole of services (reler notes below)

i) Refer note 2 2d for change in accounting policies consequent to adoption of IND AS 115
i) Refer nute 35 for disagnrgited delails of revenue (rom operations

15. Other income

Fair value gain on investments measured at FVTPL (net)

Gain on sale of current investmenls measured 8t FVTPL (net)

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)

Liabilities / Provision nu longer 1equired written back

Exchange dilterences (net)

Miscellanous Income

Interest income
-on bank deposits
-Interest on Income: Lax refund
~Interest on assels given on finance lease (o related parties (Refer notc 26)
-Interest on Inter corporale loans - measured al amortized cost
-Interest [ncome on unwinding of discount - nicasured al amortized cost
“Trerwait Taasnine i sbebiuniiaies -mressoived i) nsatize] pos

Other non operaling income

16. Employee benefiis expense

Salarics, bonus and incentives

Contribution lo provident and other funds
Share based payment expsizes (reler Note 25)
Leave encashment experise

Gratuity expenses (refer Note 27)

StafT welfare expenses

# Tnchudes gain of INR 0 49 (March 31, 2018 loss of INR 0 14) recorded in forcign curraucy translalion reserve
17. Finance custs

Interest

- on borrowings al amorlised cost

- Intevest on late deposil on statutory dues

=~ un ulhers

18. Depreclation and amortization cxpense

Deprecialion/ amortisation o property, plant and equipment
Amortisalion of intangible assets

(This space is intentionally left blank)

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
323201 3.052.50
325200 3,052.90
104 00 17744

114 91 s
10l 025

59 -

228 s
065 o001
13.56 1oz
496 260
. 159

083 -
4575 5158
5022 348
358 EN.]
347.66 256.71
63791 47780
1532 1156
15457 8324
20.51 2225
BOL 4187
1990 1426
856.22 613.98

s ==

1508 1228
037 005
142 6.55
16.87 1858
7500 6524
2451 13 64
99.51 79.88




Consulidated Financlul Siatements
Oned7 Communleations Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Notes to the Consoltdated Financial Stutements for the vear ended March 31. 2019
LIs1S thatwiso ghatil]

19. Other expenses
Payinenl galewny expenses
Conneclivity and eonlent fees
Customer and merchant onboarding expenses
Conlest expenses
Communication costs
Legal and professional fees
Markeling and business promolion expenses
Advertisement expenses
Subconiract expenses
Corperate Social Responsibility (CSR) cxpenditure (Refer note 43)
Fixed assets wrilten off
Insurance
Logislic, packing & collection cost
Bank Charges
Payment to auditor (Reter details below)
Postage and Courier
Power and luel
Printing and stationery
Trade receivables/Advance wrilten off
Provisiun for doubtful advances and unbilled receivables
Provision for impairment of trades receivables
Repair and maintance - Buildings
Repair and mainiance - Others
Repair und maintance - Plant and machinery
Rales and taxes
Rent (Refer Note 29)
Service lax expense
Travelling and conveyance
Exchange ditterences (net)
Mascellancous expenses

Payment (v Audltors®
As auditors
-Audit fee
~Tax audit lee
-Litnited Review (Including tee paid lo previous auditors in the current year)

Tn other cupaclty
-Othier Services (Cantilicalion lees)
1 of expenses

fee paid to previous audilors in the cunent year)

*Includes payment to auditors of subsidiaries

(This space is intentionally left blank)

Year ended Year ended

Murch 31,2019 March 31, 2018
225318 1,204 13
31799 164 64
4388 7395
1265 1425
3436 2790
93 82 3155
2,832.06 1,893 77
61929 13116
27216 21260
159 228
2230 011
911 179
044 0.29
359 995
284 277
367 236
1003 716
384 341
162 312
1225 182
2056 3591
1426 1433
2031 415
4457 17.56
1063 930
2852 1612
792 2413
4912 3465
- 057
10 1o
5154 4,152,979
1.90 192
0.05 005
0.76 0.60
0.06 012
0.07 008
2.84 2.77




Consoliduted Financlal Stutements
Oned7 Communicalons Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Nistwii to the Con ated Financlal Statements for the vear ended March 31. 2019

Amuuntsin | s, vnbeas othirvdae o
Year ended Year ended

20. Esceptional items March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Gain on sale of gaming business (refer nole 33) 4220 -
Gain on sale of wallet business (reler note 33) - 6299
Provisiun for i i ofi in i (refer noles (b) and (v) below) 4 55) (5959)
Impainment of Goodwill (refer nole 38) 120.17 -

(N1.52] 340

a) T Agurdl 9, 2018, ghaseholder of e Heldmg Comprm gprioned (e traeale o vline gasnsnge baksineis o giing i Dz Uy way of shinp e, uy Gamepind Butatamment Fivale Lottt {fommmrly Kot o4 Adisacn

e Baslertaipresst §

viile: |imabed) Gl Fatetainiment Private Limklod, i« en Tabian joli veplure conysmy swiih 3500 shres eld by Payiny Erertainmr Lisstod (whally ovnicd subideary of the Campank) wiud 453

abiines Behd Ly AGFeels Melia Holdingt Limved The Holiling Coangrauy Juis trsmfierra it e geutibing b wie Juse. |, 2000 Clamcjained Enlestalment Piivate Linuted ne 3 geing conco Vhusis foor n eopideation ol

THIE B3 90 The net lislnlitied of the Dissiness Pyl e TR K29 Ve Girowp hiss resignist o gorint of TR 12.20 Wl bug been dinchmcd an exesplianal i i i Contlidanal il Poolit and Tasss fur (e yesr
ended March 31, 2019 .

b) The Cividujs bsanii it nsissizent of tire business projuctions of gne of s associates i.c. ot Sululins ivate Limited has recognized provision of INR 4 55 for impairmuent in the carrying value of its investment which
has o #lwrm ws exeeptioni item w the Consolibibed 5 Lol Prulit and Loss for the yeat chllial Faich 31, 2019.

o) "The Girisup basis its szl of future business prayecti ol'its des, Sovara Teclinalogies Irivite Limited and Loginext Solulions Private Limited, had recognised provision of INR 59 59 for impaimenl in the
canvying valyie ol its ivesient which has Taeem et as iéougionial e ik v Cunsolidsiod oo Pt el 1,5 fiw the s saded March 31, 2018

d) s Grouy buys i asseasment of fittire bivemes | of tha sulesicluiries e Orbigen Tedlielogict Private Lintad, Linte Injemet Tavale Firneed, Palanvs teelialigy snd Caibe 2 has recognized puevision for

Frmguabtrrent i (e cerrying yalise of s ool o

Bobiach 31, 2019 Thee wipanment boss o Ovlsgen
el besting Waing daedintad e T i {Relir vule 38).

N 6747, TNR 5100, TNR 151 s INR 0,23 renpectively sihich has boen dhinin s evepticesnd Iagan i e Coneslytated 5 ol Profit kel Loies for the yeat enfrl
Techmolngie Posate Linnted and Lilile Tuaternned Private Limitod avos baseil i ie wiuity. value caloulaed based on ey M enjestinns swith s bnismes jilan usad fix

&) Dharng thie prreinis year Cmpuny tanslered ike Wallit biksiness on & gitig éonetn basu, by way of stump salg, to Paytm Payments Bank Limited Tolal sale considaration of INR 65, Lhe fair value of which is INR 63 10

(uiswannreil at 1 TS ok et aisets randirrel i [NR 0.1 weaulling a mtal guin pf INR 6299,

21. Earnings per shares (EPS)

Flasie 15 mants e leflied b lividmg the il fost thie yean bt to equity holike ' thie parent by (he weiglilead wvarisios munber of esquity i wititanling dusmg the year.
Easbustesd TIPS Dmotnts e cabniladiod by divsitinl (o it dteibusuloli o oty holders of the prargail by the weightod stamps midhlsis ul' equity aluites wiitrtanilng i Ui vear plus the weighted avennge number of equity

e bt il b e on esnpversson of all the bilitive potentinl equity dhres into equity shared

The following refiects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS compulations:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Loss atiribuiable to equlty holders:

Cunlinuing operations (4,162 67) (1,568 98)

Discontinued operation (X)) (20 48)
Loas attributuble (o equity holders for buslc carnings (4,167.98) (1,589.46)
Weighted average number of equily shares for basic EPS 56,087,996 50,381 366
Earmings per share for confinuing speratlons
sk apit Dslubed eamings et oigisity shuse (INR pa Share)® (742.17) 31142)
Famnings per share for discontinued operatlons
Basic and Diluted camings per equity share (INR per Share)* 0.95) @ 06)
Earnings per share for and Wl ied op:
Fasie and Dildted edrirings per ciguity share (TN per Share)* 743 12) (315 48)

I view of losses during the current year and previous year, the options which ate anti~dilulive have been ignored in the caleulation of dibuted acnings per shere Accordingly,

camings per share

there is no variation between basic und diluted
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Notes to the C lidated Fi ial St for the year ended March 31,2019
(Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

22, Significant accounting judg t: i and p

The preparation of the Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilitics. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods

Estimates and ion:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estirnation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of ing a material adj t to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next linuncial year, are described below

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets can be recognised for deductible temporary differences (including unused tax losses) only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. As the companies forming part of the Group are yet to generate operating profits, Management has assessed that
as at March 31, 2019 it is not probable that such deferred tax assets can be realised in excess of available taxable temporary differences. Management re-assesscs unrecognized
deferred tax assets at each reporting date and recognizes to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered For

details about deferred tax assets, refer note 28.
Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-tenn nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date

In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated , the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in India. The mortality rate is based on publicly
available mortality tables for the India. The mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demogiaphic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are
based on expected future inflation rates, For further details about gratuity obligations, refer note 27

Fair value ement of fi ial instr

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair
value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model, Price of Recent Investment (PORI) method and Comparable Company Multiples (CCM) method. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. For further
details about Fair value measurement, refer note 31

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit tisks associated with its assets cartied at amortized cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 32 delails how the Group determines wlicther thete has been a significant inerease in credit sk

Impairment reviews
Goodwill is tested for impairment at-least on an anmal basts and when events that occur [ changes in cireur = i that the recoverable pmount of the CGU is less than
its carrying value. In caleulating the value in use, the Gronp is required to make jud; csli and ptions inter-alin concerning the growth in EBITDA, long-term

wrowth rates, discownt tates o refleet the nisks inyolved. Also, judgement is involved in determining the CGU for allocation of the goodwill, For details nbout impairment reviews,
refer note 38

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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23. Group information

A. Entities over which Group exercises cuntrol

The Group's subsidiaries at March 31, 2019 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisling solely of equily shares that are held directly by the Group, and the proportion of ownership

interests held equals the voting rights held by the Group

The consolidated financial statements of the Group includes subsidiarics listed in the table below:

Ownership interest held by the group  |Ownership inferest held by non-controlling|
Country of interest
Name P::iiropfol::lli::is As at As at As at Asat

March 31, 201% March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Tngian subsidiaries
One97 Communications India Limited Tndin 14 100 = x
Payim Financials Services Limited Indin 1% 100% - -
Wasteland Enlertainment Privale Limited (w.e.{ July 6.2017) i 100%| 0% - 30%
Mobiquest Mohile Technologies Private Limited (w.e.f August 10. 2017)# (MQ) S5UL] 55% 45% 45%
Uria Money Private Limiled (w ¢ f Oclober 16, 2017) 62%| S4u 3t A0
Little Internet Private Limited (w.e.L December 6,201 7)4 ('Little) G 6% 3T 37%
Pavitm Entertainment Limited (w.e.f Julv 25. 2017) ({1 100% - -
Paytm Money Limited (w cf. September 20, 2017) 100%) [T - -
Cube26 Software Private Limited (w e f November 1, 2018) L0 - - -
QoRQL Private Limited (w.c.( June 01,2018) 100% = = #
Orbgen Technol Private Limited (w.e.l Junc 01, 2018) 100% * a -
Balance Technology Private Limited (w.c.fJuly 31, 2018) L00% = = -
Foreign Suhsidiaries
One97 Communications Nigeria Limiled Nigerin 100% 10 - -
Qne?7 Communicatings FZ-LLE Dubai 10 108 = -
IneY7 Communications Singapore Private Limited (‘OCSPLY i € L, 100% - -
|One97 USA Tnc UsA 100% 1048 - -
Subsitliarics of Subsidiaries
One97 Communications Rwanda Private Limiled (subsidiary of OCSPL) Rwanda 100% 100%% . -
One97 Communications Tanzania Private Limited (subsidiary of OCSPLY Tanzania 1004 | (M1 - -
Onctt? Communications Bangladesh Private Limited (subsidiary of OCSPL) [Rn!liluﬂn:ll 70% LI AN -
One97 Upanda Limited (subsidiary of OCSPL) |Ugitnda L) 1 (i - *
Cne97 Ivory Coast SA (subsidiary of OCSPL) Ivory Coast pAILS LIH1%! - -
0Due97 Benin SA (subsidiary of OCSPL) Benin 100%| 100 - -
Paytm Labs Inc. (subsidiary of OCSPL) | Canaii 1 T | 10045 = -
Qne97 Communications Malaysia Sdn_Bdn (subsidiary of OCSPL) |Mulapiu 1HI%| 100%, = -
Xceed IT Solution Private Limited (w.e.f Aupust 10, 2017) ( of MQ) Indi 55% S8u5) 45% 45%
Ne: d {w.e lDe ber 6, 2017) (. v of Little) Di 63% 6]‘;-1 37% T

of OCSPL) Nepal 100%| T . 5

B. Entities over which Holding Company exercise significant influence - Associates

The entitics listed below have share capital consisting solely of equity sharcs which are held directly by the group. The proportion of ownership inlerest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held except

otherwise stated.

Country of %% _equity intevest
Name incorpuration/ Asat Asat Accounting me(thod
Place of business March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
India 31% 31%|Equity metliod
Inighis N% | 1% Equity method
18 India - 12%|Equitv method
May 23 201 ¥+ India 49% 49%]|E
|Pavim | Insurance Limited (w.e { February 21, 2018) India 49% - |Equity method
[Payim Life nsurance Limited (w..( February 21 2018) India 49% - [Equity method
C. Joint Venture of Paytm Enterfainment Limited
Country of Wa_equity inferedt
Name incorporation/ As al As at Accounting method
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited (formerly known as Acumen Game Entertainment 55% - |Equity method
b gd*

* The entity is into business of online gaming, It is a strategic investment which utilises group's knowledge and expertisc in online space.

** The entily is a Payments Bank,
D. Entities having significant influence over the Group :-

SAIF 1II Mauritins Company Limited

SAIF Parlners India V Limited

SAIF Pariners India IV Limited

SAIF India V FII Holdings Limited

Alipay Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited
Alibaba com Singapore E-Commierce Private Limiled
Alipay Labs (Singapore) Pte Limited

SVF India Holdings (Cayman) Limitcd

# The enlitics have issued preference shares as well to the Holding Company
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One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,~2019

(Amounts in INR in crores, unless otherwise stated)

B. The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the Group’s investment in joint venture.

Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Current assets
- Cash and cash equivalents 0.82 0.01
- Other assets 60.81 -
Total current assets 61.63 0.01
Total non-current assets 58.68 -
Current liabilities
- Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) (0.44) -
- Other liabilities (11.04) 0.02
Total current liabilities (11.48) 0.02
Non-current liabilities
- Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) - =
- Other liabilities (3.78) -
Total non-current liabilities (3.78) -
Employee share based payment reserve (26.49) -
Net assets 78.56 0.05
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 55% 55%
Carrying amount of the investment 43.22 0.04
Investment recognised for ESOP expenses 2.83 -
Goodwill/ (Capital Reserves) - -
Provision for impairment of investment - -
Total Carrying amount of the investment 46.05 0.04

Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Revenue 8.85 B
Interest Income 0.92 -
Depreciation and amortisation 1.85 -
Interest expense - B
Income tax expense 3.23 B
(Loss) for the year (29.88) -
Other comprehensive income (0.04) -
Total comprehensive income for the year (29.92) (0.02)
Group’s share of profit / (loss) for the year (16.46) (0.01)
Unrecognised share of losses - -
Contingent Liabilities. commitments and guaraniees 0.02 -

The management has concluded that the Group doesn’t control Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited
(formerly known as Acumen Game Entertainment Private Limited) even if it holds more than half of the voting
rights of the investee entity. As per management’s judgement and evaluation, the Group doesn’t have unilateral
ability to direct the relevant activities. The Group and other investor has ability to jointly direct the relevant
activities of the investee entity by virtue of shareholder’s agreement and hence considered to be a joint venture.
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(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

25. Employee Stock Option Plans

During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Holding Company introduced One 97 Employee Stock Option Plan — 1 for
the benefit of employees as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on September 08, 2008 and by the
members in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on October 22, 2008 for a total of 951,355 options. The Holding
Company has appropriated 795,056 options of INR10 each to be granted to eligible employees which were granted on
December 31, 2008. These options were granted to all eligible, permanent employees who were on rolls of Holding
Company as at December 31, 2008 and to be settled in equity. These options have a vesting period of 4 years and were
vested at one year interval in the following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
December 31, 2009 10%
December 31, 2010 20%
December 31, 2011 30%
December 31, 2012 40%

Out of 795,056 options granted. exercise price of 233,602 options granted to employees who joined the Holding
Company till March 31, 2007 is INR10 per option and for 561,454 options granted to employees joining between April
01, 2007 and December 31, 2008 the exercise price is Rs 49 per option.

On September 03, 2010, the Holding Company has appropriated 252,101 options of INR 10 each to be granted to
eligible employees (including grant of 30,000 options to independent non-executive directors) at an exercise price of
INR 180 each. Options granted to independent non-executive directors were approved in Extra-Ordinary General
meeting of members held on November 22, 2010. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in

following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
September 03, 2011 10%
September 03, 2012 20%
September 03, 2013 30%
September 03, 2014 40%

On September 01, 2011, the Holding Company increased the ESOP pool by adding 107,407 options taking total ESOP
pool to 1,058,762 as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on August 02, 2011 and by the members in
the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on August 19, 201 1.

On January 30, 2012, the Holding Company has appropriated 4,330 options of INR 10 each to be granted to one eligible
employee at an exercise price of INR 232 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in
following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
January 30, 2012 10%
January 30, 2013 20%
January 30, 2014 30%
January 30, 2015 40%
- \.\f]l
sya
(O
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

On December 29, 2012, the Holding Company has appropriated 196,163 options of INR 10 each to be granted to
eligible employee at an exercise price of INR 180 each as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on
November 29, 2012 and by the members in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on December 29, 2012.

These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
December 29, 2012 10%
December 29, 2013 20%
December 29, 2014 30%
December 29, 2015 40%

On August 01, 2013, the Holding Company has appropriated 166,668 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees at an exercise price of INR 180 each as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on January
31, 2014. 30% of these options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
August 1,2014 10%
August 1, 2015 20%
August 1, 2016 30%
August 1, 2017 40%

Remaining 70% of the options will be vested upon achievement of certain performance targets.

On March 31, 2014, the Holding Company increased the ESOP pool by adding 260,000 options taking total ESOP pool
to 1,318,762 as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on January 31, 2014 and by the members in the
Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on August 31, 2014.

On April 01, 2014 the Holding Company has appropriated 313,446 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees at an exercise price of INR 90 each as ratified by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on June 10,
2015.

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
April 1, 2015 10%
April 1,2016 20%
April 1,2017 30%
April 1,2018 40%

On April 01, 2015, the Holding Company has appropriated 491,722 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in
following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
April 1,2016 10%
April 1,2017 20%
April 1,2018 30%
April 1,2019 40%
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(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

On September 30, 2015, the Holding Company increased the ESOP pool by adding 604,858 options taking total ESOP
pool to 1,923,620 as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on July 24, 2015 and by the members in the
Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2015.

On October 01, 2015 the Holding Company has appropriated 104,864 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years al one year interval in
following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
Qctober 1,2016 10%
October 1,2017 20%
October 1,2018 30%
October 1,2019 40%

On April 01, 2016 the Holding Company has appropriated 395,325 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible

employees at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have

following proportion:

a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
April 1,2017 10%
April 1,2018 20%
April 1,2019 30%
April 1,2020 40%

On October 01, 2016 the Holding Company has appropriated 97,031 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in
following proportion: .

On April 01, 2017 the Holding Comp

following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
October 1,2017 10%
October 1,2018 20%
October 1,2019 30%
October 1,2020 40%

any has appropriated 361,128 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4

years at one year interval in

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
April 1,2018 10%
April 1,2019 20%
April 1,2020 30%
April 1,2021 40%
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On October 01, 2017 the Holding Company has appropriated 29,044 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in

following proportion:

On April 01, 2018 the Holding Company ha
employees at an exercise price of INR 90 eac

following proportion:

On July 01, 2018 th

following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
October 1,2018 10%
October 1,2019 20%
October 1,2020 30%
October 1,2021 40%

s appropriated 243,899 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
h. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
April 1.2019 10%
April 1,2020 20%
April 1,2021 30%
April 1,2022 40%

e Holding Company has appropriated 45,649 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible

employees at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in

Date of vesting % of total options vesting B
July 1,2019 10%
July 1,2020 20%
July 1,2021 30%
July 1,2022 40%

Certain options will be vested upon achievement of operational performance targets as determined by the Board of
Directors.

On October 01, 2018 the Holding Company has appropriated 34,409 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in

following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
October 1,2019 10%
October 1,2020 20%
October 1,2021 30%
October 1,2022 40%
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On January 01, 2019 the Holding Company has appropriated 47,958 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in
following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
January 1,2020 10%
January 1,2021 20%
January 1,2022 30%

| January 1,2023 40%

Certain options will be vested upon achievement of operational performance targets as determined by the Board of
Directors.

All the above options issued by the Holding Company are Equity Settled and the vested employee stock options expire
in 5 years from the date of vesting.

On March 22, 2019, the Holding Company's shareholders in an extra ordinary general meeting authorized the Chief
Executive Office/Managing Director of the Holding Company to approve the cancellation/modification of unvested
employee stock options with the prior consent of the employees. Pursuant to this, the Holding Company has cancelled
95.561 outstanding unvested employee stock options, with prior consent of the employees. This cancellation has resulted
into an accelerated share based payment expense of INR 6.16 in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

The total options outstanding as at March 31, 2019 are 960,743 (March 31, 2018: 988,521) out of which 15,141 (March
31, 2018: 19,785) options have an exercise price of INR 10 each, 2,868 (March 31, 2018: 5,016) options have an
exercise price of INR 49 each, 127,544 (March 31, 2018: 137,813) options have an exercise price of INR 180 each and
815,190 (March 31, 2018: 825,907) options have an exercise price of INR 90 each.

Grant Date Number of Options | Number of Options | Exercise
outstanding outstanding Price
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
December 31, 2008 15,141 19,785 10
December 31, 2008 2,868 5,016 49
September 03, 2010 250 250 180
December 29, 2012 127,294 137,563 180
April 01, 2014 9,420 70,863 90
April 01, 2015 38,148 153,457 90
October 01, 2015 24,362 33,238 90
April 01, 2016 123,260 165,182 90
October 01, 2016 66,473 85,932 90
April 01, 2017 203,226 293,191 90
October 01, 2017 20,552 24,044 90
April 01, 2018 212,596 - 90
July 01, 2018 45,649 - 90
October 01, 2018 23,546 - 90
January 01,2019 47,958 - 90
960,743 988,521
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CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Movements during the year
The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share

options during the year:

Number of JREizhics Number of Weighited
. Average ) Average
: opions Exercise Price Opoms Exercise Price
Particulars
INR INR
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 988,521 100.74 1,139,075 96.31
Options granted during the year 371,915 90.00 390,172 90.00
Options exercised during the year** (157,960) 93.25 (226,034) 77.18
Options forfeited during the year (146,172) 89.66 (314,692) 88.37
Options cancelled during the year (95,561) 90.00 - -
Options expired during the year - - - -
Options outstanding at the end of the year 960,743 100.56 988,521 100.74
Vested options outstanding at the end of the
year (exercisable) 362,016 118.04 385,779 117.51

** The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options exercised during the year ended March 31, 2019
was INR 6,513.33 per share (March 31, 2018: INR 4,959.04 per share).

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 2019 was 5.71 years
(March 31, 2018: 5.87 years).

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was INR 6,181.35 per option (March 31, 2018 was
INR 4,894.71 per option).

The weighted average fair value of options granted under the One 97 ESOP Scheme during the year ended on March 31,
2019 (computed using Black-Scholes model) was INR 6,015.60 per option for grant date April 1, 2018, INR 6,017.90
per option for grant date July 1, 2018, INR 6,762.90 per option for grant date October 1, 2018 and INR 6,762.60 per
option for grant date January 1, 2019. The estimation of fair value on date of grant was made using the Black-Scholes
model with the following assumptions:

Grant Date:- April 1, 2018

Share price INR 6,076 per share
Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4

Risk free interest rate 7.20-7.40%
Annualized Volatility 59.00-64.00%

Grant Date:- July 1, 2018

Share price INR 6,076 per share
Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4

Risk free interest rate 7.82-8.10%

Annualized Volatility 59.00-62.00%
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_(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Grant Date:- October 1,2018

Share price INR 6,821 per shate
Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4

Risk free interest rate 7.94-8.03%
Annualized Volatility 58.00-74.00%

Grant Date:- January 1, 2019

Share price INR 6,823 per share
Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4

Risk free interest rate 7.10-7.40%
Annualized Volatility 51.00-52.00%

The weighted average fair value of options granted under the One 97 ESOP Scheme during the year ended on March 31,
2018 (computed using Black-Scholes model) was INR 4,894.71 per option for grant date April 1, 2017 and October 1,
2017. The estimation of fair value on date of grant was made using the Black-Scholes model with the following

assumptions:

Grant Date:- April 1, 2017

Share price INR 4,959.04 per share
Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each
Dividend yield % 0%

Expected life (years) 4

Risk free interest rate 6.63%
Annualized Volatility 56.46%

Grant Date:- October 1, 2017

Share price INR 4,959.04 per share
Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4

Risk free interest rate 6.48%

Annualized Volatility 54.87%
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(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Notes:

|. Weighted average share price is based on the value of Equity Shares arrived at by using Backsolve method and
share prices based on secondary transactions, where available.

2. Dividend yield is considered zero, as no dividend payout is expected in the foreseeable future.

3. Risk free return is based on the yield to maturity of Indian treasury securities, with a maturity corresponding to the
expected term of ESOP.

4. Annualized volatility is based on the median weekly volatility of selected comparable companies for a time period
commensurate with the expected term.

Little Internet Private Limited 2017 Plan (Little Plan)

Litile Internet Private Limited (‘Little’) has introduced Employee Stock Option Scheme 2017 (“ESOS 20177) with
effect from 21 December 2017 to enable the employees of Little Internet Private Limited to participate in the future
growth and success of Little Internet Private Limited. ESOS 2017 is operated at the discretion of the Board of Little.

The options which confer a right but not an obligation on the employee to apply for equity shares of Little Internet
Private Limited once the terms and conditions set forth in the Employee Stock Option Scheme 2017 (“ESOS 2017
and the option agreement have been met. Vesting of options would be subject to continued employment with Little
Internet Private Limited and meeting the requisite performance parameters. The exercise price of the options are Nil.
The other relevant terms of the grant are as below:-

Vesting Period 1 to 4 years
Exercise Period 10 years (including the vesting petiod)

Weighted average exercise price (WAEP) for Management stock option plan (MSOP) and Employee stock option plan
(ESOP) is INR Nil.

The Details of activity under the plans are summarized below:

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
ESOP MSOP ESOP MSOP

Outstanding at the
beginning - 1,970,619 - -
Options granted 71,050 B - 1,970,619
Options Exercised - - - -
Options forfeited 36,753 - - -
Outstanding at the end of
the year 34,297 1,970,619 - 1,970,619
Options vested &
exercisable 3,430 1,139,424 = -

The weighted average fair value of options granted in 2018 and 2019 was INR 163 per option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
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(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

The weighted average remaining contractual life for these options is given below:-

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
MSOP 8.73 9.73
ESOP 9.01 -

Little Internet Private Limited has adopted the fair value method using Black-scholes Model in respect of stock options
granted. The value of underlying shares has been determined by an independent valuer.
The valuation of the share options granted is based on the following assumptions:

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Risk-free interest rate (%

p.a.) 7.50 7.50
Expected life of options

(years) 441 4.41
Expected volatility (%) 42.41 42.41
Dividend yield (%) ) N

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Expepse arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions of 109.26 7797
Holding Company
Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions

- 40.58 6.55
(Little Plan)
Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions 478 )

(Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited)

Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions 0.07
(Urja Money Private Limited) ’

Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions* 154.19 83.82

*Including expenses of discontinued operations for the year ended March 31, 2019: INR 0.11 (March 31, 2018: INR
0.44)
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26. Related party transactions
A. Entities over which Group exercise significant influence

Loginext Solutions Private Limited

Socomo Technologies Private Limited

Little Internet Singapore Pte Limited (till November 30, 2017)
QoRQL Private Limited (till May 31,2018 )

Indi Yuva Limited (till November 30,2017)

Paytm Payments Bank Limited (w.c.f May 23, 2017)

Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited (till August 09, 2017)
Little Internet Private Limited (till December 05,2017)

Paytm General Insurance Limited (w e f February 21,2018)

Paytm Life Insurance Limited (w.e.f February 21,2018)

B. Key Management Personnel

Vijay Shekhar Sharma Chairman and Managing Director
Madhur Deora Chief Financial Officer (from June 10,2017)
Amit Sinha Chief Financial Officer (from April 01,2017 to June 10, 2017)

C. Joint Venture of Paytm Entertainment Limited
Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited (formerly known as Acumen Game Entertainment Private Limited)
D. Entities having significant influence over the Group

SAIF 11 Mauritius Company Limited

SAIF Partners India V Limited

SAIF Partners India IV Limited

SAIF India V FII Holdings Limited

Alipay Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited
Alibaba.com Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited
Alipay Labs (Singapore) Pte Limited

SVF India Holdings (Cayman) Limited

E. Relatives of Individuals owning interest in the voting power of the Group that gives the control or significant influence

Ajay Shekhar Sharma Brother of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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(Amuunts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

Details of transactions with related parties during the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018:-

Particulars March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Rendering of services to related parties
Paytm Pay ts Bank Limited 92775 49086
Socomo Technologics Private Limited 0.02 0.15
Gamepind Enterlai | Private Limited 1.41 -
929.18 49101
cimbursement of expenses incurred on if of related ies
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 146.59 117.75
G prod Enter Private Limited 226 -
148.85 117.75
Assels given on Finance Lease Lo related parties
Paytm Payments Bank Limited - 23.24
- 23.24
Repayment for agsets given on finance lease to related partics
Paytm Payments Bank Limited - 21.66
- 21.66
Interest income carned from reluted partics
Paytm Py Bank Limited 3.86 578
3.86 5.78
Gain on sale of business
Gumepind Entertai Private Limited 4220 -
Paytm Payments Bank Limited - 62.99
42,20 62,99
rvices received from reluted porti
~Pavinent galeway expens
Puytm Payments Bank Limited 91830 369.08
918.30 369.08
-General expenscs
Payim Poyments Bank Limited 7.11 3.98
Alipay Labs (Singapore) Pte Limited 51.03 24.11
58.14 28,09
Issue of equity shures
SV India Holdings (Cayman) Limited - 8.09
SAIF Partuers India TV Limited 013 -
0.13 809
Security premium receive
SVF India Holdings (Cayman) Limited - 6,433.81
SAIF Partners Indiz IV Limited 9994 =
99,94 6,433.81
Stock Optivns grunted to employees of Group Compunies
Gumepind Entertainment Private Limited 2.82 -
2.82 P
Gain on sale of investment in associates
Little Internet Singapore Pte. Limited - 7.27
Indi Yuva Limited - 3.22
- 10.49
intes
Pte. Limited - 3329
Indi Yuva Limited - 2.87
- 36.16
Investment in joint venture
Cramepind Enterta Private Limited 59.67 0.01
59.67 0.01
Investment in associates
Paytm Payments Bank Limited - 110.90
Paytin General | ¢ Limited 0.05 -
Paytm Life Insurance Limited 0.05 -
0.10 110.90




One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200D1.2000PLC108985
Notes to the C
(Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

sal St

lidated Fi ts for the year ended March 31,2019

Details of balances outstanding with related parties as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018:-
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Other finuneinl assets (Other receivable for expenditure incurred
(£ | Entertainment Private Limited 1.22 -
Alibaba.com Singapore E-C e Privinte Linnted 0.08 0.08
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 16.71 6.97
15.01 T.05
Amount receiv, for sale of business (Other financial assets
Paytm Pay ts Bank Limited 40.98 5429
40.98 54.29
Other current agset
Pavim Pay Bank Limited 106.08 125 44
10608 125,44
mount receivible from payment galeway
Payim Pay Bank Limited 511.03 115.57
511.03 115.57
Trade receivables
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 16.14 75.38
16.14 75.38
Other financial asseis
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 0.13 495
0.13 4.95
Trade bles (ine accrued expen
Alipny Labs (Singapore) Pte Limited 40,88 11.47
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 16.73 45326
57.61 56.73
Other financial liability- Payable to merchants
Socomo Technologics Private Limited 0.02 0.02
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 241.29 2.48
Gamepind Entert | Private Limitid 0.09 -
241.40 2.50
Bulunces with banls on curr ceount
Payim Pa ts Bank Limited 2 116
" 1.16
Other amount received from customers (Other financial Yabilities)
Socomo Technolagies Private Limited 0,02 -
0.02 =
A ce from customers (Other curvent labilitie
Sucoto Technologies Private Limited - 0.02
- 0.02
Investments
For details of v in joint venture and associates refer noles 5(n) and S(b)
*below rounding off norms adopted by the Group
Remuneration to KMP & Relatives of Individuals owning interest in the voting power of the Group that gives the control or significant influence
Particulurs March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Salaries, bonus and incentives 6.08 5.83
ESOP Exy 937 12,40
Total comp tion paid 15.45 18.23 |

No remuneration is paid to any other director of the Holding Company

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

(i) The services provided and received from reluted parties are made on terms gquivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transackicis.

Outstanding balanices at the period end are unscenred and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have beeit no guarantees

or received for any related party receivables or payables,

providei

(ii) The remuneration o the key manage ial personnel (‘KMP”) does not include fhe provisions made for gratuity, leave benefits as they are

determined on an actuariil basis for the Group as a whole.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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OneY7 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLCHiKIHS
Notes Lo the C lidated Financial for the year ended Mavrch 31, 2019

(Amuunts in INR fin rnrs, unbess afherwise stated)

24, Tneome Tax

The nuijor components of income (ax expense for e vears ended March 31 2019 und M

arch 31, 2018 are:

Congolillaed Stutement of Profil amd Lot
rch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
0.56 2.79
(1o
[ hempoii (7.4 (V.25
: separted (n (e Concalidated Stulement of ProfiL and Lasi (6.491 1.53)

Weconcilinfion of tay cxpéase sl e accannting profit bl by Tndia’s dumestic t

Accounting profil before ingome tas incloding diseontinsed operil s [IRCEE TR
Al Tiidta's stitutary irconse Ly pile of 31.20% (31 March 2018 30.90%4) (L317.79) (495.27)
Adiuntinents i reapect of curtonl income ik af previons years - (1.0D)]
+ expensg during the year for Oned7 Empliyee Welfare Trust 012 | .
Sluire of results of tisociates [ 9.58
Tl i Forcign jurisdiction 0.06 1.73
Effect of tax free rates i finekgn jursdiction (1.50 (037}
Othier poi-deductible exponmcy (2.53) 3102
Lorses onwhicly deferred juxes pet recopnived* 128279 45592
Uihsorbied depreciavion on which deferred tixes vol Tecomisol* 26.76 16.93
Otlier temgorany differences on which deferred ties wilsed (4.99 -
Other wenporary dillerences on wliich deforrad b ol wecopnised® 1515 11,00
(6.49)] 1.53
Tncoing (s expeise reported i the Cpnsplidated Stitlcment of Profit and Loss {48 153

Deferrod 14 relates v the fallowing:

Cunsolidated Balance Sheel

Consolidated statement of profit and luss

March 31, 2019 March 31, Illlﬂl Mareh 31, 2019

Deterred tax lihilitics
Accelerated deprecinthon for 1% prrposcs T 120.45)] (4ED) =
i o imeesinsents (3546 (3.87) - -
4505 10,00 - -
0.42 0.42 - -
itifl s 0.08 0.08 -
Lossee available for offscting agamst fture tsable mcome 0.10 0.10 -
(18.47) (22.67)
0.79 0.80 -
225 = =
3.04 [

[Ierred ftan cxponse/{inenimne)

Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilitics (net)

Net deferred

tax liahilitics

Net deferreid tax assets

March 31, 2019

March 31. 2018

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

cistig builance ds of 1 April (22.67) - 080
T ingome/{es dhurtig e penod ecoguised m profl of less 481 025 234
Trnpned of Forelgn currency (eanskillon reseived 0.05
Delerred taxes mequired in busingss combintions 0.65) (22.77)!

osing halonee ag at 31 Mareh (18.46) 12267y 3.04

* Delerred lax has been recognised to Lhe extent of available deferred tax liabilities since it is not probable that taxable profits will be available against which the unutilised (ax losses and

temporary differences can be ulilised, as asscssed al Marcli 31,2019,

Deductiite lemporary dilfcrences for which no deferred tay st s recopmised fn the Congalidated Balance Sheet:
Expiry Date Asof March JAl! ;[119 Tax
4 '
Purtivulars (Year en;lllr;g March March 31,2019 mpact
b, i@ 31.20%
Tax Lowses 2023 33161 103 46
2024 1.532.7% 478 22
2025 771.54 240.72
2026 1475406 460.34
2027 4,111 50 1.282.79
8.222.86 2,565.53
|Unabizoibed deprecifion o expiry perind 283 98 8775
Oz fenporary diferences And0l 12481
Total 8,910.85 2.774.12
Didiretihle téapurary diferences for which wo duferned e axeet is vecognbied b thie Consnlistated Babuwe
Expiry Date Asof March :ls ‘;{nu T-.;‘
H , ’
Particulirs (Year cn;ilm)g March March 31,2018 impact
P
Tax Loases 2023 331.01 102 47
2024 1,53275 473 62
25 77154 23840
2026 1.475.46 45592
Tl by birsses 4,111.36 1,270.41
Unatrubid dopreeiition Mo expiry period 163.00 50.37
Other temporary differcrices 207 56 K2 08
Total 4.541.92 1,403.46
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29, Commitments and contingencies

ii)

iii)

a. Leases
Operating lease: Group as Lessee
The Group has taken certain office space on operating lease. Rental expense towards leases charged to Consolidated Statement of

Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019 amount to INR 28.52 (March 31, 2018 INR 16.12).

The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are rencgotiated.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Not later than one year 21.84 10.41
Later than one year but not later than five years 24.11 18.71
Later than five years 5.99 1.32
Total 51.94 30.44

b. Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts towards property, plant & equipment remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided
for is INR 40.27 (Net of capital advance of INR 1.97) [March 31 2018: INR 3.59 (Net of capital advances of INR 0.29)].

¢. Contingent liabilities

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as 6.44 2.70
debts
Total 6.44 2.70

The Group has contingent Liability towards Bank Guarantees amounting to INR 263.32 (March 3 1, 2018 INR 241.93).

The Group is in the process of evaluating the impact of the recent Supreme Court Judgment in case of "Vivekananda Vidyamandir
And Others Vs The Regional Provident Fund Comimissioner (11) West Bengal" and the related circular (Circular No. C-
1/1(33)2019/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated March 20, 2019 issued by the Employees™ Provident Fund Organisation in
relation to non-exclusion of certain allowances from the definition of "basic wages" of the relevant employees for the purposes of
determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellancous Provisions Act, 1952, There
are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court judgement. In the assessment of the management, the aforesaid

matter is not likely to have a significant impact and accordingly, No provision has been made in these Consolidated Financial
Qtatemente

Notes:
1) It is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any.

2) The Group does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.
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30. Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

March 312019  March 31 2018

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid
to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

- Principal amount due under MSMED Act 10.29 0.74
- Interest due on above 0.17 0.14
10.46 0.88

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year - -
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act 2006. - =
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year, for payment already made 0.80 -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
earlier years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance
as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act
2006 - s
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED
Act, beyond the appointed day during the year 38.92 -

Total Oustanding dues of micro and small enterprises is INR 11.26 ( March 31, 2018: INR 0.88)

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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31. Fair value
Fair value hlerarchy
e Bl Labil provsdes thie Bavalug mesuranes Tutrarshy of e Cumpany' st and labilities
Twel 1= (mted prsss fomadposted) m acteve minbiets for ideisal sasety or Dabulities
vl 2 = Buiput e e quaoted pries inchuded weithin Levid | tht i fhsond il fir thie assetor lisulity, cither directly (e as prices) or indirectly (i ¢ derived from prices)
Lotviel 3 = Trigainta for s ) cieds o Hugbilitins st e ot el oo ol el markot dabit (niksevalbe imputs).

The following table presents fair value hicrarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2019

Falr value measurcment at end of the

As of March 31, 2019 repurling year using
Lasel | Lenel 2 Level 3
Annpis
Investments af fair value through OCI
Tivestment in cquity shares 976 976
Investments al fair value through Profit and loss
inC Isarily C ible Prelerence 89.58 = . 8958
Investmenits in Equity Shares 574 - - 5
fipvestmmenl i Mt Foesdy 239882 239882
The following Luble presents tair value hievarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recuting basis as of March 31, 2018
As of March 34, 2018 Fair value measurement at end of the
reporting year using
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assely
Investments al fair value through OCT
Investments in Equity Shares 843 843
Investments at fair value tlrough Profit and Joss
1 in C Isorily C ible Prelk 5558 5558
Tnvestments in Equity Shares 4513 . - 4513
Investment in Mutual Funds 3,708 10 3,708 10

The sistaginnt Tus asseiied that Jiir vabipe of all pther financi] wasets amd Hobilities including cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans, other linancial assets, invesiments,

(radde paryabies, borrirvins s elhier inisicaal liabiliies, uppunamate Aheir carrving amounts
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32. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group continues to focus on a system-based approach to business risk management. The Group’s financial risk
management process seeks to enable the early identification, evaluation and effective management of key risks facing
the business. Backed by strong internal control systems, the current Risk Management Framework rests on policies and
procedures issued by appropriate authorities; process of regular internal reviews/audits to set appropriate risk limits and
controls: monitoring of such risks and compliance confirmation for the same.

a. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and price risk. The
Group has in place appropriate risk management policies to limit the impact of these risks on its financial performance.
The Group ensures optimization of cash through fund planning and robust cash management practices.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s borrowings with
floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, being a 0.5% increase
or decrease in interest rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax due to the impact on
floating rate borrowings.

As at March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

Effect on loss before tax:

[-Base*- decrease by 50 bps (3.48) (1.21)
[-Base*- increase by 50 bps 3.48 1.21
*]CICI Bank Base

Other financial assets and liabilities of the Group are either non-interest bearing or fixed interest bearing instruments,
the Group’s net exposure to interest risk on such instruments is negligible.

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a reasonably possible change in the under-lying interest rate of the Group’s
borrowings while assuming all other variables to be constant.

Based on the movements in the interest rates historically and the prevailing market conditions as at the reporting date,
the Group’s management has concluded that the above mentioned rates used for sensitivity are reasonable benchmarks.
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(ii) Price risk

The Group invests its surplus funds in various debt instruments and debt mutual funds. These comprise of primarily
liquid schemes of mutual funds (liquid investments), debentures and fixed deposits. All mutual fund investments are in
liquid scheme only.

Mutual fund investments are susceptible to market price risk, mainly arising from changes in the interest rates or market
yields which may impact the return and value of such investments.
Set out below is the impact of a 0.25% movement in the NAV of mutual funds on the Group’s loss before tax:

Change in NAV Effect on loss before tax
March 31,2019 0.25% (6.24)
-0.25% 6.24
March 31, 2018 0.25% (9.27)
-0.25% 9.27

The Group’s is also exposed to equity/ preference shares price risk arises from investments held by the Group and
classified in the balance sheet either as fair value through OCI or at fair value through profit or loss (refer note 6(b)). To
manage its price risk arising from investments in equity/preference shares, the Group diversifies its portfolio.
Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the Group.

(iii) Foreign currency risk

The Indian Rupee is the Group’s most significant currency. As a consequence, the Group’s results are presented in
Indian Rupee and exposures are managed against Indian Rupee accordingly. Foreign currency risk is the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s operating activities (when
revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign cutrency).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in United States Dollar (USD) are as
follows:

As at March 31,2019 As at March 31, 2018
Financial assets Financial liabilities Financial assets Financial liabilities
Amount in USD Crores 0.43 0.21 0.10 0.23

Total 0.43 0.21 0.10 0.23
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The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity of profit or loss to a reasonably possible change in USD and exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is
not material.

Change in USD rate Effect on loss before tax
March 31, 2019 10% strengthening of USD against INR (1.71)
10% weakening of USD against INR 1.40
March 31,2018 10% strengthening of USD against INR 0.88
10% weakening of USD against INR (0.72)

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a reasonably possible change in the under-lying foreign currency against the
functional currency while assuming all other variables to be constant.

Based on the movements in the foreign exchange rates historically and the prevailing market conditions as at the
reporting date, the Group’s management has concluded that the above mentioned rates used for sensitivity are
reasonable benchmarks.

b. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obli gations under a financial instrument or contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

All of the Group investments and loans at amortised cost are considered to have low credit risk, and the loss allowance
recognised during the period was therefore limited to 12 months expected losses. Management considers instruments to
be low credit risk when they have a low risk of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term.

(i) Trade receivables

The Group is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-payment by customers. Customer credit risk is managed subject
to the Group’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. An impairment

analysis is performed at each reporting date by grouping the receivables in homogeneous group. The calculation is based
on lifetime expected credit losses.

Expected credit loss for trade receivable under simplified approach- year ended March 31, 2019

Ageing 0-1 1-2 2-3 >3 Specific Total
Gross  carrying  amount-  trade 255.42 17.66 8.04 8.46 51.44 341.02
receivables

Expected loss rate (%) 5.66 19.20 74.38 86.41 100

Expected credit losses (Loss allowance 14.45 3.39 5.98 7.31 51.44 82.57
provision)- trade receivables

Carrying amount of trade receivables 240.97 14.27 2.06 1.15 - 258.45
(net of impairment)
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Reconciliation of loss allowance Loss allowance measured at 12
month expected loss

Loss allowance as on April 1, 2017 24.17

Creation during the year 37.84

Loss allowance as on March 31, 2018 62.01

Creation during the year 20.56

Loss Allowance as on March 31, 2019 82.57

In previous year, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

Ageing of past due but not impaired receivables is as follows:

As at March 31,2018
up to 90 days 186.25
91 to 180 days 56.21
181 to 270 days 5.91
271 to 365 days 12.66
Total 261.03

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The
Group does not hold collateral as security.

(ii) Other financial assets

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group’s treasury department in
accordance with the Group’s policy. Investment of surplus funds is made only with banks of high repute.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2019 and March 31,
2018 is the carrying amounts as illustrated in Note 6.

Reconciliation of loss allowance Loss allowance measured at
12 month expected loss

Loss allowance as on April 1, 2017 10.48
Creation during the year -

Loss allowance as on March 31, 2018 10.48
Creation during the year 10.47

Loss Allowance as on March 31, 2019 20.95
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c. Liquidity Risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts, working capital loans etc. Group monitor their risk of shortage of funds using cash flow forecasting models.
These models consider the maturity of their financial investments, committed funding and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to provide financial resources to meet its business objectives in a timely, cost effective and
reliable manner. A balance between continuity of funding and flexibility is maintained through the use of bank
borrowings. The Group also monitors compliance with its debt covenants. The maturity profile of the Group’s financial
liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments is given in the table below:

Particulars 0-180 days | 181-365 days More than 1 year | Total

As at March 31, 2019

Borrowings 695.60 B 26.96 722.56
Trade payables 736.65 - = 736.65
Other financial liabilities 710.77 4.62 . 715.39
Total 2,143.02 4.62 26.96 2,174.60
As at March 31, 2018

Borrowings 242.12 - = 242.12
Trade payables 462.68 - 5 462.68
Other financial liabilities 235.80 - . 235.80
Total 940.60 - = 940.60

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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33. Discontinued Operations

(a) On April 9, 2018, shareholders of the Holding Company approved the transfer of online gaming business forming
part of Cloud segment on a going concern basis by way of slump sale, to Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited
(formerly known as Acumen Game Entertainment Private Limited). Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited, is an
Indian Joint Venture company with 55% shares held by Paytm Entertainment Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of the
Holding Company) and 45% shares held by AGTech Media Holdings Limited. The Holding Company has transferred its
online gaming business on June 1, 2018 to Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited on a going concern basis for a cash
consideration of INR 33.91. The net liabilities of the business transferred were INR 8.29. The Group has recognised a

gain of INR 42.20 which has been disclosed as exceptional gain in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

The results of Gaming business for the period are presented below:

For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Revenue
1.53 5.19
Expenses (Including INR 0.11 (March 31, 2018: 0.44) for share
based payment expenses) 6.84 20.42
Profit/ (Loss) for the period before tax from discontinued
operations (5.31) (15.23)
Income Tax expense - -
Profit/ (Loss) for the period after tax from discontinued
operations (5.31) (15.23)
The net cash flows incurred by Gaming business are as follows:-
For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Operating (5.31) (15.23)
Investing 33.91 -
Financing - -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) 28.60 (15.23)
Details of the gaming business sold:-
For the Year ended  For the Year ended
Consideration Received March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Cash 33.91 -
Carrying amount of the net liability sold 8.29 -
Gain on sale before income tax 42.20 -
Income tax expense on gain - -
Gain on sale after income tax* 42.20 -

* The entive amount is attributable to Owners of the parent company.
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The carrying amount of assets and liabilities as at the date of sale (June 01, 2018) were as follows:-

For the Year ended
March 31,2019
Property, plant and equipment 0.09
Total assets 0.09
Trade Payable 7.07
Other current liabilities 1.31
Total liabilities 8.38
Net assets (8.29)

(b) During previous year, the Holding Company had discontinued its Wallet business. Revenue, other income, cost, and
loss of the Wallet business upto the date of transfer of business i.e. May 23, 2017 are INR 27.57, INR 2.82, INR 35.64
and INR 5.25, respectively. The Wallet business was included in the ‘Payments’ segment in Group's operating segments
until May 23, 2017, being the date on which transfer of Wallet business was consummated. Being a discontinued
operation, this business is no longer presented within the Payments segment. The Group had recognised a gain of INR
62.99 which has been shown as exceptional gain in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended
March 31, 2018.

34, Capital Management

The Group’s objectives while managing cap ital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and fo provide
adequate returns for its shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. The key objective of the Group’s capital
management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structure with the focus on total equity, uphold investor;
creditor and customer confidence, and ensure future development of its business activities. The Group manages its
capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions or its business requirements.

The Group's capital management objective is to remain a debt-free Group till the time it achieves break-even. In order Lo
meet this objective, Group meets anticipated funding requirements for developing new businesses, expanding its
geographical base, entering in to strategic mergers and acquisitions and other strategic investments, by issuance of
equity capital together with cash generated from Group’s operating and investing activities. The Group utilizes certain
short term overdraft and working capital facilities to meet anticipated interim working capital requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31,
2019 and March 31, 2018.

35, Segment Reporting

The Board of Directors (chief operating decision maker or CODM) monitor the operating results of the business
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment’s performance is evaluated based on segment revenue and segment result viz. profit or loss before tax from
continuing operations.

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business segments based on its services and has four reportable
segments, as follows:
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- Payments: Includes the services provided by acting as a payment facilitator to third party merchants and money
transfer facilitator to consumers.

- Commerce: Includes acting as an aggregator for digital product like movie, deal, online travel aggregator and
provision of services like advertisement, brand promotion and technical support. )

- Cloud: Includes provision of services to client for their various business needs like hosting services, marketing
services.

- Others: Includes other businesses of the Group like wealth management services.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable segments.

The Wallet business was included in the “Payments’ segment in Group’s operating segments until May 23, 2017, being
the date on which transfer of Wallet business was consummated. Being a discontinued operation, this business is no
longer presented within the Payments segment. The information about this discontinued segment is provided in note 33.

The Online Gaming business was included in the ‘Cloud’ segment in Group’s operating segments until June 1, 2018,
being the date on which transfer of Online Gaming business was consummated. Being a discontinued operation, this
business is no longer presented within the Cloud segment. The information about this discontinued segment is provided
in note 33.

Segment assets comprise assets directly managed by each segment, and primarily include receivables, property, plant
and equipment, capital work-in-progress, intangibles assets, intangible assets under development. Segment liabilities
primarily include operating liabilities. Segment assets/ liabilities are measured in the same way as in the Consolidated
Financial Statements. These assets/ liabilities are allocated based on the operations of the segment and the physical
location of the asset.

The Group has revenues primarily from customers domiciled in India. Substantially all of the Group’s non-current
operating assets are domiciled in India. There is no inter segment revenue.

Information about major customers

1. Revenues of INR 927.75 (March 31, 2018 INR 490.86) are derived from an external customer. These revenues are
attributed to the Payments segment.

2. Revenues of INR 992.48 (March 31, 2018 INR 1,603.11) are derived from another external customer. These revenues
are attributed to the Payments and Commerce segment

Adjustments and eliminations

(i) Other income including fair value gains and losses on financial assets and finance costs are not allocated to
individual segments as the underlying instruments are managed on the Group level.

(i) Current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not allocated to those segments as they
are also managed on the Group level.
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One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

37. Business combinations

(A) Summary of Acquisitions for the year ended March 31,2019

a) Acquisition of Orbgen Technologies Private Limited

i,  The Holding Company entered into a share swap agreement with existing shareholders of Orbgen Technologies Private

Limited (‘Orbgen’) to acquire 100% equity interest in Orbgen on April 26, 2018. The transaclion was consummated on
June 9, 2018. The purchase consideration was discharged by way of issue of 116,001 equily shares of the Holding
Company of the value of INR 122.53 and acquisition of 944,111 equity shares of Orbgen. The fair value of 116,001 equity
shares issued as part of the consideration paid for Orbgen was based on acquisition date fair value of the Holding

Company’s shares of INR 10,560 per share determined based on Price of Recent Investment method (*PORI). With this
acquisition, the Holding Company enhanced the reach of its payments business segment lowards usage for online movie
ticket booking. The acquisition was accounted for in the books, using the acquisition method and accordingly, all the assets
and liabilities were measured at their fair values as on the acquisition date and the purchase consideration has been

allocated to the net assets.

ii. The following table summarizes the fair value of the consideration paid, the amount at which assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised in Orbgen as of the date of acquisition, i.c. June 9, 2018. The acquisition was recorded
on the basis of assets and liabilities as at June 1, 2018 for convenience purposes as the transactions between June 9, 2018

and June 1, 2018 were not material.

As of June 1,2018
Assets acquired
Property, plant and equipment 3.04
Brand, Information and technology platform 5.16
Other intangible assets 0.01
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.71
Trade receivables 0.61
Loans 3.35
Other assets 19.10
Total Assets 31.98
Liabilities assumed
Borrowings 3.10
Deferred Tax Liability 1.32
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 2.66
Other liabilities 0.78
Other current liabilities 0.83
Total Liabilities 8.69
Net identifiable assets (A) 23.29
Goodwill arising on Acquisition (B) 99.24
Purchase Consideration (A+B) 122.53

No significant receivables have been acquired as part of acquisition of Orbgen. No contingent liabilities were transferred to

the Holding Company as part of acquisition of Orbgen.

iii. The goodwill recognized on consolidation arising from the transaction consists largely of the synergies expected from the
combined operation of the Holding Company and Orbgen. Part of the goodwill recognized in this transaction has been

impaired (refer note 38).




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200D1L.2000PLC108985

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

iv. From the date of acquisition, Orbgen has contributed INR 19.21 of revenue and INR 72.67 (including impairment of
goodwill INR 67.43) to the loss after tax. If the business combination had taken place at the beginning of the year ended
March 31, 2019, revenue from Orbgen operations would have been INR 19.86 and the loss after tax from Orbgen
operations would have been INR 74.81

v.  Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:

As of June 1, 2018
Cash consideration paid E

Net cash acquired with the subsidiary 0.71

Net cash inflow in respect of business combination (included in cash flows | 0.71
from investing activities)

vi. Subsequent to the above acquisition the Holding Company has purchased an additional 30,769 equity shares of Orbgen
for a consideration of INR 4.

b) Balance Technology Private Limited

i, The Holding Company entered into a share subscription agreement with shareholders of Balance Technology Private
Limited (‘Balance Tech’) to acquire 100% equity interest in Balance Tech as on June 26, 2018 for INR 1.60. The
{ransaction was consummated on July 26, 2018. The acquisition was accounted for in the books, using the acquisition
method and accordingly, all the assets and liabilities were measured at their fair values as on the acquisition date and the
purchase consideration has been allocated to the net assets.

ii. The following table summarizes the fair value of the consideration paid, the amount at which assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised in Balance Technology Private Limited as of the date of acquisition, i.e. July 31, 2018.
The acquisition was recorded on the basis of assets and liabilities as at July 31, 2018 for convenience purposes as the
transactions between July 26, 2018 and July 31, 2018 were not material.

As of July 31,2018

Assets acquired

Property, plant and equipment 0.01
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.08
GST Receivable 0.02

Liabilities assumed

Financial liabilities

Trade payables 0.02
Net identifiable assets (A) 0.09
Goodwill arising on Acquisition (B) 1.51
Purchase Consideration (A+B) 1.60

No contingent liabilities were transferred to the Holding Company as part of acquisition of Balance Tech.




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
(Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

iii. The goodwill recognized on consolidation arising from the transaction consists largely of the synergies expected from the
combined operation of the Holding Company and Balance tech. The goodwill recognized in this transaction has been fully

impaired (refer note 38).

iv. From the date of acquisition, Balance Tech has contributed INR Nil of revenue and INR 2.63 (including impairment of
balance tech goodwill INR 1.51) to the loss after tax. If the business combination had taken place at the beginning of the
year ended March 31, 2019, revenue from Balance Tech operations would have been INR * and the loss after tax from

Balance Tech operations would have been INR 2.83.
* Below rounding off norms adopted by the Group

v.  Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:

[ As of July 31,2018
Cash consideration paid 1.60
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary 0.08
Net cash outflow in respect of business combination (included in cash flows from (1.52)
investing activities)

¢) Cube26 Software Private Limited

i, The Holding Company entered into a share purchase agreement with shareholders of Cube26 Software Private Limited
(*Cube 26") to acquire 100% equity and preference interest in Cube 26 as on November 6, 2018 for INR 0.74 Crores. The

{ransaction was consummated on November 1. 2018. The acquisition was accounted for in the books, using the acquisition
method and accordingly, all the assets and liabilities were measured at their fair values as on the acquisition date and the

purchase consideration has been allocated to the net assets.

ii. The following table summarizes the fair value of the consideration paid, the amount at which assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised in Cube26 Software Private Limited as of the date of acquisition, i.e. November 1, 2018.

The acquisition was recorded on the basis of assets and liabilities as at October 31, 2018.

As of October 31, 2018

Assets acquired
Other non-current assets 0.01
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 0.02

Advance to vendors 0.07

TDS Receivables 0.41
Net identifiable assets (A) 0.51
Goodwill arising on Acquisition (B) 0.23
Purchase Consideration (A+B) 0.74

No contingent liabilities were transferred to the Holding Company as part of acquisition of Cube26 Software Private
Limited.




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
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iii.

(B)
a)

The goodwill recognized on consolidation arising from the transaction consists largely of the synergies expected from the
combined operation of the Holding Company and Cube 26. The goodwill recognized in this transaction has been fully
impaired (refer note 38).

From the date of acquisition, Cube 26 has contributed INR Nil of revenue and INR 0.23 (including impairment of cube 26
goodwill INR 0.23) to the loss afer tax. If the business combination had taken place at the beginning of the year ended
March 31, 2019, revenue from Cube 26 operations would have been INR * and the loss after tax from Cube 26 operations
would have been INR 5.56.

* Below rounding off norms adopted by the Group

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:

As of October 31,2018
Cash consideration paid 0.74
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary 0.02
Net cash outflow in respect of business combination (included in cash flows from | (0.72)
investing activities)

Summary of Acquisitions for the year ended March 31,2018
Acquisition of 63% interest in Little Internet Private Limited

Consequent to framework agreement entered on November 30, 2017 between the Holding company, Little Internet Private
Limited (‘LI°), shareholders of LI, Nearbuy India Private Limited (“NBI’), and shareholders of NBI, the shareholders of
NBI swapped their shares in NBI with shares in LI, resulting in their becoming 37% shareholders of LI and NBI becoming
wholly owned subsidiary of LI The Holding company through further restructuring of its existing investments in LT (5%)
and Little Singapore Pte Limited (‘LS") (27%). as well as through its obligation to issue further shares amounting to INR
173.63 to other sharcholders of LI, became 63% shareholder in LI. The restructuring of existing investment in LI and LS,
as discussed above, resulted in LS buying back 27% stake of the Holding company in LS for INR 77.40 and the Holding
company further infusing INR 83.53 in L1.

With the above, the Group has enhanced the reach of its payment business segment. The acquisition was accounted for in
the books, using the acquisition method and accordingly, all the assets and liabilities were measured at their preliminary
fair values as on the acquisition date and the purchase consideration has been allocated to the net assets.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the consideration paid, the amount at which assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised and non-controlling interest in LI as of the date of acquisition, i.e. December 06, 2017.
The acquisition was recorded on the basis of assets and liabilities as at November 30, 2017 for convenience purposes as the
transactions between November 30, 2017 and December 6, 2017 were not material.

(This space is intentionally left blank)




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
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As of December

6,2017

Assets acquired
Property. plant and equipment 5.82
Goodwill 241.22
Intangible assets

Brand 39.88

Customer relationship 22.90

Non-compete 2.50
Other intangible assets 2.38
Intangible assets under development 0.43
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 85.06

Trade receivables 1.43

Loans 1.49

Others 32.69
Other assets 6.24
Liabilities assumed
Borrowings (6.14)
Financial liabilities

Trade payables (22.04)

Others (15.52)
Other liabilities (27.69)
Net identifiable assets (A) 370.47
Goodwill arising on Acquisition (B) 40.65
Non-controlling Interest (C) 138.81
Purchase Consideration (A+B-C) 272.31

No contingent liabilities were transferred to the Group as part of acquisition of LI

iii. The goodwill recognised in the transaction consists largely of the synergies expected from the combined operation of the
Group and LI and certain intangible assets such as assembled work force which have not been recognised separately as it

do not meet the criteria for recognition as intangible assets under IAS 38 “Intangible Assets

recognised is deductible for Income tax purposes.

”. None of the goodwill

iv. From the date of acquisition, LI has contributed INR 8.60 of revenue and INR 29.42 to the loss after tax. [f the business
combination had taken at the beginning for the year ended March 31, 2018, revenue from LI operations would have been

INR 39.74 and the loss after tax from LI operations would have been INR 66.82

v. Purchase Consideration:

Cash paid 83.53
Obligation to issue shares fixed number of shares 173.63
Fair value of existing investment in associates 15.15
Total purchase consideration 272.31




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
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vi. Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:

Cash consideration paid -
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary 1.53
Net cash outflow in respect of business combination (included in cash flows from investing (1.53)
activities)

b) Acquisition of 54% interest in Urja Money Private Limited

i, The Holding company entered into a share subscription agreement with Urja Money Privale Limited to acquire (by
infusion of funds) 54% equity interest in Urja Money Private Limited (‘Urja’) as on September 26, 2017 for INR 6. The
(ransaction was consummated on October 16, 2017. With this acquisition, the Group will use Urja’s technology to create a
loan management system in collaboration with lending partners. The acquisition was accounted for in the books, using the
acquisition method and accordingly, all the assets and liabilities were measured at their preliminary fair values as on the
acquisition date and the purchase consideration has been allocated to the net assets.

ii. The following table summarizes the fair value of the consideration paid, the amount at which assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised and non-controlling interest in Urja as of the date of acquisition, i.c. October 16. 2017.
The acquisition was recorded on the basis of assets and liabilities as at October 31, 2017 for convenience purposes as the
transactions between October 16, 2017 and October 31, 2017 were not material.

As of October 16, 2017

Assets acquired

Property, plant and equipment 0.02
Other intangible assets 0.02
Intangible assets under development 0.80
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4.54
Trade receivables 0.07
Loans 2.13
Others 0.04

Liabilities assumed

Borrowings (2.20) |
Financial liabilities

Trade payables (0.08)

Others (0.19)
Other current liabilities (0.12)
Net identifiable assets (A) 5.03
Goodwill arising on Acquisition (B) 3.30
Non-controlling Interest (C) 2.33

Purchase Consideration (A+B-C) 6.00
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iii.

iv.

<)

No significant receivables have been acquired as part of acquisition of Urja. No contingent liabilities were transferred to
the Group as part of acquisition of Utja.

The goodwill recognised in the transaction consists largely of the synergies expected from the combined operation of the
Group and Urja and certain intangible assets such as assembled work force and customer lists which have not been
recognised separately as these do not meet the criteria for recognition as intangible assets under IAS 38 “Intangible
Assets”. None of the goodwill recognised is deductible for Income tax purposes.

From the date of acquisition, Urja has contributed INR 0.04 of revenue and INR 2.54 to the loss after tax. If the business
combination had taken place at the beginning of the year ended March 31, 2018, revenue from Urja operations would have

been INR 0.29 and the loss after tax from Urja operations would have been INR 4.25.

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:

Cash consideration paid -
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary 0.54
Net cash inflow in respect of business combination (included in cash flows from investing (0.54)
activities)

Acquisition of 54% interest in Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited

The Holding company acquired 16.99% voting interest in Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited (Mobiquest) by
investing INR 2.16 on June 28, 2017.

The Group made further investment of INR 8.05 (including INR 4.48 by subscribing to fresh equity shares) resulting in
Group’s holding of 54% in Mobiquest. The transaction got consummated on August 10, 2017. With this acquisition, the
Group has enhanced the reach of its payments business segment towards usage for loyalty points and data analytics.

The acquisition was accounted for in the books, using the acquisition method and accordingly, all the assets and liabilities
were measured at their fair values as on the acquisition date and the purchase consideration has been allocated to the net
assets. The acquisition was recorded on the basis of assets and liabilities as at July 31, 2017 for convenience purposes as
the transactions between July 31, 2017 and August 10, 2017 wete not material.

. The following table summarizes the fair value of the consideration paid, the amount at which assets acquired and the

liabilities assumed are recognised and non-controlling interest in Mobiquest as of the date of acquisition, i.e. August 10,
2017.

As of August 10,2017

Assets acquired
Property. plant and equipment 0.12
Goodwill -

Intangible assets

Brand 1.13
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ii.

iv.

As of August 10, 2017

Customer relationship 221
Non-compete right 0.37
Other intangibles 0.11
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5.33
Trade receivables 3.06
Others 1.03
Other current assets 0.77

Liabilities assumed

Deferred tax liability (net) (1.26)
Financial liabilities

Trade payables (4.89)

Others (1.70)
Other current liabilities (0.14)
Net identifiable assets (A) 6.14
Goodwill arising on Acquisition (B) 6.84
Non-controlling Interest (C) 2.77
Purchase Consideration (A+B-C) 10.21

No contingent liabilities were transferred to the Group as part of acquisition of Mobiquest.

The goodwill recognised in the transaction consists largely of the synergies expected from the combined operation of the
Group and Mobiquest and certain intangible assets such as assembled work force and customer lists which have not been
recognised scparately as these do not meet the criteria for recognition as intangible assets under IAS 38 “Intangible
Assets”. None of the goodwill recognised is deductible for Income tax purposes.

From the date of acquisition, Mobiquest has contributed INR 3.58 of revenue and INR 1.80 to the loss after tax.

The details of receivables acquired through business combination are as follows:

As of August 10, 2017 Fair value Gross contractual Best estimate of amount not
amount of receivable | expected to be collected

Trade receivables 3.06 4.47 1.41

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:

Cash consideration paid 5.73
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary 0.83
Net cash outflow in respect of business combination (included in cash flows from investing 4.90
activities)
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d) Acquisition of 70% interest in Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited

i

The Holding company entered into a share subscription agreement with Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited to
acquire (by infusion of funds) 70% equity interest in Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited (‘Wasteland’) as on June
14, 2017 for INR 35. The transaction was consummated on July 06, 2017. With this acquisition, the Group enhanced the
reach of its payments business segment towards usage for events and related activities. The acquisition was accounted for
in the books, using the acquisition method and accordingly, all the assets and liabilities were measured at their preliminary
fair values as on the acquisition date and the purchase consideration has been allocated to the net assets.

The acquisition was recorded on the basis of assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2017 for convenience purposes as the
transactions between June 30, 2017 and July 6, 2017 were not material.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the consideration paid, the amount at which assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised and non-controlling interest in Wasteland as of the date of acquisition, i.e. July 06, 2017.

As determined as of July
06,2017
Assets acquired
Property. plant and equipment 0.06
Intangible assets
Brand ' 2.39
Non-compele right 1.02
Other intangibles 1.52
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents *
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 35.02
Others 0.05
Liabilities assumed
Deferred tax liability (net) (1.16)
Financial liabilities
Trade payables (0.03)
Others (17.62)
Other current liabilities (0.02)
Net identifiable assets (A) 21.24
Goodwill arising on Acquisition (B) 20.19
Non-controlling Interest (C) 6.44
Purchase Consideration (A+B-C) 35.00

* Below rounding off norms adopted by the Group.

No significant receivables were acquired as part of acquisition of Wasteland. No contingent liabilities were transferred to
the Group as part of acquisition of Wasteland.

The goodwill recognised in the transaction consists largely of the synergies expected from the combined operation of the
Group and Wasteland and certain intangible assets such as assembled work force and customer lists which have not been
recognised separately as these do not meet the criteria for recognition as intangible assets under IAS 38 “Intangible
Assets”. None of the goodwill recognised is deductible for Income tax purposes.

From the date of acquisition, Wasteland has contributed INR 8.10 of revenue and INR 6.14 to the loss after tax. If the
business combination had taken place at the beginning of the year ended March 31, 2018, revenue from Wasteland
operations would have been INR 9.40 and the loss after tax from Wasteland operations would have been INR 6.20.
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Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:

Cash consideration paid

Net cash acquired with the subsidiary

0.03

Net cash outflow in respect of business combination (included in cash flows from investing activities)

(0.03)

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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38. Impairment review of goodwill arising on Consolidation

The Group during the year has acquired entities (Refer Note 23 and 37) for enhancing its payment service business.
The Group monitors the business of the respective acquisitions independently and thus considers each acquisition as
a separate Cash Generating Unit (‘CGU”).

Carrying amount of Goodwill (net of impairment):-

Cash Generating Unit As at March 31,2019 As at March 31,2018

Little Internet Private Limited 5 230.87 ~ 281.87
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited =~~~ | = 318y :
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited ' ' 20.19 20.19
Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 6.80 6.80
UrJaMB e a . = — s 5
Balance Technology Private Lﬁted B - - __ - - - -
Cube26 Software Private Limited - -
Total 293.02 312.21

The Group reviews the goodwill for any impairment at the CGU level. The recoverable amount of the above CGUs
are based on value-in-use, which is determined based on five year business plans that have been approved by the
management for internal purposes. The said planning horizon of five years reflects the assumptions for short to
medium-term market developments. The cash flows beyond the planning period are extrapolated using appropriate
terminal growth rates. The terminal growth rates used do not exceed the long term average growth rates of the
respective industry and country in which the entity operates and are consistent with the internal/external sources of
information.

The key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations are as follows:

e Earnings before interest and taxes margins (‘EBIT’)
e Discount rate
e  Growth rates

EBIT margins: The margins have been estimated based on past experience after considering incremental revenue
arising out of increase in payment business from the existing and new customers. Margins will be positively
impacted from the efficiencies and initiatives driven by the Company; whereas, factors like increased cost of
operations may impact the margins negatively.

Discount rate: Discount rate reflects the current market assessment of the risks specific to the CGU estimated based
on the weighted average cost of capital. Pre-tax discount rate used ranged from 14.00% to 15.00% for the year ended
March 31, 2019 which in the opinion of management are consistent with companies in similar business.

Growth rates: The terminal growth rates used are in the opinion of management in line with the long-term average
growth rates of the respective industry in which the entity operates and are consistent with the internal/external
sources of information. The terminal growth rates used in extrapolating cash flows beyond the planning period,
range from 1.28 to 3.5 times of revenue for the terminal year.
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Goodwill Impairment - During the year ended March 31, 2019, the goodwill on consolidation has been impaired
based on above mentioned analysis. Below is the table showing the value of goodwill impaired for the subsidiaries.

Particulars As at March 31,2019 | As at March 31, 2018

Little Internet Private Limited - 51.00 | 5
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited - 67.43 | ) -

Balance Technology Private Limited 1.51 -

“Cube26 Software Private Limited 0.23 -
Total 120.17 -

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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39. T fons with Ny ing

The Group had acquired 70% stake in Wastcland Enlertainment Private Limited on July 06, 2017. On Seplember 19, 2018, the Group acquired remaining
30% stake for INR 38 05 linmediately prior (o the purchase, Lhe carrying amount of the existing 30% non-controlling interest was INR 1.51. The Group
recogniscd a decreasc in non-controlling interests of INR 1 51 and a decrease in equity altributable Lo owners of the parent of INR 36 54 The effect on the
equity attributable to 1he owners of One97 Communicalions Limiled during (he year is summarised as follows:

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Carrying amount of nor-controlling interests acquired 1.51 -
Consideration paid lo non-controlling interests 3805 -
Excess of consideration paid recognised in retuined earnings within equity (36,54)

The Group has sold 30% stake in One97 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited on December 20, 2018 [mmediately prior o the sale, the carrying
amount of (he 30% stake in Oned7 Bangladesh Private Limited was INR 1.09, The Group recoguised the non-controlling interests of INR 1.09 and a
decrease in equily atiributable Lo the owners of the paremt by INR 0 95, The effect on Lhe equity altributable to the owners of One97 Communications
Limited during the year is summarised as follows:

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests sold 1.09 -
Consideration received from non-controlling interests 0.14 -
Deficil of consideration received recognised in retained earnings within equity (0.95) -

There were no Lransaclions with non-controlling interests during Lhe year ended March 31, 2018

Non Controlling Interests (NCI)

Set oul below is summarised financial i for each subsidiary that has
disclosed for each subsidiary are before inter-company eliminations.

interests thal are material to the Group. The amounls

" Little Internet Private Limlted Nearbuy Internet Private Limited
Summarisid Balance Shect
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Current assels 1027 7164 13.36 19.14
Current liabilities 4.80 583 21.47 2236
Net current assets 5.47 65.91 (7.81) 3.22)
Non-Current assels 275.55 28192 232 2.88
Non-Current liabilities 0.04 0,03 0.62 075
Net non-current usaels 275.51 281,39 1.70 213
Nt anpets 280.98 347.70 (6.11) [LHLE)
ulated NCT 85,74 127.79 # -#ﬂ
) i Privale
Summarised statement of profit and luss Little Tternet Privare Limited rivite Limited
31 March 2018 a1 March 2019 31 March 2018
R 14.13 16.76 447 33136
Profil / (foss) for the year (85.38) (21.98) (50.98) (48,94)
Other comp income / (loss) (0.01) 039 007 0.17)
(Tutal comprehensive incomg (85.89) 21.59) (50.91) [RENTE
Profit(lus) allecuted 10 NC (42.40) (11.03) [l #

# Accumulated NCI and Profit allocated to NCI of Little [nternet Private Limited includes accwtulated NCI and profit allocated for Nearbuy Internct
Private Limited

= ™ = N
ATy T Little Intereet Private Limited

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Net cash used in operating activilics (19.50) (10 46)| 11 53] (48,33)
Net cash lows/used in invesling aclivities 18.64 (81.72) 250 897
Nei i 3 93 20 4428 53.07
Nt inereased (deerease) in cash aml cash eguivilonta 0.86) 1.02 (%3] 4,23}

* Below rounding off ronns, adopled by the Group,
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40. Overdue outstanding foreign currency receivable and payable

The Holding Company has foreign currency payable balances aggregating Lo INR 2.61 and INR 0.10 which are outstanding for more
than six months and three years respectively, as of March 31, 2019. The Holding Company has applied to authorised dealer for
extension of the time for payment of these payable balances vide its letters dated March 18, 2019 and May 14, 2019. The Holding
Company also has foreign currency receivable balances aggregating to INR 21.39 and INR 0.28 which are outstanding for more than
nine months.and three years respectively, as of March 31, 2019, The Holding Company has applied to authorised dealer for extension
of time for realisation of receivable balances outstanding for more than nine months vide its letters dated March 28, 2019 and May
14, 2019 and also applied for permission to write-off receivable balances outstanding for more than three years vide its letters dated
March 28, 2019. Management does nol expect any material financial implication on account of the delays under the existing
regulations.

41. Transfer pricing

The Group has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing
legislation under sections 92-92F of the Tncome Tax Act, 1961/applicable regulations, For this purpose, the Group has appointed
independent consultants for conducting Transfer Pricing Study. Management is of the opinion that its international transactions with
associated enterprises have been undertaken al arms' length basis at duly negotiated prices on usual commercial terms, The transfer
pricing study of the Holding Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 has been completed which did not result in any adjustment.

42. Company Secretary

Mr. Vimal Chawla, Company Secretary of the Holding Company has resigned from the Holding Company with effect from May 8,
2019, The Holding Compauy is in the process of identifying the replacement and shall make the appointment at the earliest and in
any event within the statutory time limit of 6 months from the date of resignation.

43. Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) expenditure

The Holding Company has not carned net profit in three immediately preceding financial years, therefore, there was no amount as per
section 135 of the Act which was required to be spent on (SR activities in the current financial year by the Holding Company.
However, the Group has spent an amount of INR 1.59 (March 31, 2018: INR 2.28) towards contribution to state relief funds.
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	2.Notice of AGM- 30.09.2019.pdf
	RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the earlier resolutions passed, pursuant to the provisions of Section 196 & 197 read with Rule 7 of  The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and such other applicable rules and ...
	1. Remuneration: INR 3,00,00,000/- p.a. (including lease rent accommodation) for FY 2019-20
	2. Perquisites : Following perquisites to be provided
	(a) Two Vehicles.
	(b) Fuel Expenses & Toll charges.
	(c) Accommodation on Lease.
	(d) Expenses related to electricity, water, maintenance etc. of the accommodation provided by the Company.
	(e) Driver’s Salary and Overtime & Night Charges of Drivers to be paid extra, if any.
	(f) Vehicle’s Insurance.
	(g) Expenses related to Vehicle’s maintenance.
	(h) Communication Expenses which includes reimbursements of mobile bill, data card bill, internet bills, etc.
	(i) Reimbursements related to meal expenditure.
	(j) Travel Expenses.
	(k) Medical Insurance of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma and his family.
	(l) Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund as per the rules of the Company. These will not be included in the computation of the ceiling on perquisites or remuneration to the extent these either singly or put together are ...
	(m) Leave Travel Assistance, as per the rules of the Company; value not exceeding one month’s salary.
	RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding to the above, in the event of any loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year of the Company during the tenure of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma as Managing Director of the Company, the remuneration payable to h...
	CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
	Name of the company: One97 Communications Limited
	Registered office:          First Floor, Devika Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi – 110019
	Name of the member (s):
	Registered address:
	E-mail Id:
	Folio No/ Client Id:
	DP ID:
	I/We, being the member(s) of …………………. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
	1. Name:
	Address:
	E-mail Id:
	Signature: …………………………….., or failing him
	2. Name:
	Address:
	E-mail Id:
	Signature: …………., or failing him
	3. Name:
	Address:
	E-mail Id:
	Signature: ………….
	as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 19th Annual General Meeting of the company, to be held on the Monday, September 30, 2019 at 09:00 a.m. at registered office of the Company and at any adjournment ther...
	Resolution No:
	1. To receive, consider and adopt
	a. the audited financial statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019, the report of the Board of Director’s and Auditor’s thereon; and
	b. the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019 and the Auditor’s report thereon,
	2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma who retires by rotation and, being eligible offers himself for reappointment.
	3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Jing Xiandong who retires by rotation and, being eligible offers himself for reappointment.
	4. To approve the appointment of Mr. Todd Anthony Combs as Director.
	5. To approve the appointment of Mr. Michael Yuen Jen Yao as Director.
	6. To approve increase ESOP Pool grant options and amendment in One97 Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2008.
	7. To approve creation and adoption of new One97 Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2019.
	8. To approve remuneration of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Managing Director for FY 2019-20.
	Signed this …………. day of …… 2019
	Signature of shareholder
	Signature of Proxy holder(s)
	Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.



